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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Federal Railroad Administration

49 CFR Parts 213, 214, 215, 217, 218,
219, 220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 225, 228,
229, 230, 231, 232, 233, 234, 235, 236,
238, 239, 240, and 241

[Docket No. FRA-2006-25274]
RIN 2130-AB81

Proposed Revisions to the Schedules
of Civil Penalties for a Violation of a
Federal Railroad Safety Law or Federal
Railroad Administration Safety
Regulation

AGENCY: Federal Railroad
Administration (FRA), Department of
Transportation (DOT).

ACTION: Proposed schedules of civil
penalties with request for comments.

SUMMARY: FRA is issuing for comment
proposed statements of agency policy
that would amend the 25 schedules of
civil penalties (Schedules) issued as
appendixes to FRA’s safety regulations
to reflect more accurately the safety
risks associated with a violation of each
section or subsection of the regulations,
as well as to make sure that the civil
monetary penalty amounts (CMP) are
consistent across all the safety
regulations. These proposed revisions to
the Schedules are being published to
inform members and representatives of
the regulated community and the
general public of the amount of the civil
penalty that a respondent would likely
be assessed for a given violation and to
invite their comments on those
proposed amounts. In addition, FRA is
proposing to correct any obvious errors
or omissions in the Schedules.

DATES: Written comments must be
received by January 4, 2007. Comments
received after that date will be
considered to the extent possible
without incurring additional delay or
expense.

ADDRESSES: Comments: Comments
related to this Docket No. FRA 2006—
25274, Notice No. 1, may be submitted
by any of the following methods:

e Web Site: http://dms.dot.gov.
Follow the instructions for submitting
comments on the DOT electronic docket
site.

e Fax: 202-493-2251.

e Mail: Docket Management Facility,
U.S. Department of Transportation, 400
Seventh Street, SW., Nassif Building,
Room PL—401, Washington, DC 20590.

¢ Hand Delivery: Room PL—401 on
the plaza level of the Nassif Building,
400 Seventh Street, SW., Washington,

DC between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. Monday
through Friday, except Federal holidays.

o Federal eRulemaking Portal: Go to
http://www.regulations.gov. Follow the
online instructions for submitting
comments.

Instructions: All submissions must
include the agency name and docket
number or Regulatory Identification
Number (RIN) for this rulemaking. Note
that all comments received will be
posted without change to http://
dms.dot.gov including any personal
information.

Docket: For access to the docket to
read background documents or
comments received go to http://
dms.dot.gov at any time or to PL-401 on
the plaza level of the Nassif Building,
400 Seventh Street, SW., Washington,
DC between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m., Monday
through Friday, except Federal
Holidays.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Edward Pritchard, Director, Office of
Safety Assurance and Compliance, FRA,
1120 Vermont Avenue, NW.,
Washington, DC 20590 (telephone 202—
493-6247), edward.pritchard@dot.gov;
or Carolina Mirabal, Trial Attorney,
Office of Chief Counsel, FRA, 1120
Vermont Avenue, NW., Mail Stop 10,
Washington, DC 20590 (telephone 202—
493-6043), carolina.mirabal@dot.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
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I. Background
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of Each of the Rail Safety Regulations

A. Motive Power and Equipment
Regulations (CFR Parts 215, 218
(Partially), 223, 224, 229, 230, 231, 232,
238, and 239 (Partially))

B. Track and Workplace Safety Regulations
(CFR Parts 213 and 214)

C. Grade Crossing Signal Systems and
Signal and Train Control Regulations
(CFR Parts 233, 234, 235, and 236)

D. Operating Practices Regulations (CFR
Parts 214, 217, 218 (Partially), 219, 220,
221, 222, 225, 228, 239 (Partially), 240,
and 241)

List of Subjects in 49 CFR Parts 213, 214,
215, 217, 218, 219, 220, 221, 222, 223,
224, 225, 228, 229, 230, 231, 232, 233,
234, 235, 236, 238, 239, 240, and 241

I. Background

FRA last published comprehensive
revisions to the Schedules of its safety
regulations on December 29, 1988. 53
FR 52918. The revisions reflected the
higher maximum penalty amounts made
available by the enactment of the Rail
Safety Improvement Act of 1988 (RSIA)
(Pub. L. 100-342). 53 FR 52918. With

the exception of the penalties relating to
the hours of service laws (49 U.S.C. Ch.
211), RSIA raised the maximum CMP
for any ordinary violation from $2,500
to $10,000 (the ordinary maximum) and
to $20,000 (the aggravated maximum)
for a grossly negligent violation or a
pattern of repeated violations that has
created an imminent hazard of death or
injury or caused death or injury.
Therefore, FRA published amendments
to the Schedules in order to “give effect
to the full range of civil penalties * * *
permitted to be assessed for violation of
specific regulations.” 53 FR 52918.
These amendments revised not only the
maximum civil penalty amount for any
violation, but also the individual line-
item penalties for specific sections or
subsections of the regulations.

The Rail Safety Enforcement and
Review Act (RSERA) of 1992 (Pub. L.
102—-365) increased the maximum CMP
from $1,000 to $10,000 and in some
cases to $20,000, for a violation of the
hours of service laws, making these
penalty amounts uniform with those of
FRA’s other regulatory provisions.
RSERA also increased the minimum
CMP from $250 to $500 for all of FRA’s
regulatory provisions.

Since the publication of the
Schedules in 1988, FRA has only
adjusted its minimum and ordinary or
aggravated maximum CMPs to conform
to the mandates of the Federal Civil
Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of
1990 (Inflation Act). The Inflation Act
required that an agency adjust by
regulation each maximum CMP, or
range of minimum and maximum CMPs
within that agency’s jurisdiction by
October 23, 1996, and adjust those
penalty amounts once every four years
thereafter to reflect inflation. Public Law
101-410, 104 Stat. 890, 28 U.S.C. 2461,
note, as amended by Section 31001(s)(1)
of the Debt Collection Improvement Act
of 1996, Public Law 104-134, 110 Stat.
1321-373, April 26, 1996. In the
Inflation Act, Congress found a way to
counter the effect that inflation has had
on the CMPs by having the agencies
charged with enforcement responsibility
administratively adjust the CMPs.
Currently FRA’s minimum CMP is $550,
the ordinary maximum is $11,000, and
the aggravated maximum is $27,000 (for
when a “grossly negligent violation or
pattern of repeated violations has
caused an imminent hazard of death or
injury to individuals, or has caused
death or injury”’).

The Inflation Act requires only that
the minimum, maximum and aggravated
maximum civil penalty for a violation
be adjusted, not that the guideline
penalty amounts for a specific type of
violation be adjusted; therefore, FRA



Federal Register/Vol. 71, No. 233/Tuesday, December 5, 2006 /Proposed Rules

70591

has not adjusted the line-item guideline
penalties found in the Schedules in
conjunction with its adjustments of the
minimum, maximum and aggravated
maximum civil penalties. FRA’s
practice has been to issue Schedules
assigning to each section or subsection
of the regulations specific dollar
amounts for initial penalty assessments.
These Schedules (and all line-item
penalty amounts found within them) are
statements of agency policy that specify
the CMP that FRA will ordinarily assess
for the violation of a particular section
or subsection of a safety regulation, and
are published to inform members of the
regulated community of the amount that
they are likely to be assessed for a given
violation within the range of $550 to
$11,000. The Schedules are “meant to
provide guidance as to FRA’s policy in
predictable situations, not to bind FRA
from using the full range of penalty
authority where extraordinary
circumstances warrant.” 49 CFR part
209, App. A. Thus, regardless of the
amounts shown in the Schedules, FRA
continues to reserve the right to assess
an amount other than that listed in the
Schedules based on the circumstances
of the alleged violation, as well as the
statutory maximum CMP of up to
$27,000 per violation in situations
“where a grossly negligent violation or
a pattern of repeated violations has
caused an imminent hazard of death or
injury to individuals, or has caused
death or injury.”

II. FRA’s Approach to Reevaluating the
Schedules of Civil Penalties

The Federal Railroad Administrator is
authorized as the delegate of the
Secretary of Transportation to enforce
the Federal railroad safety statutes (49
U.S.C. Ch. 201-213) and regulations,
including the statutory civil penalty
provisions at 49 U.S.C. Ch. 213. 49 CFR
1.49. FRA currently has 25 regulations
that contain Schedules.? FRA is
proposing to amend each of the line-
item penalty amounts contained within
the Schedules for each of the
regulations. In addition, FRA would
correct any obvious errors or omissions
in the Schedules. For example, FRA
would add a line-item penalty for any
existing section or subsection that has
been inadvertently omitted from an
existing Schedule, such as 49 CFR
213.110. FRA would also correct
obvious spelling or typographical errors
that are caught during the review
process. Because the Schedules are

1FRA is not amending the Schedule found in 49
CFR part 210 because that part is enforcing the
Railroad Noise Emission Standards established by
the Environmental Protection Agency in 40 CFR
part 201.

statements of agency policy, FRA has
authority to issue these amendments
without having to follow the notice and
comment procedures under the
Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C.
553(b)(3)(A). Nevertheless, FRA is
providing members and representatives
of the regulated community and the
general public with an opportunity to
comment on the proposed line-item
penalty amounts before amending the
Schedules.

In reevaluating the penalty amounts
in the Schedules, FRA has developed
the following Severity Scale (Severity
Scale) for setting the line-item penalty
amounts for each of the provisions in
the safety regulations:

Severity Scale for Setting Line-Item
Penalty Amounts in FRA Penalty
Schedules

FRA’s regulations are intended either
to prevent a railroad accident/incident
or to mitigate the consequences if one
were to occur. For the most severe
ratings on the scale, FRA concentrated
on the degrees of likelihood that an
accident/incident 2 will occur or that
graver consequences will occur as a
result of failing to comply with the
section. The following severity scale is
intended to reflect this focus:

Level A—Very High Probability—
Failure of railroad to comply with this
section or subsection of the Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) is extremely
likely to result in one or more of the
following events, but does not create an
imminent hazard of death or injury to
individuals or causes an actual death or
injury 3:

1. Rail equipment accident/incident;
or

2“Accidents/incidents” is defined at 49 CFR
225.5 and 225.19(c). The term includes highway-
rail grade crossing accidents/incidents, rail
equipment accidents/incidents, and accidents/
incidents resulting in death, injury, or occupational
illness. A highway-rail grade crossing accident/
incident is “[a]ny impact between railroad on-track
equipment and an automobile, bus, truck,
motorcycle, bicycle, farm vehicle, or pedestrian at
a highway-rail grade crossing.” 49 CFR 225.5, read
in light of 49 CFR 225.19(c). Rail equipment
accidents/incidents are defined in 49 CFR 225.19(c)
to include “collisions, derailments, fires,
explosions, acts of God, and other events involving
the operation of on-track equipment (standing or
moving) * * * that result in damage to railroad
property that is greater than the reporting
threshold.” Currently the reporting threshold is
$7,700. 70 FR 754141, 75417 (Dec. 20, 2005).

3FRA has statutory authority to assess civil
penalties in the range of $550 (minimum) to
$11,000 (maximum) for ordinary violations of its
regulations. FRA may only assess a penalty at the
statutory maximum of $27,000 “when a grossly
negligent violation or a pattern of repeated
violations has caused an imminent hazard of death
or injury to individuals, or has caused death or
injury.” A $27,000 statutory maximum penalty is
the equivalent of a Level A Plus and is therefore off
the scale.

2. Other accident/incident (not a rail
equipment accident/incident).

FRA is proposing to issue a CMP
guideline for Level “A” of $8,500 for
ordinary violations and $11,000 for
willful violations of the regulations.

Level B—High Probability—Failure of
railroad to comply with this section or
subsection of the CFR is more likely
than not to result in the occurrence of:

1. Rail equipment accident/incident;
or

2. Other accident/incident (not a rail
equipment accident/incident).

FRA is proposing to issue a CMP
guideline for Level “B” of $6,500 for
ordinary violations and $9,000 for
willful violations of the regulations.

For the following levels, FRA is not
only addressing the likelihood that
noncompliance will or could contribute
to an accident or aggravated
consequences if an accident occurred,
but also the importance of maintaining
compliance in order to prevent
violations of these CFR sections or
subsections from becoming leading
accident causes in the future.

Level C—Moderate Probability—
Failure of railroad to comply with this
section or subsection of the CFR
substantially increases the likelihood
that one of the following will occur:

1. Rail equipment accident/incident;
or

2. Other accident/incident (not a rail
equipment accident/incident).

FRA is proposing to issue a CMP
guideline for Level “C” of $5,000 for
ordinary violations and $7,500 for
willful violations of the regulations.

Level D—Minor Probability—Failure
of the railroad to comply with this
section or subsection of the CFR slightly
increases the likelihood that one of the
following will occur:

1. Rail equipment accident/incident;
or

2. Other accident/incident (not a rail
equipment accident/incident).

FRA is proposing to issue a CMP
guideline for Level “D”’ of $3,000 for
ordinary violations and $4,500 for
willful violations of the regulations.

Level E—Minimal Probability—
Failure to comply with this CFR section
or subsection does not increase the
likelihood that a rail equipment
accident/incident or other accident/
incident will occur, except in special
circumstances, such as if the
noncompliance is willful or widespread.
Nevertheless, noncompliance with any
one of these provisions undercuts the
effectiveness of the Federal railroad
safety program, and could compromise
the safety of rail operations.

Example: Violation of § 225.13—Late
Reports—Submitting a late accident/
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incident report to FRA does not increase
the likelihood that a rail equipment
accident/incident or other accident/
incident will occur. Widespread
noncompliance with that provision,
however, could lead to inaccuracies in
Federal accident databases, which in
turn could delay FRA’s response to
emerging safety problems.

FRA is proposing to issue a CMP
guideline for Level “E” of $1,500 for
ordinary violations and $2,500 for
willful violations of the regulations.

As the Severity Scale shows, there are
five different degrees of probabilities,
ranging from A (the most severe) to E
(the least severe of the types of
violations). In developing the rankings
(A through E), FRA concentrated on the
degrees of likelihood that an accident/
incident will occur or that graver
consequences will occur as a result of
the failure to comply with the particular
section or subsection of the safety
regulations. The Severity Scale was then
used by FRA to assign a ranking (from
A to E) to each of the provisions of the
particular safety regulations that it has
responsibility for administering and
enforcing. The resulting line-item
penalty amounts for each of the sections
or subsections of the safety regulations
affected reflect FRA’s determination,
based on safety data and industry
knowledge, of how likely the violation
of a particular section or subsection is
to result in a rail equipment accident/
incident or other type of accident/
incident. FRA not only increased the
penalty amounts in some instances, but
also reduced the penalty amounts for
some sections or subsections where it
determined that a violation of the
particular regulation constituted less of
a safety risk. A determination by FRA
that a CFR section or subsection does
not increase the likelihood than a rail
equipment accident/incident or other
accident will occur, however, does not
mean that this section or subsection is
inconsequential to the effectiveness of
the Federal railroad safety program or to
the overall safety of railroad operations.

The new Schedules will continue to
have two categories of violations:
Ordinary and willful. See 49 CFR part
209, App. A for a discussion of
“willful” violations. The ordinary
penalties apply to railroads or other
respondents, except individuals, while
the “willful” column applies to willful
violations committed by railroads or
other respondents, including
individuals. Each Schedule lists the
CFR section or subsection in the left
hand column, with the corresponding
penalties listed in the columns next to
it. The only exception continues to be
49 CFR part 231; what are listed in the

left hand column of the Schedule are
the FRA “defect codes” 4 for that part,
and not the corresponding CFR sections.
The reason for this continues to be the
fact that the defect codes are organized
by the type of safety appliance, which
makes them easier to use, than the
section numbers of part 231, which are
organized primarily by car type.
Nevertheless, if necessary, every defect
code can be traced to a specific
regulatory provision in part 231 or
statutory provision in 49 U.S.C. Chapter
203, or both.

The following chart summarizes the
proposed guideline amounts for
ordinary and willful violations by
severity level:

: Ordina Willful
Severity level violatior?é violations
$8,500 $11,000
6,500 9,000
5,000 7,500
3,000 4,500
1,500 2,500

III. Rankings of the Sections or
Subsections of Each of the Rail Safety
Regulations

Although the railroad industry’s
overall safety record has improved over
the last decade, significant train
accidents/incidents continue to occur.
As aresult, the FRA’s safety program is
being guided by careful analysis of
accident/incident, inspection, and other
safety data. FRA has also directed both
its regulatory and compliance efforts
toward the areas that involve the highest
of safety risks, in order to reduce the
number and severity of accidents/
incidents caused by a failure to comply
with those safety regulations. Therefore,
the goal of the new line-item penalty
amounts for each of the Schedules is to
reflect the different degrees of
probability that a violation of a
particular CFR section or subsection
will result in a rail equipment accident/
incident or other accident/incident, in
order to improve the overall safety of
railroad operations.

A. Motive Power and Equipment
Regulations (MP&E) (49 CFR Parts 215,
218 (Partially), 223, 224, 229, 230, 231,
232, 238, and 239 (Partially))

In reevaluating the line-item penalty
amounts for each of the CFR sections or
subsections found in Parts 215, 218
(partially), 223,224,229, 231, 232, 238,

4 Defect codes were developed by FRA in order
to facilitate computerization of inspection data
generated by FRA inspectors by providing a digital
format for every CFR section. Defect codes are
analytical tools only and are subject to change
without notice.

and 239 (partially) of the CFR, FRA took
into consideration, among other factors,
the nationwide list of “Top 10” MP&E
defects. The defects are listed in the
table below, in descending order,
according to the number of times that
each defect was determined to have
caused a rail equipment accident/
incident, excluding highway-rail grade
crossing accidents/incidents that are
also classified as rail equipment
accidents/incidents (hereinafter) ‘““train
accidents,” between 2002 and 2005.

Journal (roller bear-
ing) overheated—

Coupler/draft system
defects (car)—(55)

(158)
Truck bolster stiff— | Electrically caused
(78) fire (locomotive)—

(50)
Coupler retainer pin/
cross key—(48)

Side bearing clear-
ance insufficient—
(67)

Broken rim—(62) Damaged flange or
tread (built up)—
(45)

Rigging down or
dragging—(43)

Pantograph defect
(locomotive)—(59)

The CFR sections or subsections that
relate to the defects associated with
greater safety risks have received more
severe rankings in the Schedules, and as
such now carry higher CMP amounts.
For example, a violation of 49 CFR
215.103(d)(3), which is a defective
wheel rim with a crack of one inch or
more, received an “A” severity ranking
(and a proposed guideline penalty
amount of $8,500) because of the high
safety risk that the defect will cause a
broken-rim derailment. In addition, the
FRA applied the Severity Scale in order
to determine the degrees of likelihood
that any type of accident/incident will
occur as a result of noncompliance with
the regulations.

B. Track and Workplace Safety
Regulations (49 CFR Parts 213 and 214)

In recent years, most of the serious
accidents/incidents (train collisions or
derailments resulting in a release of
hazardous materials or harm to rail
passengers, rail employees, or the
general public) resulted from human
factor or track causes. Over the last five
years 34 percent of train accidents were
caused by track defects. In an effort to
reduce track accidents, FRA is focusing
its track inspections on the areas of
highest risks and encouraging inspectors
to recommend enforcement action on
the kinds of violations that are
considered leading causes of track-
caused train accidents. Therefore, in
evaluating the line-item penalty
amounts for all the sections or
subsections, FRA took into
consideration the leading causes of
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track-related train accidents when
applying the Severity Scale to the Track
Safety Standards. For example, 49 CFR
213.53(b)—Gage—received an “A” (and
a proposed penalty guideline amount of
$8,500) ranking because it is one of the
leading causes of track-related train
accidents.

In ranking the sections or subsections
of 49 CFR part 214 (Part 214)—Railroad
Workplace Safety, FRA took into
consideration not only the probability
that an accident/incident could result if
a violation occurred, but also the fact
that the accident/incident could result
in serious injury or death. One example
of the rankings for part 214 is the
ranking for the second type of violation
of section 214.103, which requires
bridge workers to use fall protection.
This subsection received a ranking of
“A” (and a proposed guideline penalty
of $8,500) because a violation of the
subsection could result in serious injury
or death, as evidenced by the several
bridge worker fatalities in the past 10
years due to the failure to use fall
protection.

C. Grade Crossing Signal Systems and
Signal and Train Control Regulations
(CFR Parts 233, 234, 235, and 236)

FRA applied the Severity Scale to
each of the sections in Parts 233, 234,
235, and 236, in order to determine the
appropriate rankings for each of the
sections or subsections of the
regulations. In the area of signal and
train control (S&TC), FRA followed the
Severity Scale, which concentrates on
the potential for an accident/incident
resulting from noncompliance. While
there are relatively few train accidents
associated with S&TC causes and few
highway-rail grade crossing accidents/
incidents associated with S&TC causes
that have occurred in recent years, it is
imperative that the Schedules still
reflect the levels of risks associated with
the violation of these CFR sections or
subsections, in order to prevent future
S&TC-caused accidents.

D. Operating Practices Regulations (CFR
Parts 217, 218 (Partially), 219, 220, 221,
222, 225, 228, 239 (Partially), 240, and
241)

Over the last five years, human-factor-
related causes have accounted for 38
percent of all train accidents. A review
of the FRA’s Office of Safety database
indicated that the top four human factor
causes contributing to train accidents
are as follows: (1) Switch improperly
lined; (2) shoving movement, absence of
employee on, at or ahead of movement;
(3) shoving movement, failure to
control; and (4) buff/slack action excess,
train handling. These top causes are

often involved in violations of such
regulations as 49 CFR part 220, Railroad
Communications. A review of the top
four causes for human factors train
accidents between 2001 and 2005
showed that these causes accounted for
2,175 reportable train accidents/
incidents (including 12 employee
fatalities, 389 employee injuries, and
$60,550,000 in rail and equipment
damages). Therefore, when applying the
Severity Scale to the CFR sections or
subsections, FRA considered all of this
safety information in order to ensure
that each line-item penalty amount
reflected the likelihood that
noncompliance would result in a train
accident/incident, or that graver
consequences would occur as a result of
failing to comply with the section or
subsection of the regulations5.

List of Subjects
49 CFR Part 213

Bridges, Occupational safety and
health, Penalties, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 214

Bridges, Occupational safety and
health, Penalties, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 215

Freight, Penalties, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 217

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 218

Occupational safety and health,
Penalties, Railroad employees, Railroad
safety, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 219

Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, Drug
testing, Penalties, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements, safety, Transportation.

49 CFR Part 220
Penalties, Radio, Railroad safety.
49 CFR Part 221

Penalties, Railroad safety, reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

5FRA has separately proposed that additional

Railroad Operating Rules be incorporated in the
Federal regulations and made directly enforceable.
The notice of proposed rulemaking was issued on
October 12, 2006, and included additional
amendments to the Schedules of Parts 217 and 218.
See 71 FR 60372.

49 CFR Part 222

Administrative practice and
procedure, Penalties, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 223

Glass and glass products, Penalties,
Railroad safety, Reporting and
recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 224

Incorporation by reference, Penalties,
Railroad locomotive safety, Railroad
safety, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 225

Investigations, Penalties, Railroad
safety, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 228

Penalties, Railroad employees,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 229

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 230

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 231
Penalties, Railroad safety.
49 CFR Part 232

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 233

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 234

Highway safety, Penalties, Railroad
safety, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 235

Administrative practice and
procedure, Penalties, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 236

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 238

Fire prevention, Penalties, Railroad
safety, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 239

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping.
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49 CFR Part 240 In consideration of the foregoing, FRA

Administrative practice and proposes to amend Parts 213, 214, 215,
procedure, Penalties, Railroad 217, 218, 219, 220, 221, 222, 223, 224,
employees, Railroad safety, Reporting 225, 228, 229, 230, 231, 232, 233, 234,
and recordkeeping requirements. 235, 236, 238, 239, 240, and 241 of

Subtitle B, Chapter II of Title 49 of the

49 CFR Part 241 Code of Federal Regulations as follows:

Communications, Penalties, Railroad
safety, Reporting and recordkeeping

PART 213—[AMENDED]

1. The authority citation for part 213
continues to read as follows:

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20102-20114 and
20142; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR
1.49(m).

2. Appendix B to part 213 is revised

requirements. to read as follows:
APPENDIX B TO PART 213.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES 1
: N Willful
Section2 Violation violation
Subpart A—General
213.4(2) EXCEPLEA trACK 2 .....eiieeiieieieieeee ettt ettt h e e b ettt ettt e bt et et e eenh e e e e ne e e nneeneene $5,000 $7,500
213.4(b) Excepted track?2 6,500 9,000
213.4(c) Excepted track 2 6,500 9,000
213.4(d) Excepted track?2 6,500 9,000
213.4(e):
QDI =2 CeT=T o) C=To IR = ol QPSPPSR 6,500 9,000
(P2 I = (o= o) (Yo IR 2= ot QPP PSSO PRURPTOPPRO 6,500 9,000
() = (o= o] (=T = To] GOt 6,500 9,000
(G I = (eT=T o) (=To [N = o] QSO PT U SPTOPPR 6,500 9,000
213.4(F) EXCEPIEA TrACK ....eeiiiiieiii ittt b et sa ettt e e et bt e et be e r et e e et nneenre e e 3,000 4,500
213.7 Designation of qualified persons to supervise certain renewals and inspect track ...........ccccocviniiiiienns 5,000 7,500
213.9 Classes of track: Operating speed limits ........ccccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 8,500 11,000
213.11 Restoration or renewal of track under traffic conditions .. 5,000 7,500
213.13 Measuring track NOt UNAEr 1080 ........cooiuiiiiiiiiiei ettt st e stb e e e sabe e e s sane e e e aeeeeenneeeas 6,500 9,000
Subpart B—Roadbed
P2 RS TR K I I = g F= Vo T OSSP PEOTR RPN 6,500 9,000
21B.37  VEGELAION ...ttt et b e et e bt e et b e e et e nhe e n et e e r e naeenre e e 5,000 7,500
P2 B TR TC T -V 1= OO 8,500 11,000
213.55 Alignment .......ccooiiiiiiiiieeee 6,500 9,000
213.57 Curves; elevation and speed limitations .... 6,500 9,000
213.59 Elevation of curved track; runoff ............ 6,500 9,000
213.83  TrACK SUIMACE ..eeeiiiieiiiiiieiie ettt e e e et e e e e e e e eaae b e e e e e e e eeaabasaeeeeseasaasaeaeeeeesassssseeeeeeeaessasaeeeeseannnees 6,500 9,000
213.103  Ballast; GEBNEIAL .......ccuiiiiiiii e e 5,000 7,500
213.109 Crossties
[ LY=L =Y = T DTS =T O PUURPPRNt 3,000 4,500
(D) DiISEHDULION Of HHES ....veevireiete ittt r et e e s re e e nre e e e nre e e e nre e e e 6,500 9,000
(c) Sufficient number of NONAEECHIVE HIES .......eviiieiii e e e e e enees 5,000 7,500
(d) Sufficient number of nondefective ties (effective 9/21/2000) .......coooeiiiiiiiiiiiiie e s 5,000 7,500
(F) JOUNT TS wnveeeeteeie ettt ettt e e et e e et s he e s bt e b e R e e b e e s e b e e r e Rt e e e Rt n e nr e n e nre e e reenne e 5,000 7,500
(9) Track constructed WithOUt CrOSSHIES ......c.iiuiriiiiiiiisiiie e 5,000 7,500
213.110 Gage restraint measurement systems
(@) through (D) NOTIfICAtION ......oiiiii e e 5,000 7,500
(c) Design requirements ............. 6,500 9,000
(g) through (i) Exception reports 5,000 7,500
()DL e= W01 (Yo |14 TP U PO PRURPTOPPRO 6,500 9,000
[0 L=Vl a g o TP PRURPTOPPPO 5,000 7,500
()R] =T L= V=T o g T S S 8,500 11,000
00 T I PSSRSO RPPRN 6,500 9,000
() IR TTeeT (o | KCT=Y o] 1o o OSSP STOPRR 5,000 7,500
(o) Inspection frequency 8,500 11,000
213.113 Defective rails .......... 8,500 11,000
213.115 Rail end mismatch 5,000 7,500
213.119 Continuous welded rail
(2) CWR plan filed With FRA ...ttt b et e et ena e e e sre e e nne e e 6,500 9,000
(b) CWR fastening reQUIFEMENTS ..........ciiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt st e b e e b e e sbe e sr e e nbe e e b e e sbneenees 6,500 9,000
(c) CWR rail temperature reqUIrEMENES .........oociiiiiiiiieiiieee ettt ettt et sar e et e e sen e nreeseneas 6,500 9,000
(d) CWR alignment monitoring rEQUITEIMENTS ..........ciiuiiiiiiiieiieeie ettt sttt sneeeanees 6,500 9,000
(e) Procedures for controlling train speed on CWR raCk ..........ccceiriiiiiiiiiienieciie e 6,500 9,000
(f) CWR track iNSPECLIONS ....eiiiiiieeiiiie e ciiie ettt ee et e et e e st e et e e e s e e e e e ssaeeessseeeasseeeanseeeeanseeeeansaeesnnseeennneen 6,500 9,000
(g) CWR jOINt DA INSPECHIONS .....eiieiiiiieiie ettt ettt ea ettt e bt sae et e e sae e e bt e sae e e bt e saeeebeesaneenbeeenneas 6,500 9,000
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() O3 ATA 2 T (= UL Tl o PP TSSOSO PR URPTOPPRP 6,500 9,000

(i) CWR recordkeeping reQUIFEMENTS ........cciiiirierieeieeeiteete ettt st e et sae e bt esas e e bt e sae e e sneesateenbeeeabeesnneenneas 6,500 9,000

P T P2 N ) I =V T PRSP PPVRPRRPPNE 6,500 9,000

213.121(D) Rall JOINTS ..ottt st et e e s e e e bt e e b e et e e e e e sae e 6,500 9,000

P BT o N (o) T o = UL o g €O PR PPURORRPPN: 8,500 11,000

213.121(d) Rall JOINTS ..ot et e et e e e b e e sbe e et e e s e e sae e 6,500 9,000

21B.121(€) RaI JOINTS ..ttt ettt b e et b e e b e sa et et e e s h et e bt e eh et e be e et e et e e ean e nneeeneennes 6,500 9,000

213.121(F) R JOINES ...ttt st et e e s e e e bt e s b e e e bt sae e et e e s e e e sne e 6,500 9,000

P T o N (o) I 2 =V T PP OPPVRORRPPNE 6,500 9,000

213.121(h) Rall JOINTS ..ttt st et e e s e e e b e e s h e e e bt e s e e et e e s an e e sae e sne e 6,500 9,000

P2 RS 22 o] (o] o U | - | SRR 6,500 9,000

213,128 THE PIALES . et e e b e e e e she e a et e e e e e sne e e 5,000 7,500

P BT o o - U1 I £ 151 (=Y T o O P TP STOPPVRORRPRN: 6,500 9,000

213.133 Turnouts and track CroSSiNgs, GENEIAIlY ........ceiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ae e e eae e e s eaneee s 5,000 7,500
213.135 Switches:

(8) TNFOUGN (@) -veeveeetie ittt st b e bt s et et e e e e b e b s n e et rn e 6,500 9.000

(L) Ieial] o] o T=Te I o T Vo T T o1 14 (=SS 6,500 9,000

P2 B B A o oo 1 PSPPI 6,500 9,000

213.139  SPING AU FIOGS -eeiutiiiuieiitie ettt ettt b e bt sa e et e e s e bt e bt e ea et e ebe e nane e be e ean e e naeesneenane 6,500 9,000

213,141 Self-QUAIEA frOGS ... .eeeiuiiiiieeiie ettt ettt et e bt eeae e e beassee e beesaeeebeaesseebeeanseeaneeenseaaseaanseesaneanseannns 5,000 7,500

213.143 Frog guard rails and guard fACES; JAGE ......cccueruiiriiiiiiiiiete ettt sttt ettt sae e ene e 6,500 9,000

Subpart E—Track Appliances and Track-Related Devices

21B.205  DEIAIIS ..ottt ettt bt h et b et b eh £t et e e eh b e e b e e eh et e bt nane e bt e enneenaeeeteenann 5,000 7,500

213.233  TracK iNSPECHONS ....c.uiiiiiiiiiei e e st e s sae e sne e 5,000 7,500

213.235 Switches, crossings, transition devices 5,000 7,500

213.237 Inspection of rail ........ccccoceiiiiiiiiiiienn. 6,500 9,000

213.239  SPECIAl INSPECHIONS ...eeiiiiiieiiiiie et ee ettt e et e e e e e e te e e e saee e e s seeeeasseeessbeeeesseeeanseeeeasseeeaseeeennsenenn 5,000 7,500

213.241  INSPECHION FECOMAS ......oiiiiiiiiiiii e e s e e s e e e b e e s aa e s sbe s s n e e b e e s n e sanesneesnns 5,000 7,500

Subpart G—High Speed

213.305 Designation of qualified individuals; general qualifications .............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiie s 8,500 11,000

213.307 Class of track; operating Speed lIMILS .........coiiiiiiiiiiiii et 8,500 11,000

213.309 Restoration or renewal of track under traffic CONAItiONS .........cooooiiiiiiiii e 8,500 11,000

213.311 Measuring track NOt UNAEr [0AA .........c.ooiiiiiiiiiieeee e e e e e e e nne s 6,500 9,000

P RS G B F I B =11 =T [ TSSOSO 5,000 7,500

P2 RO 72 IV /=To =1 = 4o o ORI 5,000 7,500

213.328  TrACK GAGE . .eeiiuiiiiieiiie ittt ettt h e et h e bt b e e e s h et e e e h e e b e e e h e e ebe e e e et e e e b e e e e sne e 8,500 11,000

P BT oy A V1o a1 1 =Y o | PSPPSR PPVRORRPPNE 8,500 11,000

213.329 Curves, elevation and SpPeed lIMItS ..........oooiiririiiiiie e 8,500 11,000

218.331  TrACK SUIMACE .. .eiiuiiiiiiiiitie ettt ettt e a ettt b et bt sa et et e e s a bt e bt e ea et e be e nateebeeenneesanesneenans 8,500 11,000

213.333 Automated vehicle iNSPECHON SYSTEIMS .......oiiiiiiiiiii ettt e s ae e e ne e e eaneee s 8,500 11,000
213.335 Crossties

[ L ==Y = T VTS To [P UUUPRUPRINt 5,000 7,500

(o) DI (] o101 1T I ] 1 =Y OSSR 6,500 9,000

(c) Sufficient number of nondefective ties, NON-CONCIELE ..........coiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500

(d) Sufficient number of nondefective, CONCIEtE tIES .......cccveiiciieeiiie e e e e enees 8,500 11,000

(0 I Lo a1 8 (= PP PPRINt 8,500 11,000

(f) Track constructed WithOUL CTOSSHIES .....cccieiiiiiiieeeieie et e e e e e et e e s aee e e s neeeesnnneesnnneeeanees 8,500 11,000

(9) Non-defective ties surrounding defective tiEs .........cociiiiiiiiiiiii e 8,500 11,000

) TR LN = L (=TSSR 8,500 11,000

(1) THE PIALES . ettt et e s b e e e b sr et e r e e e 8,500 11,000

218.337  DEFECHVE TAIIS ..ottt ettt sttt e e a bt e b e ea e ebe e st e bt e et e nne e nneenaes 8,500 11,000

213.339 InSpection Of rail iN SEIVICE .......oociiiiiiiie e et sae e sne s 8,500 11,000

P2 T I [ 1] =Y o (o T 1= = T S 8,500 11,000

213.343 Continuous welded rail (a) through () ........oooeiiii e 8,500 11,000

213.345 Vehicle qualification testing (a) through (D) ......cc.ooiiiiiiiiie e 8,500 11,000

(o) IR e (o TUTo | (=) USSP 8,500 11,000

213.347 Automotive or railroad CroSSINGS At Grade ........coooceeiiiiiieiiiiiee e 6,500 9,000

213.349 Rail end MISMALCh ......ooiiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaraeaaeeeaanne 6,500 9,000

213.351(2) RaI JOINTS ..ueeieeiitieiiee ettt b ettt b e oo sa ettt e s h et e bt e eh et e be e nan e e bt e et e nneeeneenans 8,500 11,000

213.351(D) Rall JOINTS ...ttt st et e e s e e e e b e et e e e e e sae e 8,500 11,000

P R 1o I (o) T o = UL o 0 £SO P O STO PP URORRPRN: 8,500 11,000

213.351(d) Rall JOINTS ...ttt e et e e e b e e b et e e e n e e sae e 8,500 11,000

213.351(8) Rall JOINTS ..ueeiieieiieiiee ettt b e et b et e b e sa et et e e e h et e bt e ea et bt e nan e e bt e e n e nneeeneenane 6,500 9,000

21B.351(F) R JOINES ...ttt ettt h e et e e heeeabe et eeeabeesaeeeaeeaembeenbeeenseeaneesmseaseaanseesaeeenseannnn 8,500 11,000
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213.351(g) RN JOINS ...ttt ettt b e e bt e e e r e e e s ne e e n e e 8,500 11,000
P2 TR T2 o] (o] o U | - 11 SR 5,000 7,500
213.353 Turnouts, crossovers, transition deVICES ........ccoooiiiiiiiiii s 8,500 11,000
213.355 Frog guard rails and guard faces; gage 6,500 9,000
213.357 Derails ....cccooverviiiiiienieeee s 5,000 7,500
213.359  TraCK SHIfNESS ....eieiiiiieiiiiee ettt ettt e ettt e e st e e e s s ee e e ana e e e easte e e enseeeeanteeeeneeeeereeeaanreeean 8,500 11,000
213.361 RGNt Of WAY .ottt r e n e et e 5,000 7,500
213.365 Visual inspections ... 8,500 11,000
213.367 Special inspections . 8,500 11,000
213.369 Inspections records 5,000 7,500

1 A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2 |In addition to assessment of penalties for each instance of noncompliance with the requirements identified by this footnote, track segments
designated as excepted track that are or become ineligible for such designation by virtue of noncompliance with any of the requirements to which

this footnote applies are subject to all other requirements of part 213 until such noncompliance is remedied.

PART 21 4—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28 4, Appendix A to part 214 is revised

U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49. to I‘ead as follows:
3. The authority citation for part 214

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 214.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES*

. I Willful
Section Violation violation
Subpart B—Bridge Worker Safety Standards
214.103 Fall protection:
(i) Failure to provide fall ProtECHON ........cieeriieeesee et eesaeeeesre e e e s neeneene $6,500 $9,000
(i) Failure to USe fall ProtECION .........oouiiiiii ettt nees 8,500 11,000
214.105 Standards and practices:
(a) General:
(1) Fall protection used for Other PUIPOSES ........c.cociiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(2) Failure t0 remove frOM SEIVICE ......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiieeee ettt et 5,000 7,500
(3) Failure to protect from deterioration ............cccoiiiiiiiiiiie e e st e e st e e saee e e et e e e neee s 5,000 7,500
(4) Failure t0 iNSPECE AN FEMOVE ......oiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt st sae e b e s 6,500 9,000
(23 T2 L0 TS o TR €= Ll o SRS 6,500 9,000
(6) Failure to provide for Prompt FESCUE ........coccuiiiiiiireceie e ctee e ete e seee e e e e ersae e e et e e e saseeeesnteeeeneeeeesenean 6,500 9,000
(7) Failure to PreveNnt damAaGgE .......coceeiiiiiiiiaiie ittt ettt b e e b st et an e e b e e e neas 5,000 7,500
(8) Failure t0 USE PrOPEI CONMNECIOIS ......ciiuiiiiiiiiiieteeeiee ettt sttt ettt sae e et be e e sb e sae e st e e saeeebeesaeeenneas 5,000 7,500
(9) Failure to USE Proper @NCHOTAgES .....ccccuiiiuiiiiiiiieiie ettt sttt sae e et eesaeeebeesaeeenneas 5,000 7,500
(b) Fall arrest system:
(1)—-(17) Failure to provide conforming @qUIPMENT .........cccoiuiiieiiiiiiie e e 5,000 7,500
(c) Safety net systems:
(1) Failure to install CloSe 10 WOIKPIACE .......cccueiiiiiiiiiiiieiee e 5,000 7,500
(2) Failure to provide fall arrest if over 30 feet ..o 6,500 9,000
(8) Failure to provide for UnObSTrUCtEd fall ...........ooiiiiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
[ =L 0T (=R o TR Y] S SRR 5,000 7,500
(5) Failure to USE Proper EQUIPIMENT .......cociiiiiiiiiiieeie ettt ettt sae e en e eenees 5,000 7,500
(6) Failure to prevent contact with surface DEIOW ..........c.eeiiiie i i 6,500 9,000
(7) Failure to properly iNSTAIL ..........coiiiiiiiiiiee ettt st neas 6,500 9,000
(8) Failure to remove defECtiVe NELS .......cooiiiiiiiiieee et 6,500 9,000
() L LU Eo I (o T Y o 1=t PR URPPPR 6,500 9,000
(10) Failure 10 remMOVE ODJECES ....cc.eiiiiriiiieeesie ettt st r e nn e e e 3,000 4,500
(11)—(13) Failure to use conforming EQUIPMENT .........cciiiiriiiieiiieee e e 5,000 7,500
214.107 Working over water:
(a)(i) Failure to provide life VEST ........ooiiiiie e e 6,500 9,000
(i) Failure t0 USE lifE VEST ..ottt ettt et sn e s steesn e e e e snees | eeeereesee e e e 9,000
(C) FallUre 10 INSPECT ...ttt ettt et e b ettt sae e et e e seb e e bt e nan e e be e nan e nneeeane s 5,000 7,500
(e)(i) Failure to provide ring buoys 6,500 9,000
(i) Failure to use ring buoys ......... 5,000 7,500
(F)(1) Failure to provide SKIff .........ceciciieiiiie et e e e e e e e s e e e e e e sste e e s snseeesneeeeanneeeeannneeannneeeannen 5,000 7,500
(i) FaIlUIE 10 USE SKIff .....coeiiieiiiiieie ettt ettt sae et e e s ae e e be e s st e e st e sateenteesnneesneesnnees | eeesseeseesnseesineens 7,500
214.109 Scaffolding:
(a)—(f) Failure to provide conforming EQUIPMENT ..........couiiiiiiiiieie et e 6,500 9,000
214.113 Head protection:
(B) (1) FaIlUIE 10 PrOVIAE ...ttt ettt ettt b bbbt e bt e e nb e e e nn e e e nn e e e e nensnene 6,500 9,000
(1) FAIIUIE 10 USE ...t sttt st b e st e e s ae s st e e s beesbeesanesneesinnesbeesnees | eesiseesnnenreesneans 9,000
(b) or (c) Failure to provide conforming €QUIPMENT .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 5,000 7,500
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214.115 Foot protection:
(a)(i) Failure to require use of 5,000 7,500
L) g2 L LU= (o T = SRR RS 7,500
214.117 Eye and face protection:
(Y O B = U= (o3 o] (0} 1o L= SO PUSTOPPR 5,000 7,500
L) I UL U= (o T U1 NP UUP EUTORTOTRPPIN 4,500
(b) Failure to use conforming equipment ... 5,000 7,500
(c) Use of defective equipment ..........c.c........ 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to provide for corrective lenses 5,000 7,500
Subpart C—Roadway Worker Protection Rule
214.303 Railroad on-track safety programs, generally:
(a) Failure of a railroad to implement an On-track Safety Program ...........ccocveiiiiiiiiiiinee e 8,500 11,000
(b) On-track Safety Program of a railroad includes no internal monitoring procedure ..........ccccoeceeieeneeennen. 8,500 11,000
214.305 Compliance Dates:
Failure of a railroad to comply by the specified dates .........ccccooiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
214.307 Review and approval of individual on-track safety programs by FRA:
(a)(i) Failure to notify FRA of adoption of On-track Safety Program ..........c.ccccovieniniininieie e 5,000 7,500
(if) Failure to designate primary person to contact for program reVIiEW .............cceeeireeneneeieneeieeneeeeseenenns 5,000 7,500
214.309 On-track safety program documents:
(1) On-track Safety Manual not provided to prescribed emplOYEEsS ..........ccccveiiriiiiiieiiieee e 6,500 9,000
(2) On-track Safety Program documents issued in fragments ..........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiniiiineecce e 5,000 7,500
214.311 Responsibility of employers:
(b) Roadway worker required by employer to foul a track during an unresolved challenge ............ccccceene 8,500 11,000
(c) Roadway workers not provided with written procedure to resolve challenges of on-track safety proce-
[0 L1 PR SRRR 6,500 9,000
214.313 Responsibility of individual roadway workers:
(a) Failure to follow railroad’s on-track safety rules ...t 11,000
(b) Roadway worker fouling a track when not necessary in the performance of duty ..........ccccoviiiinniennn. 11,000
(c) Roadway worker fouling a track without ascertaining that provision is made for on-track safety ............. 11,000
(d) Roadway worker failing to notify employer of determination of improper on-track safety provisions ....... 11,000
214.315 Supervision and communication:
(a) Failure of employer to provide job Briefing ........cociiiiiiiii 8,500 11,000
(b) INCOMPIELE JOD DIETING ...ttt ettt e s bt e bt st e e be e eabeenbeeenneas 6,500 9,000
(c)(i) Failure to designate roadway worker in charge of roadway WOrk group .........ccccceecveeneeriieenneeneeseeeeen 6,500 9,000
(i) Designation of more than one roadway worker in charge of one roadway Work group .........cccecveeveeeneen. 5,000 7,500
(iii) Designation of non-qualified roadway worker in charge of roadway WOrk group .........c.ccceceevieiieeneeenen. 6,500 9,000
(d)(i) Failure to notify roadway workers of on-track safety procedures in effect ..........cccconviiiiiniininnicenn. 6,500 9,000
(i) Incorrect information provided to roadway workers regarding on-track safety procedures in effect . 6,500 9,000
(iii) Failure to notify roadway workers of change in on-track safety procedures ...........ccccoverieenieineenieeenn. 6,500 9,000
(e)(i) Failure of lone worker to communicate with designated employee for daily job briefing .........ccccooceecves | cviiiiniiiieies 7,500
(i) Failure of employer to provide means for lone worker to receive daily job briefing .........cccccoviiiiininnn. 6,500 9,000
214.317 On-track safety procedures, generally:
On-track safety rules conflict With this Part ..........coceiiiiiii e 8,500 11,000
214.319 Working limits, generally:
(a) Non-qualified roadway worker in charge of working limits ..........cccoceiiiiiiiiiiii e 8,500 11,000
(b) More than one roadway worker in charge of working limits on the same track segment ........................ 6,500 9,000
(c)(1) Working limits released without notifying all affected roadway WOrkers ..........ccccoceeriirieeneineeneeeen. 8,500 11,000
(2) Working limits released before all affected roadway workers are otherwise protected .............cccceveeeneee. 8,500 11,000
214.321 Exclusive track occupancy:
(a) Improper transmission of authority for exclusive track 0CCUPANCY ..........cccociiiiiiiiiiiiici e 7,500
(b)(1) Failure to repeat authority for exclusive track occupancy to issuing employee 7,500
(2) Failure to retain possession of written authority for exclusive track occupancy ...... 9,000
(3) Failure to record authority for exclusive track occupancy when issued ............... 9,000
(c) Limits of exclusive track occupancy not identified by proper physical features ...........ccccocieniiinncenn. 11,000
(d)(1) Movement authorized into limits of exclusive track occupancy without authority of roadway worker in
(o] - T (o 1= T TP O PO PP ST PPPURTUPTPPRPTON 8,500 11,000
(2) Movement authorized within limits of exclusive track occupancy without authority of roadway worker in
(o] - T (o 1= T TP O PO PP ST PPPURTUPTPPRPTON 8,500 11,000
(3) Movement within limits of exclusive track occupancy exceeding restricted speed without authority of
roadway WOTKEF iN CRAIGE ....ccuiiiiiiiii ettt ettt a e st eb e s bt e sae e st e esbe e e b e e e aneeanees 8,500 11,000
214.323 Foul time:
(a) Foul time authority overlapping movement authority of train or equipment 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure to repeat foul time authority to iSSUING EMPIOYEE .......coiiviiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
214.325 Train coordination:
(a) Train coordination limits established where more than one train is authorized to operate ...........cc.c.c...... 6,500 9,000
(b)(1) Train coordination established with train not visible to roadway worker at the time ...........c.cccceeeeee. 5,000 7,500
(2) Train coordination established With MOVING train ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiie e srees | eeeeeeseeeeee e 7,500
(3) Coordinated train moving without authority of roadway worker in charge ..........cccccoeciiiiiiiiniiiencee, 6,500 9,000
(4) Coordinated train releasing movement authority while working limits are in effect ..........ccccovoeriiniienn. 6,500 9,000
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214.327 Inaccessible track:
(a) Improper control of entry t0 INACCESSIDIE TrACK ........c.eoiuiiiiiiiiiiie s 6,500 9,000
(5) Remotely controlled switch not properly secured by control operator 6,500 9,000
(b) Train or equipment moving within inaccessible track limits without permission of roadway worker in
(o] 4 =T o [ PSP UURUPPRPNE 6,500 9,000
(c) Unauthorized train or equipment located within inaccessible track limits ...........ccccoeciiniiiiiniiiiencee, 6,500 9,000
214.329 Train approach warning provided by watchmen/lookouts:
(a) Failure to give timely warning of approaching TFAIN e | e 11,000
(b)(1) Failure of watchman/lookout to give full attention to detecting approach of train ..........ccccocevviniiiics | i 9,000
(2) Assignment of other duties to Watchman/IOOKOUL ...........cocuiiiiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
(c) Failure to provide proper warning Signal AEVICES ........cceeiuiiiiiiiieeiie ettt 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to maintain position to receive train approach warning signal ...........ccocceereeriiininiie e 6,500 9,000
(e) Failure to communicate proper warning SIGNal ..........cooeeiiieiiiiiierie ettt 6,500 9,000
(f)(1) Assignment of non-qualified person as watchman/IooKout ............cceviiiiriininier e 6,500 9,000
(2) Non-qualified person accepting assignment as watchman/looKoUt ..........cccocceeririeiinecninice e 5,000 7,500
(9) Failure to properly equip a watchman/IoOKOUE ..........ccceoiiiiiiiiieiie e 5,000 7,500
214.331 Definite train location:
(a) Definite train location established where prohibited ..o 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to phase out definite train location by required date .............cocoviiiiiiiiiiinec e 5,000 7,500
(d)(1) Train location information issued by unauthorized Person ...........cccceveeiiiiriiineeee e 6,500 9,000
(2) Failure to include all trains operated on train l1ocation list ...........ccocviiiiiiiiiiiin e 8,500 11,000
(5) Failure to clear track 10 minutes before earliest departure time of train at last station prior to work lo-
cation, or failure to remain clear until SUCh train PASSEA ........cooiiiiiiiiiiie et sees | eeereeeeenee e 9,000
(6) Train passing station before time shown in train location list ...........cccccoiiiiiiiiiin e, 8,500 11,000
(7) Non-qualified person using definite train location to establish on-track safety ..........ccccociiiiiiiiinncnnn. 6,500 9,000
214.333 Informational line-ups of trains:
(a) Informational line-ups of trains used for on-track safety where prohibited 8,500 11,000
(b) Informational line-up procedures inadequate to protect roadway workers ... 8,500 11,000
(c) Failure to discontinue informational line-ups by required date ............cccoveiiiiiiiiiiieie e 5,000 7,500
214.335 On-track safety procedures for roadway work groups:
(a) Failure to provide on-track safety for a member of a roadway WOrk group ........ccccceeeeeenieiieeenienieeseeeeen 8,500 11,000
(b) Member of roadway work group fouling a track without authority of employee in charge ...........ccccec...... 6,500 9,000
(c) Failure to provide train approach warning or working limits on adjacent track where required ................ 8,500 11,000
214.337 On-track safety procedures for lone workers:
(b) Failure by employer to permit individual discretion in use of individual train detection ..............cccocceenee. 8,500 11,000
(c)(1) Individual train detection used by non-qualified employee ...........ccocoviiiiiiriiiiiieiic e 6,500 9,000
(2) Use of individual train detection while engaged in heavy or distracting work .............ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiininns 5,000 7,500
(3) Use of individual train detection in controlled point or manual interlocking ..........cccoeceiiiiriiineeieeneceee, 5,000 7,500
(4) Use of individual train detection with insufficient V|S|b|I|ty .............................. 11,000
(5) Use of individual train detection with interfering noise ...... 7,500
(6) Use of individual train detection while a train is passing ............... 9,000
(d) Failure to maintain access to place of safety clear of live tracks .. 11,000
(e) Lone worker unable to maintain vigilant lookout ............c.cccocceeenee. 9,000
(f)(1) Failure to prepare written statement of on-track safety . 4,500
(2) Incomplete written statement of on-track safety .........ccccveeenene 4,500
(3) Failure to produce written statement of on-track safety to FRA 4,500
214.339 Audible warning from trains:
(a) Failure to require audible warning from traiNs ............ociiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure of train to give audible warning where required 5,000 7,500
214.341 Roadway maintenance machines:
(a) Failure of on-track safety program to include provisions for safety near roadway maintenance ma-
(o 01T PP PRPP 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure to provide operating INSIUCHONS ........ocuiiiiiiiiie et 5,000 7,500
(1) Assignment of non-qualified employee to operate machine ... 6,500 9,000
(2) Operator unfamiliar with safety instructions for machine ............ccociiiiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
(3) Roadway worker working with unfamiliar machine .............ccccoiiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
(c) Roadway maintenance machine not clear of passing trains or operation of machine component closer
than four feet to adjacent track without procedural INStructions ............coooiiiiiiiiiii e 8,500 11,000
214.343 Training and qualification, general:
(a)(1) Failure of railroad program to include training ProviSIONS ...........cccccviiiiieiiieiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
(2) Failure to provide initial trainMing .........ceoieeeieee et ettt nae e 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to provide annual traiNing ...........c.cooiiiiiiiiiii e e 6,500 9,000
(c) Assignment of non-qualified railroad employees to provide on-track safety ..........ccccceviriiininiinneenn. 6,500 9,000
(d)(1) Failure to maintain records of QuUalifications ...........cccoiiiiiiiiiiii 5,000 7,500
(2) Incomplete records of QUAlIfICAtIONS .......c.eeviiiiieiiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e nnees 5,000 7,500
(3) Failure to provide records of qualifications 10 FRA ... 5,000 7,500
214.345 Training for all rOAAWAY WOTKEIS ........iiiuiiiiiiiieeieeit ettt sttt b et sbe e sn e et e e e e saeesneenane 6,500 9,000
214.347 Training and qualification for lone workers.
214.349 Training and qualification of watchmen/lookouts.
214.351 Training and qualification of flagmen.
214.353 Training and qualification of roadway workers who provide on-track safety for roadway work groups.
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APPENDIX A TO PART 214.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

: I Willful
Section Violation violation
214.355 Training and qualification in on-track safety for operators of roadway maintenance machines.
Subpart D—On-Track Roadway Maintenance Machines and Hi-Rail Vehicles
214.503 Good-faith challenges; procedures for notification and resolution:
(a) Failure of employee to notify employer that the machine or vehicle does not comply with this subpart
or has a condition inhibiting safe OPEration .............c.coiiiiiii s | rreene e 9,000
(b) Roadway worker required to operate machine or vehicle when good-faith challenge not resolved . 8,500 11,000
(c) Failure of employer to have or follow written procedures to resolve good-faith challenges ...................... 8,500 11,000
214.505 Required environmental control and protection systems for new on-track roadway maintenance ma-
chines with enclosed cabs:
(a) Failure to equip new machines with required Systems ..........cccocieiiiiiiiiicciic i 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure of new or existing machines to protect employees from exposure to air contaminants . 8,500 11,000
(c) Failure of employer to maintain required list of machines or make list available ............ccccccoviiiiininnnn. 5,000 7,500
(d) Removal of “designated machine” from list before retired or SOId .......cc.ccooiiiiiiiiiiic e, 5,000 7,500
(e) Personal respiratory protective equipment not provided when ventilation system fails . 8,500 11,000
(f) Personal respiratory protective equipment fails to meet required standards ...........cccceeviriieniiieenneenn. 8,500 11,000
(g) Other new machines with enclosed cabs not equipped with operable heating and ventilation systems .. 8,500 11,000
(h) Non-enclosed station not equipped with covering, where feasible ...........c.ccoceiiriiiincincceeeee 8,500 11,000
214.507 Required safety equipment for new on-track roadway maintenance machines:
(a)(1)—(5) Failure to equip new machine or provide protection as specified in these paragraphs ................. 8,500 11,000
(a)(6)—(7) Failure to equip new machine with first-aid kit or operative and charged fire extinguisher ............ 6,500 9,000
(b) Position for operator to stand not properly equipped to provide safe and secure position ............cccc..... 8,500 11,000
(c) New machine not equipped with accurate speed indicator, as required ..........cccccevciiiiiiiiienicieeiee e, 6,500 9,000
(d) As-built light weight not conspicuously displayed on new maching ...........cccoceevirieiiniiicnecceseceseeee 6,500 9,000
214.509 Required visual illumination and reflective devices for new on-track roadway maintenance machines 6,500 9,000
214.511 Required audible warning devices for new on-track roadway maintenance machines ..............ccocceeuee 8,500 11,000
214.513 Retrofitting of existing on-track roadway maintenance machines; general:
(a) Failure to provide safe and secure position and protection from moving parts inside cab for each road-
way worker transported 0N MACKINE ......cooiuiiiiiiiie et e e e e e e e e s ne e e snneeesnnes 8,500 11,000
(b) Horn or other audible warning device is missing, inoperable, or has non-compliant triggering mecha-
L0115 TP U R UPPUPRPURUR 6,500 9,000
(c) Hlumination device or portable light missing, inoperable, improperly secured, or incapable of illu-
MINALING TraCk @S FEOUITET ....cueiiiiiiiiei ettt st b e et e sae e st e et e e b e e aneeeaneas 6,500 9,000
214.515 Overhead covers for existing on-track roadway maintenance machines:
(a) Failure to repair, reinstall, or maintain overhead cover as required .........ccocoeeiiiiiiiiee e 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure to provide written response to operator’'s request within 60 days ..........ccccecirieiinieieneeicneeene 5,000 7,500
214.517 Retrofitting of existing on-track roadway maintenance machines manufactured on or after January 1,
1991:
(a) Failure to equip machine with change-of-direction alarm or rearward viewing device ............cccooeevueenen. 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure to equip machine with operative heater ..o 8,500 11,000
(c) Failure to display light weight of machine as required ............ccoceeiiiiiiinieiie e 6,500 9,000
(d) Failure to equip machine with reflective material, reflective device, or operable brake lights .................. 8,500 11,000
(e) Failure to install or replace safety glass as reqUIred ..........ccocoicieiiiiiienieeee e 8,500 11,000
(f) Failure to equip machine with turntable restraint device or warning light as required 8,500 11,000
214.518 Safe and secure PoSItion fOr FIAEIS .......cooi it e e neee s 8,500 11,000
214.519 Floors, decks, stairs, and ladders for on-track roadway maintenance machines ..........cccccoeviniinieenns 8,500 11,000
214.521 Flagging equipment for on-track roadway maintenance machines and hi-rail vehicles ....................... 6,500 9,000
214.523 Hi-rail vehicles:
(a) Failure to inspect hi-rail gear anNUAILY .........cccoieiiiririinie e 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure to maintain inspection record or make record available to FRA 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to equip new hi-rail vehicle with alarm and light or beacon as required ..........c.cccocceeiieiieenieeennn. 6,500 9,000
(d)(2) Failure of operator to tag, date or report non-complying Condition ...........ccccceeveeiiiiniinieeneeee e 5,000 7,500
(d)(8) Failure to repair or replace non-complying alarms, lights or beacons as required 6,500 9,000
214.525 Towing with on-track roadway maintenance machines or hi-rail vehicles ............c.cccoooiiniiiiiniieeninenn. 8,500 11,000
214.527 On-track roadway maintenance machines; inspection for compliance and schedule for repairs:
(a) Failure of operator to check on-track roadway maintenance machine for compliance ...........ccccccceveeenee. 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure of operator to tag, date, or report noncomplying condition ............cccceriiriiiiiiiniiiceese e, 5,000 7,500
(c)(1)—(4) Failure to meet requirements for operating on-track roadway maintenance machine with non-
complying headlights, work lights, horn, fire extinguisher, alarm, warning light, or beacon ........................ 6,500 9,000
(c)(5) Failure to repair or replace defective or missing operator’'s seat within required time period .............. 8,500 11,000
214.529 In-service failure of primary braking SYSteM .........cccooiiiiiiiii s 8,500 11,000
214.531 Schedule Of rePairs; GENETAI .......c.coiiiiiiiiiiii ettt sae e sr et e et sneesneenens 6,500 9,000
214.533 Schedule of repairs subject to availability of parts:
(a)—(c) Failure to order necessary part(s), make repair(s), or remove on-track roadway maintenance ma-
chine or hi-rail vehicle from Service as reqUIrEd ...........coooiiiiiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
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APPENDIX A TO PART 214.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

. o Willful
Section Violation violation
(d) Failure to maintain record or make record available to FRA ..ot 5,000 7,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49
CFR part 214. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section, each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is
used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty
citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its

complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation, should they differ.

PART 215—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28 6. Appendix B to part 215 is revised
U.S.C. 2461. to read as follows:

5. The authority citation for part 215
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX B TO PART 215.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

: I Willful
Section Violation violation
Subpart A—General
215.9 Movement for repair:
(62 TR (< TP T PP RO PSR P PR URPTOPPRO 1 1
(o) OSSPSR $3,000 $4,500
215.11 Designation of QUalIfIEd PEISONS ......cceiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et sre e 5,000 7,500
215.13  Pre-departure iNSPECLION ......cciuiiiiiiiieciiie et et et et e et e e st e e s aeeeeasaeeesasbeeessseeesasaeeeasseeeessenennseeenn 5,000 7,500
215.103 Defective wheel:
(a) Flange thickness of:
(1) 78” or less but more than 1346” 5,000 7,500
[ I T o] gl (=TT PSS URPUPRR 6,500 9,000
(b) Flange height of:
(1) 1727 or greater but 1885 than 158" .....oceiiiii s 5,000 7,500
(2 I o T 1o (= SRS PS P RRRI 6,500 9,000
(c) Rim thickness of:
(1) 17/16” OF 1€SS bUt MOIE ThaN 5/8” ...ttt e e st e e et e e e nneeeeeneee s 5,000 7,500
(23 TS T [T RSP 6,500 9,000
(d) Wheel rim, flange plate hub width:
(1) Crack Of 18SS ThAN 17 ..ttt b e sttt e e bt e sae e sateenaeeeabeenneeenneas 5,000 7,500
(2) Crack of 1” or more .... 6,500 9,000
(B) BIBAK ...ttt R et h e e e r e e Rt e r e e nne e nen 8,500 11,000
(e) Chip or gouge in flange of:
(1) 112" or more but less than 155" in length; and 12” or more but less than %&” in width .. 3,000 4,500
(2) 15 ” or more in length; or " or MOre iN Width ..........ccociiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(f) Slid flat or shelled spot(s):
(1)(i) One spot more than 272", but less than 37, in length ... 3,000 4,500
(i) One spot 3”7 0r MOre N IENGEN .......iiiiiiii e e 5,000 7,500
(2)(i) Two adjoining spots each of which is more than 2” but less than 22" in length ...........cccceveennee. 3,000 4,500
(ii) Two adjoining spots both of which are at least 2” in length, if either spot is 22", or more in length 5,000 7,500
(o) I oL =TT o o = 4L PSPPSR 8,500 11,000
(h) Overheated; discoloration extending:
(1) more than 4”7 But 18SS than 412" ...ttt st et be et neas 5,000 7,500
(2) 42" or more 6,500 9.000
[0 IRAT L] Lo =T OO P S OTPTUROPPPRORTN 6,500 9,000
215.105 Defective axle:
(B)(1) Crack Of 17 OF IESS ..uveeieiitieiie ettt ettt h e st e bt e e bt e sae e et e e saseebeeasbeeebeesaeeenbeeenbeanseeanneas 5,000 7,500
(2) Crack of MOrE Than 17 ...ttt b ettt sae e bt esae e e bt e san e et e e r e e nnneeanees 6,500 9,000
(B) BIEEAK ...ttt et R Rt R R R e e R R e e et Rt e Rt n e nre e e e nne e e nre e e 8,500 11,000
(b) Gouge in surface that is between the wheel seats and is more than &” in depth ........cccccceviiiincenn. 3,000 4,500
(c) End collar with Crack OF DrEak .........cociiiiiiiie ettt ettt st e e e esaeeeneeas 5,000 7,500
(o ) IR o0 g T= U 01T g 1Y =T S OSSTRRR 8,500 11,000
(e) Journal surface has: a ridge; a depression; a circumferential score; corrugation; a scratch; a contin-
uous streak; pitting; rust; OF €ICHING ......coiiiiiii e e 5,000 7,500
215.107 Defective plain bearing box: general:
(2)(1) NO ViISIDIE frEE Ol ... ettt sa et et e b e e bt e san e et e e s e e neeeeneas 3,000 4,500
(2) Lubricating pad dry (no expression of oil observed when pad is compressed) ... 6,500 9,000
(b) Box lid is missing, broken, or open except to reCeive SErVICING .........ccovverieriiiiiieeiee e 3,000 4,500
(c) Contains foreign matter that can be expected to damage the bearing or have a detrimental effect on
the lubrication of the journal and DEArNNG ..ottt 5,000 7,500
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APPENDIX B TO PART 215.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

: I Willful
Section Violation violation
215.109 Defective plain bearing box: journal lubrication system:
(2) Lubricating pad Nas @ TEAI ........c.coiiiiiiiiie ettt nees 3,000 4,500
(b) Lubricating pad scorched, burned, Or glazed .............oociiiiiiiiiiiee e s 5,000 7,500
(c) Lubricating pad contains decaying or deteriorating fabriC ..........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(d) Lubricating pad has an exposed center core or metal parts contacting the journal ...........ccccoceeieenenen. 5,000 7,500
(e) Lubricating pad is missing or not in contact with the journal ..., 6,500 9,000
215.111 Defective plain bearing:
(B) MHISSING .ttt ettt ettt ea bt e et et R e btk e Rt E e R ke e e bt et Rt n e nae e n e n e r e r e e 8,500 11,000
(b) Bearing liner is loose or has piece broken out .. 5,000 7,500
(oY IO AT 4 0 1=X: 1LY ST SUPI 8,500 11,000
215.113 Defective plain bearing wedge:
(a) Missing 8,500 11,000
(b) Cracked . 5,000 7,500
(c) Broken 6,500 9,000
(d) Not located in its deSigN POSITION ........eiiiiiiiiieiie ettt naeesaee s 5,000 7,500
215.115 Defective roller bearing:
(B)(1) OVEINEAIEM ...ttt ettt he e et e esae e e bt e sae e et e e sab e e bt e eab e e nae e sateenbeeenbeennneenneas 8,500 11,000
(2)(i) CaP SCIEW(S) I00SE ....eeueieutieiieietee ettt et e st ettt e bt e e et e eae e s ate e bt e eabeesaeeanbeesabeeabeeasbeeabeesaeeeseesnbeenneeenneas 6,500 9,000
(i) Cap screw lock broken, missing or improperly applied ...........ccccoriieeririeninee e 3,000 4,500
(3) Seal is loose or damaged, or permits leakage oOf IUDFCaNt ............ccceeiiiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
(b)(1) Not inspected and tested after derailment ..o 6,500 9,000
(2) Not disassembled after derailMent ..o e 5,000 7,500
(3) Not repaired or replaced after derailment ...........coooiiiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
215.117 Defective roller bearing adapter:
[ O = 1o 1Yo o) gl o] o] =Y o TSRS 5,000 7,500
(b) Not in its design position 6,500 9,000
(o) I e T o T {2 TSI oo 1 o SRS 5,000 7,500
215.119 Defective freight car truck:
(a)(1) A side frame or bolster that is DroKEN .........c.coiiiiiiiiii e 8,500 11,000
(2)(i) Side frame or bolster with crack of: /4” or more, but less than 1” 5,000 7,500
(1) 17 0F MOF@ . e 6,500 9,000
(b) A snubbing device that is ineffective or MISSING .........ccooiiiiiiiiiiicee e 5,000 7,500
(c) Side bearing(s):
(1) Assembly MISSING OF DrOKEN .....c.uiiiiiiiiieie ettt 8,500 11,000
(2) In contact eXCePt DY AESIGN .....coiiiiiiiiiiieie e e e 6,500 9,000
(3), (4) Total clearance at one end or at diagonally opposite sides of:
(i) more than 34" but NOt MOre than 17 ... e e e snees 5,000 7,500
L I 4T 1= {1 =0 T SRS 6,500 9,000
(d) Truck spring(s):
(1) Do not maintain travel or load 5,000 7,500
{2 44T o] =T=T=T=To =] o SRR 5,000 7,500
(3) Outer truck springs broken or missing:
(1) TWO OULET SPIINGS +eutiiiutie ittt ettt ettt st eb e b e s ae e e bt e sat e et e e esb e e ebe e st e e beeeabeenaeeeaneen 5,000 7,500
(i) Three or more outer springs ...... 6,500 9,000
(e) Truck bolster-center plate interference .... 6,500 9,000
(f) Brake beam shelf SUPPOIT WOIN ........ooiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
215.121 Defective car body:
(a) Has less than 274" clearance from the top Of rail .........cccoociiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(b) Car center sill is:
[ =101 o PSP PRSPPI 8,500 11,000
[ I =T 1T I 4 Vo 0= 35 1 =V T 2SS 5,000 7,500
(3) Bent or buckled more than 272”7 in @any 6” 1eNG ........ccoiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(c) Coupler carrier that is broken Or MISSING ......cocuiiiiiiiiiie et 5,000 7,500
(d) Car door not equipped with operative safety hangers ..o e 8,500 11,000
(e)(1) Center plate NOt PrOPErlY SECUIEA ........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt sre e e esaeeeneas 8,500 11,000
(2) POrtION MISSING ..ottt ettt b e st e et e bt e s b e e e b e sae e et e e s be e s bt e saneebe e s b e e sbeeeaneas 5,000 7,500
(€)= 1o =T o SRRSO 8,500 11,000
(4) TWO OF MOIE CFACKS ....ueeiieiuiiieeettee ettt ettt e e ettt e e e be e e e et e e e e eaee e e e st e e e e abe e e e aabe e e e nee e e e neeeaanneeeaanbeessnbeeesnneeeanneen 5,000 7,500
(f) Broken sidesill, crossbearer, or body DOISIEN .........cooiiiiiiiiii s 5,000 7,500
215.123 Defective couplers:
(a) Shank bent out Of @lIGNMENT .......couiiii ettt et sae e 3,000 4,500
(b) Crack in highly stressed JUNCHON GrEa ...........ccoeiiiiririiiriieie et 5,000 7,500
(c) Coupler Knuckle broken OF CraCKEd ...........cieiiiieieiiieeciiee et e e st e e st e e e e e e e s see e e s naeesenaeeeesnnneeennseeennens 5,000 7,500
(d) Coupler knuckle pin or thrower that is missing Or INOPErative ...........ccceveeririirinieienece e 5,000 7,500
(e) Coupler retainer pin lock that is MiSSING OF BrOKEN .........cocuiiiiiiiiii s 3,000 4,500
(f) Coupler with following conditions: locklift inoperative; no anticreep protection; or coupler lock is miss-
ing, inoperative, bent, cracked, OF DIOKEN .........oooiiiiiiiei e 5,000 7,500
215.125 Defective uncoupling device 5,000 7,500
215.127 Defective draft arrangement:
(a) Draft gear that iS INOPEratiVe ...........oociiiiiiii e e e 5,000 7,500
() I e R (= A T3 o] o =Y o TSP 5,000 7,500
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APPENDIX B TO PART 215.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

Section Violation vivc\)llia!llIiuc:n
(c) End of car cushioning unit is leaking or iINOPErative ............ccouiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(d) Vertical coupler pin retainer plate missing or has missing fastener ..........ccccccooiiiiiiiiiccneeeee, 8,500 11,000
(e) Draft key or draft key retainer that is inoperative or MISSING .......cooouiiiiiiiiiiiie e 8,500 11,000
(f) Follower plate that is missing or broken 5,000 7,500
215.129 Defective CUShIONING GEVICE ......cc.eiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt et b e et sae e e be e be e e nneesaeeeteennne 5,000 7,500
P B2 01 R o T (o (Yo [ o= T PR 5,000 7,500
P e (0 B =Y o 1= = | PSP UPURRRRURN 3,000 4,500
215.303 Stenciling of restricted cars ............... 3,000 4,500
215.305 Stenciling of maintenance-of-way 3,000 4,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. Generally, when two or more violations of these regulations are
discovered with respect to a single freight car that is placed or continued in service by a railroad, the appropriate penalties set forth above are
aggregated up to a maximum of $11,000 per day. A failure to perform, with respect to a particular freight car, the predeparture inspection re-
quired by §215.13 of this Part will be treated as a violation separate and distinct from, and in addition to, any substantive violative conditions
found on the car. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to $27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See
49 CFR part 209, appendix A. Failure to observe any condition for movement set forth in paragraphs (a) and (c) of §215.9 will deprive the rail-
road of the benefit of the movement-for-repair provision and make the railroad and any responsible individuals liable for penalty under the par-
ticular regulatory section(s) concerning the substantive defect(s) present on the freight car at the time of movement. Maintenance-of-way equip-
ment not stenciled in accordance with §215.305 is subject to all requirements of this Part. See §215.3(c)(3). The penalty schedule uses section
numbers from 49 CFR part 215. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section, each item is also designated by a “pen-
alty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond to any subsection designation(s). For
convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the right, should litigation become necessary,

to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation, should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28

PART 217—[AMENDED]
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

7. The authority citation for part 217
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 217.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

8. Appendix A to part 217 is revised
to read as follows:

Section Violation vm{iﬂn

217.7 Operating Rules:

6 TSR T O RT PO R PRUROPPPRORTN $6,500 $9,000

(o) PSSR USRS 6,500 9,000

(o) IO T ST U RSSO PR PPN 6,500 9,000
217.9 Operational tests and inspections:

[C= Y I 1o - U o H PSPPSR 8,500 11,000

(o) M A TETee] (o lo] o] (T =T o 1 AN PP S U SP PO P URPTOPPRO 6,500 9,000

(c) Record of tests and INSPECHIONS .......ccueiiiiiiieiii ettt sttt sae e st et e e beesaeeenneas 8,500 11,000

(d) ANNUAT SUMIMEIY ...ttt ettt b ettt e bt e et e e be e e b e e eae e et e e sas e e bt e aab e e saeenaneenbeeeabeessneennees 8,500 11,000
217.11 Program of instruction on operating rules:

(62 PSSP 8,500 11,000

(o) TSP PURP PSPPSRI 8,500 11,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28

PART 218—[AMENDED]
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

9. The authority citation for part 218
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 218.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

10. Appendix A to part 218 is revised
to read as follows:

Section Violation A
Subpart B—Blue Signal Protection of Workmen
218.22 Utility employees:
() EMPIOYEE QUANIFICALIONS ....ccveeeeeiieeieiesieiesteete st se ettt et et eestesseesteeseese st eensesseensesseeneesaeeneesseeneansennenns $5,000 $7,500
(D) CONCUITENT SEIVICE ...coiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt et ettt e e e a et e e e bt e e e e bt e e e e abe e e s aeeeeeneeeaanneeeeanbeessnbeeesnnneeeannnen 6,500 9,000
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APPENDIX A TO PART 218.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued
Section Violation vivc\)llla!llIiuc:n
(c) Assignment conditions:
(1) NO cONtrolling I0COMOTIVE .....cuviiiiiiiiiette ettt ettt ettt s st e e sae et esneeeneen 6,500 9,000
[ T =00 o1V o2 o PSS RPPPR 6,500 9,000
(3)(4) Improper communication ........ 6,500 9,000
(5) Performing functions not listed ... 5,000 7,500
(d) TMPFOPEE FEIBASE ...ttt ettt et b et et e esae e et e e sab e e bt e sareebeeeaneeaneeeanees 5,000 7,500
(f) More than three utility employees With ONE CrEW .........cc.eiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
218.23  BIUE SIGNAI AISPIAY ...eeuriiitiiiiiiii ettt sttt na e r et e e n e e nne e e 6,500 9,000
218.24 One-person crew:
(a)(1) Equipment not coupled or insufficiently separated .............coceiiiiiiiiiiii 6,500 9,000
(2)(2) Unoccupied [0comotive Cab NOt SECUIEA ........c.ceiiuiiiuiiiiieiie ettt sttt et e b e saeeeeeas 5,000 7,500
(b) Helper service .......ccccocveviiiiieniciec e 6,500 9,000
218.25 Workmen on a main track 6,500 9,000
218.27 Workmen on track other than main track:
(a) Protection provided except that signal not displayed at SWItCh ............ccocceeiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 6,500 9,000
() IR taL e T8 e o T (=Y O OO US O SUSTPPROUPTOPPRO 5,000 7,500
218.29 Alternate methods of protection:
(a)(1) protection provided except that signal not displayed at SWItCh ........cc.ccociiiiiiiiiiiiiieen 6,500 9,000
(8)(2) TNIOUGN (B)(8) -veeveeeteeeutietie ettt ettt et et et e st et e s et e bt e s ate e et e eabeeeaeeeab e e eaeeeabeeesbeebeesaneebeeeabeenneeenneas 6,500 9,000
(b)(1) Protection provided except that signal not displayed at switch . 6,500 9,000
(0)(2) through (D)(4) «.eoveeeeereeeeeeee e e 6,500 9,000
(o) I8 LTI 0] 0 [T - U OSSPSR 5,000 7,500
(o) I =g T=Tge LT (oY LT o T U PSP S T SOPRR 6,500 9,000
218.30 Remotely controlled switches:
[C= Y IE=LaTo I (o) SRS RTOPPRI 5,000 7,500
(o) ISR 1,500 2,500
Subpart C—Protection of Trains and Locomotives
218.35 Yard limits:
[E Y=Ll I (o) TSRS P P UPPTUROPPPROPIN 3,000 4,500
(o TSRS 3,000 4,500
218.37 Flag protection:
PSSR 1,500 2,500
(o) =Tl I (<) USSP O R TP U P RPPTUROPPTPRRPPIN 1,500 2,500
P T e I o 18143 o T o] =Y = o) 1= SR 6,500 9,000
218.41 Noncompliance with hump Operations FUIE ............cccceiiiiiiiiiiiie s 6,500 9,000
Subpart D—Prohibition Against Tampering With Safety Devices
218.55  TAMPEIING ..eiitiiitietie ittt ettt et s bt bt e st e e be e e bt e be e e b e she e et e e e bs e e bt e ehne e be e nan e e be e ene e saeenreentne | tereesseeeareesaeenes 11,000
218.57 (i) Knowingly operating or permitting operation of disabled equipment ..........c.ccociiiiiriieniinie e 3,000 | oo
(i) Willfully operating or permitting operation of disabled equipment ... | e 4,500
218.59 Operation of disabled EQUIPMENT .........oiiiiiii et s sae e sneenaes 3,000 4,500

1 Except as provided for in §218.57, a penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the
right to assess a penalty of up to $27,000 for any violation where the circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. The penalty
schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 218. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section, each item is also
designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond to any sub-
section designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the right, should
litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation, should they

differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20140,
21301, 21304, 21311; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note;
and 49 CFR 1.49(m).

12. Appendix A to part 219 is revised
to read as follows:

PART 219—[AMENDED]

11. The authority citation for part 219
continues to read as follows:

PENALTY SCHEDULE !

Appendix A to Part 219—Schedule of
Civil Penalties

The following chart lists the schedule of
civil penalties:

: I Willful
Section Violation violation
Subpart A—General
219.3 Application:
Railroad does nNot have requUIred PrOGIAM ........ccceoiereereeeereeie e e e ste s ee e sreeeeseeeeesreeneesaeeneesaeeneesseeneensenneenes $5,000 $7,500
219.11 General conditions for chemical tests:
(b)(1) Employee unlawfully refuses to participate in testing .........ccccceiiiiiiiii i 8,500 11,000
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PENALTY SCHEDULE 1—Continued

: I Willful
Section Violation violation
(b)(2) Employer fails to give priority to medical treatment ............ccociiiiiiiiiiiec e 8,500 11,000
(b)(3) Employee fails to remain available .............coooiiiiiiiiii s 8,500 11,000
(b)(4) Employee tampers With SPECIMEN .......coouiiiiiiii et 8,500 11,000
(d) Employee unlawfully required to execute a waiver of rights ..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(e) Railroad used or authorized the use of coercion to obtain SPECIMENS ........cceveiriiieriiieeeceee e 1,500 2,500
(g) Failure to meet supervisory training requirements or program of instruction not available or program
{01 o700 1] o] 1= (= S 6,500 9,000
(h) Urine or blood specimens provided for Federal testing were used for non-authorized testing 8,500 11,000
219.23 Railroad policies:
(a) Failure to provide written notice of FRA 1ESt ..o 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to provide written notice of basis for FRA €St .......c.uiieiiirieiie e 3,000 4,500
(c) Use of subpart C form for 0ther teSt .........cceiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(d) Failure to provide educational MaterialS ............ccocuieiriiieeiiiee e e e e e e e s rneeeeenees 1,500 2,500
(e) Educational materials fail to explain requirements of this part and/or include required content ............... 1,500 2,500
(f) Non-Federal provisions are clearly described as independent authority ...........cccccviiiiiniiiniieee, 1,500 2,500
Subpart B—Prohibitions
219.101 Alcohol and drug use prohibited:
Employee violates PronibitionN(S) .......c.ceeeciiiiiiiiiieiie ittt 8,500 | ..oociiiiiiie,
219.103 Prescribed and over-the-counter drugs:
(a) Failure to train employee properly 0N reqUIrEMENTS .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 5,000 7,500
219.104 Responsive Action:
(a) Failure to remove employee from covered service immediately ...........ccocveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e, 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure to provide notice for removal 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to provide prompt hearing ............ 8,500 11,000
(d) Employee improperly returned 10 SEIVICE ........ciiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt st sbe e 8,500 11,000
219.105 Railroad’s duty to prevent violations:
(a) Employee improperly permitted to remain in COVEred SEIVICE ........coiiiiriieiiiiiiiieieeiee e 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure to exercise due diligence to assure compliance with prohibition .............cccociiiiiiinii, 6,500 9,000
219.107 Consequences of unlawful refusal:
(a) Failure to disqualify an employee for nine months following a refusal ...........cccoeviiiiiniiiiincceecee, 8,500 11,000
(e) Employee unlawfully returned t0 SEIVICE .......cocuiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt st 8,500 11,000
Subpart C—Post-Accident Toxicological Testing
219.201 Events for which testing is required:
(a) Failure to test after qualifying event (each employee not tested is a violation) ..........cccceveeviiiiinnccenen. 8,500 11,000
(c)(1)(i) Failure to make good faith determination ...........cccocvevireiienieicneeeseeee 5,000 7,500
(c)(1)(ii) Failure to provide requested decision report to FRA .........ccoiiiiiiiiiiie e 1,500 2,500
(c)(2) Testing performed after NON-qQUAlIfyiNg BVENL ........ccceiiiiiiiiieee e 8,500 11,000
219.203 Responsibilities of railroads and employees:
(@)(1)(i) and (a)(2)(i) Failure to properly test/exclude from teStiNG ........ccccceveeririiininiere e 5,000 7,500
(a)(1)(ii) and (a)(2)(ii) Non-covered service employee teSted ...........ccoviiiiiiiiieiiieniieeee e 5,000 7,500
(b)(1) Delay in obtaining specimens due to failure to make every reasonable effort ............cccccovnieiininiens 3,000 4,500
(c) Independent medical facility Not UtiliZed ...........ccocviiiiiiiiiii s 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to report event or contact FRA when intervention required 1,500 2,500
219.205 Specimen collection and handling:
(a) Failure to observe requirements with respect to specimen collection, marking and handling .................. 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to provide properly prepared forms with specimens 1,500 2,500
(d) Failure to promptly or properly forward SPECIMENS .......ccviciiiiiiieiiiieeseee e 5,000 7,500
219.207 Fatality:
(C Y=L V1= (oI (=T AU P USSP UROPRPRORN 6,500 9,000
(a)(1) Failure to ensure timely collection and shipment of required specimens .. 1,500 2,500
(b) Failure to request assistance WhEN NECESSANY ........ccciiiriiiiiiiieiieeesese et e 5,000 7,500
219.209 Reports of tests and refusals:
(a)(1) Failure to provide telephOniC FEPOIt ........ccciiiriiriie e 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to provide written report of refusal to test .........cccccovriiiiieniiiniciee 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to maintain report explaining why test not conducted within 4 hours 3,000 4,500
219.211 Analysis and follow-up:
(c) Failure of MRO to report review of positive results to FRA ........c.ooiiiiiieiincee e 1,500 2,500
Subpart D—Testing for Cause
219.300 Mandatory reasonable suspicion testing:
(a)(1) Failure to test when reasonable suspicion Criteria Met ..........cccoccevieiiirieiie e 8,500 11,000
(a)(2) Tested when reasonable suspicion criteria NOt Met ...........cociiiiiiiiii e 8,500 11,000
219.301 Testing for reasonable cause:
(a) Event did not occur during daily TOUF .........ccuiiiiiiii e e 6,500 9,000
(b)(2) Tested when accident/incident criteria NOt MEt ..........oeeiiiiiiiiii e 8,500 11,000
(b)(3) Tested when operating rules violation criteria not met ... 8,500 11,000
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PENALTY SCHEDULE '—Continued
: I Willful
Section Violation violation
219.302 Prompt specimen collection:
(a) Specimen collection not conducted PromMPLIY .........cccueiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
Subpart E—ldentification of Troubled Employees
219.401 Requirement for policies:
(b) Failure to publish and/or implement required POLICY .........cccoiiiieriiiiererer e 5,000 7,500
219.407 Alternate policies:
(c) Failure to file agreement or other document or provide timely notice or revocation .............cccccecvvnieeneen. 5,000 7,500
Subpart F—Pre-Employment Tests
219.501 Pre-employment tests:
(a) Failure to perform pre-employment drug test before first time employee performs covered service ........ 5,000 7,500
Subpart G—Random Testing Programs
219.601 Railroad random drug programs:
(a)(1) Failure to file @ randOM PrOGraM ......ccc.eiiriirirrerie ettt n e e n e sre e e sr e e e renene e 6,500 9,000
(a)(2) Failure to file amendmMENt 10 PrOGraM .........cciriiririieri ettt ettt n e e esr e e 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to meet random testing CrtEra ..........couiiiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
(b)(1)(i) Failure to use a neutral SEIECHION PrOCESS .......ceiiiuiiiiiiiiiaiiieeeiiee et e e e e e ae e e s bt e e seabeeessnreeesnees 8,500 11,000
(b)(2)(i)(B) Testing not spread throughout the YEar ...........ccccccuiiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(b)(3) Testing not distributed throughout the day ..........c.cociiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(b)(4) Advance notice provided t0 EMPIOYEE ......ccceiiiiiiiiiiiieie s 8,500 11,000
(b)(6) Testing when employee NOt ON AULY ........oiiiiiiiiiiee et 6,500 9,000
219.601A Failure to include covered service employee iN POOI ........cceiiiiiiiiiieeiiieee e 5,000 7,500
219.602 Administrator’'s determination of drug testing rate:
(f) Total number of tests below minimum random drug testing rate ..........ccocceereeriiiiieiieee e 6,500 9,000
219.603 Participation in drug testing:
Failure to document reason for not testing selected employee ..o, 5,000 7,500
219.607 Railroad random alcohol programs:
(a)(1) Failure to file a random alcohol Program ...........c.ccoociiiiiiiii i e 5,000 7,500
(a)(2) Failure to file amendment t0 PrOGramM .......c.ciiiiiiiiiiiie et 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to meet random teStNG CrtErIA .........coiviiiiiiiiiie e e 8,500 11,000
(b)(1) Failure to use a neutral SEIECION PrOCESS .....cccuuiiiiiiiieeiiie et e reee et ee e e e st e e s aeeessbeeeesnseeesnneeeeanees 6,500 9,000
(b)(5) Testing when employee NOt ON AULY ........ooiiiiiiiiiiee e et 5,000 7,500
(b)(8) Advance notice provided t0 EMPIOYEE ........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiie s 8,500 11,000
219.607A Failure to include covered service employee iN POOI ........ceeiiiiiiiiiieeiieee e 6,500 9,000
219.608 Administrator's determination of random alcohol testing rate:
(e) Total number of tests below minimum random alcohol testing rate ..........ccccoeoiiiiiiiini i, 6,500 9,000
219.609 Participation in alcohol testing:
Failure to document reason for not testing selected employee ..o, 5,000 7,500
Subpart H—Drug and Alcohol Testing Procedures
219.701 Standards for drug and alcohol testing:
(a) Failure to comply with part 40 procedures in subpart B, D, F, or G testing .. 1,500 2,500
(b) Testing not performed in @ tiMely MANNET ........coiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
Subpart —Annual Report
219.801 Reporting alcohol misuse prevention program results in a management information system:
(a) Failure to submit MIS report ON tIME ....c..eoiiiiiiiiie ettt et sae e 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to submit accurate MIS report .. 3,000 4,500
(d) Failure to include reqUIred AatA .........cccceoiiiiriirtii et e e 1,500 2,500
219.803 Reporting drug misuse prevention program results in a management information system:
(c) Failure to submit accurate MIS rEPOM .........coouiiiriiiiii ettt 3,000 4,500
(d) Failure to submit MIS report on report ... 3,000 4,500
(e) Failure to include requIred At ...........cccceiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 1,500 2,500
Subpart J—Recordkeeping Requirements
219.901 Retention of Alcohol Testing Records:
(a) Failure to maintain records required to be kept by part 40 .........ccooiiiiiiieiiie e 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to maintain records required to be kept for five Years ..........ccccoviiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to maintain records required to be kept for tWo Years ..........ccceceiiiiininiene e 5,000 7,500
219.903 Retention of Drug Testing Records:
(a) Failure to maintain records required to be kept by part 40 .........ccoccoiiiiiiiiiiiii 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to maintain records required to be kept for five Years ... 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to maintain records required to be kept for tWo years ... 5,000 7,500

219.905 Access to facilities and records:
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PENALTY SCHEDULE 1—Continued

. o Willful
Section Violation violation
(a) Failure to release records in this subpart in accordance with part 40 ...........ccocceeieiiiinin i, 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to permit access t0 faCIlItIES .........cociiiiiiiiiiiee s 8,500 11,000
(c) Failure to provide access to results of railroad alcohol and drug testing programs ..........ccccoeceeieenieeeneen. 8,500 11,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The FRA Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of
up to $27,000 for any violation, including ones not listed in this penalty schedule, where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix
A.

PART 220—[AMENDED]
13. The authority citation for part 220

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20102-20103, 20107,
21301-21302, 21304, 21311; 28 U.S.C. 2461,
note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX C TO PART 220.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

14. Appendix C to part 220 is revised
to read as follows:

: I Willful
Section Violation violation

220.9 ReqUIremMeENts fOr trAINS ........c.iieiiiiiiriee ettt ettt ettt et bt e e s re e e nn e e e nenan e $8,500 $11,000
220.11 Requirements fOr roadWay WOTKEIS .........cciouiiiiiiiiiicie e s s 6,500 9,000
220.21 Railroad Operating rules; radio communications:

(62 SRS 8,500 11,000

(o) RSO O ST RTP U R TPPUROPPPRRPPIN 6,500 9,000
220.23 Publication of radio iNfOrMatioN ..o e 5,000 7,500
220.25 INStruction Of EMPIOYEES ........ooiiiiiiie e 8,500 11,000
220.27  1AENEFICATION ...ttt a et h e ea ettt e e et bt e eh et ehe e nan et e e et naneene e e 6,500 9,000
220.29 Statement of letters @and NUMDEIS ..........ciiiiiiiriee et n e 6,500 9,000
220.31 Initiating @ tranSMISSION ........coeiiiieeceee e e e s e e s 3,000 4,500
220.33 Receiving @ tranSMISSION ........coiiiiiiiiieiiie it e st b e s sbe s s et s san e e 5,000 7,500
220.35 ENAiNG @ tranSMISSION .......ccouiiiiiiiiiiii it e e s se e s e e e e n e 5,000 7,500
220.37  VOICE tEST ... et st s se e ne e 6,500 9,000
220.39  ContiNUOUS MONITOMING ....cueiiiiieiiiiiei e e s e e s re e e e sre e e enne e 5,000 7,500
220.41 [Reserved].
220.43 Communication consistent With the TUIES ..........cociiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
220.45 Complete COMMUNICATIONS ........oouiiiiiriiiitie ettt nae e bt e nreenenneeanene 8,500 11,000
P2 O A 4y T=T o =T Lo 1= TSRO 8,500 11,000
220.49 Switching, backing OF PUSNING .....cceiiiiiiiie et sn e e 8,500 11,000
220.51  Signal INAICALIONS .......coiiiiiiiiee e e e e 6,500 9,000
220.61 Radio transmission of mandatory direCtiVes ... 8,500 11,000

1A penalty may be assessed against and only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to $27,000
for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

PART 221—[AMENDED]

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

15. The authority citation for part 221
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX C TO PART 221.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

16. Appendix C to part 221 is revised
to read as follows:

: N Willful
Section Violation violation

221.13 Marking device display:

(a) device not present, not displayed, or not properly illuminated ............ccceiiiiiiriiinieii e $5,000 $7,500

(d) device t00 Close 10 rail .......cccceeiieiiiiiiiiee e 3,000 4,500
221.14 Marking devices: Use of unapproved or noncomplying device 3,000 4,500
221.15 Marking device inspection:

(a) Failure to iNSPECt at CrEW ChANGE .......oiiiiiiiieiieeie ettt 3,000 4,500

() (&) I T4 o (o] o= g g T o= i o] o TSRS OPPR 3,000 4,500
221.16 Inspection procedure:

(a) Failure to 0btain ProtECHON .........ooiiiiieie ettt sttt e e e e it e s ateesbe e e beesaneenneas 5,000 7,500

(D) IMPrOPEI PrOTECHON ...ttt ettt et b e et e sae e et e e seb e e bt e saneebeeeaneenbeeeaneas 5,000 7,500
221.17 Movement of defective EQUIPIMENT ..........oo i ettt et sae e e e nens 15,000 17,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. Where the conditions for movement of defective
equipment set forth in §221.17 of this Part are not met, the movement constitutes a violation of §221.13 of this part.
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PART 222—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20153, 18. Appendix G to part 222 is revised
21301, 21304; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 to read as follows:
17. The authority citation for part 222 GFR 1.49.

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX G TO PART 222.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

: I Willful
Section Violation violation
Subpart B—Use of Locomotive Horns
222.21 Use of locomotive horn:
(a) Failure to sound horn at grade CrOSSING .....ceveeeerereerieriereereeee st eeesteeseesseeseesseeseenseeneensesneensesseeeesseeneenn $5,000 $7,500
Failure to sound horn in proper pattern ... 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to sound horn at least 15 and no more than 20 seconds before crossing 3,000 4,500
Routine sounding of the locomotive horn more than Va-mile in advance of crossing ..............cccccevviiiiiiins 3,000 4,500
222.33
Failure to sound horn when conditions of §222.33 are not met ... 6,500 9,000
222.45
Routine sounding of the locomotive horn at a grade crossing within a quiet zone .............ccccceeiiiiiniins 3,000 4,500
222.49
(b) Failure to provide Grade Crossing Inventory Form information ............ccccooiiiniiiiiiiiii e, 1,500 2,500
222.59
(d) Routine sounding of the locomotive horn at a grade crossing equipped with wayside horn .................... 1,500 2,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

PART 223—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20102-03, 20133, 20. Appendix B to part 223 is revised
20701-20702, 21301-02, 21304; 28 U.S.C. to read as follows:
19. The authority citation for part 223 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX B TO PART 223.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

. o Willful
Section Violation violation
223.9 New or rebuilt equipment:
(B) LOCOMOTIVES ..ttt ettt ettt h bt b e bt b e e skt e et e bt e et nhe e e e nr e e inenne e e enrensnenne $3,000 $4,500
(b) Cabooses ....... 3,000 4,500
(c) Passenger cars 3,000 4,500
(d)(1), (d)(2):
(i) Window not marked or inStructions N0t POSIEA .........ccceeiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(ii) Window improperly marked or instructions improperly posted ...........cccoviriiiriiniienieeeee e 3,000 4,500
223.11(C) EXIStING I0COMOLIVES .....cueiiiiiiiiieieet ettt nre e bt eeesn e eeennenenens 3,000 4,500
(d) REPAIT Of WINAOW ...ttt a et a ettt e sae et e e e ab e e sae e st e e b e e e b e e anneenneen 1,500 2,500
223.13(C) EXIStING CADOOSES .....cviiuiiiieiieitieie ettt ettt ettt b ekt n ettt be e n e s bt e nenne e e e nneeanene 3,000 4,500
(d) REPAIT Of WINAOW ...ttt a et sa et e st e e bt e e b e e sae e et e et e e e b e e snneenneas 1,500 2,500
223.15(C) EXIStING PASSENGET CAIS ...c.viiueitieiietieiieeti et sttt sttt h et sh e bt e ettt e ettt e e naeeaeesre e e e nneennenneeanene 3,000 4,500
(d) REPAIT Of WINAOW ...ttt a et sa et e st e e bt e e b e e sae e et e et e e e b e e snneenneas 1,500 2,500
223.17 Identification Of UNItS .........ooiiii e s e s 1,500 2,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 U.S.C. 21301, 21304, and 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. The penalty schedule
uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 223. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section, each item is also des-
ignated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond to any subsection
designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the right, should litigation
become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation, should they differ.

PART 224—[AMENDED)] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20148 22. Appendix A to part 224 is revised
and 21301; 28 U.S.C. 2461; and 49 CFR 1.49.  to read as follows:
21. The authority citation for part 224

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 224.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES!

: N Willful
Section Violation violation
224.103 Characteristics of retroreflective sheeting:
(a)—(d) Retroreflective sheeting applied does not meet the requirements of §224.103 ..........cccccceviieiieennen. $3,000 $4,500
224.105 Sheeting dimensions and QUANTIEY .......c.eoiiiiiiiiiieie et b e e saee e neee 3,000 4,500
(a) Failure to apply minimum amount of retroreflective sheeting in accordance with Table ...........c.ccccceenee. 3,000 4,500
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APPENDIX A TO PART 224.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES™—Continued

: o Willful
Section Violation violation
(b) Applying retroreflective sheeting of wWrong dimeNSIONS ...........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
224.106 Location of retroreflective sheeting:
(a), (b) Applying retroreflective sheeting in nonconforming Pattern ............ccoceeveiriereenie e 3,000 4,500
224.107 Implementation schedule:
(a)(1), (b)(1) Failure to apply retroreflective sheeting to new freight car or locomotive before equipment
o F=Tot=Yo [N T WE=T=T oV (ot RUPUPRTI 3,000 4,500
(a)(2), (b)(2), (b)(4) Failure to apply retroreflective sheeting to existing freight car or locomotive in accord-
ance with minimum schedule of paragraphs, (a)(2), (D)(2), (D)(4) ..eeooiiiiiieii s 3,000 4,500
224.109 Inspection, repair, and replacement:
(@)(1) Failure to perform INSPECHION .........coiiiiiiiii et st 3,000 4,500
(2) Failure to properly notify car owner of defECE .........oouiiiiiiiii s 3,000 4,500
(3) Failure to retain written notification of defect for two years ..., 3,000 4,500
(4) Failure to repair defect after NOLIfICAtION .........c.ceoeiiieiiiiie e e e enees 3,000 4,500
(b)(1) Failure to perform INSPECHION .........coiiiiiiiii et e 3,000 4,500
[ I = VLT (o T (=Y oX= L e =Y {1 OSSR 3,000 4,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49
CFR part 224. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section, each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is
used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty
citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its
complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation, should they differ.

PART 225—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 103, 322(a), 20103, 24. Appendix A to part 225 is revised
20107, 20901-02, 21301, 21302, 21311; 28 to read as follows:
23. The authority citation for part 225  {7.5.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 225.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

Section Violation v?glllellltfiuc:n

225.9 Telephonic reports of certain accidents/INCIAENES .........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiii e $1,500 $2,500
225.11 Reports of aCCidentS/INCIAENES .........ccuiiiiiiiiieiii ettt sne e e 6,500 9,000
225.12(a):

Failure to file Railroad Employee Human Factor Attachment properly.

(1) EMPIOYEE IAENTITIEA ..ottt s b e e et nbe e 6,500 9,000

(2) NO emPployee IdENTTIEA .....cc.oiueieieieiee ettt r e e 3,000 4,500
225.12(b):

(1) Failure to notify employee PropPerlY .......c..ooiioiiiiiie ettt 6,500 9,000

(2) Notification of employee not involved in accident 6,500 9,000
225.12(c):

Failure of employing railroad to provide requested information Properly ........ccccooceereeiiiininiieene e 1,500 2,500
225.12(d):

(1) Failure to revise report when identity becomes KNOWN ..........ccoociiiiiiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000

(2) Failure to notify after late identifiCcation ............cooiiiiiiiie s 6,500 9,000
225.12(f)(1):

Submission of notice if employee dies as result of the reported accident ............ccccevciiiiiiiiiiciec e 6,500 9,000
225.12(g):

Willfully false accident statement by emplOyee ...........c.ooiiiiiiiiii i es | eesee e 9,000
P2 T T IR (N (=Y oo o T PP P TP TSP PP VRPOPPRPPTN: 1,500 2,500
225.17(d) Alcohol or drug involvement . 8,500 11,000
225.23 Joint operations ............ccceceeuee. M 1
225.25 RECOIAKEEPING ...uviviiieiiiiiiieitiiie sttt sttt e e s s a e a e e b e e e e e e e e r e e n e e 5,000 7,500
225.27  RetentiON Of FECOIUS ....o.viiiiiieeeriiceeei et n e s reen e s re e e e sre e e nneenne e 1,500 2,500
225.33:

(1) Failure to adopt the Internal Control PIan ...........cooiiiiiiiiiioi e 6,500 9,000

(2) Inaccurate reporting due to failure to comply with the Internal Control Plan ..........cccccoiiiiiinininnecen, 6,500 9,000

(3) Failure to comply with the intimidation/harassment policy in the Internal Control Plan ..........c.cccccoeveeiine 6,500 9,000
225.35 ACCESS t0 reCOrdS @Nd FEPOMS .....ocveiiiiiitieiieeti ettt ettt et ettt sa e et e e s e st e bt e saeeesbe e sareeabeeeaneesnnesneenens 8,500 11,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. A failure to comply with § 225.23 constitutes a viola-
tion of §225.11. For purposes of §§225.25 and 225.27 of this part, each of the following constitutes a single act of noncompliance: (1) a missing
or incomplete log entry for a particular employee’s injury or iliness; or (2) a missing or incomplete log record for a particular rail equipment acci-
dent or incident. Each day a violation continues is a separate offense. The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 225. If
more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section, each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate
assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite
the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR
citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation, should they differ.
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Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 21101—

PART 228—[AMENDED]
21108; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note and 49 CFR 1.49.

25. The authority citation for part 228
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX B TO PART 228.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

26. Appendix B to part 228 is revised
to read as follows:

: I Willful
Section Violation violation
Subpart B—Records and Reporting
Pt e I o T 11 T=To I =Yoo (o K- TSSOSO $5,000 $7,500
228.11 Hours of duty records 1,500 2,500
228.17 Dispatcher’s record .........cccoceecieens 5,000 7,500
228.19  Monthly reports Of EXCESS SEIVICE ...cc.eiiiuiiiiiiitieiiteitie ettt ettt et saee bt e st e bt e saee e bt e sabeesbeeanneesaeesneenans 1,500 2,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20102-20103, 20107,
20133, 20137-20138, 20143, 20701-20703,
21301-21302, 21304; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note;
and 49 CFR 1.49 (c), (m).

PART 229—[AMENDED]

27. The authority citation for part 229
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX B TO PART 229.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

28. Appendix B to part 229 is revised
to read as follows:

Section 2 Violation it
Subpart A—General
229.7 Prohibited acts: Safety deficiencies not governed by specific regulations: To be assessed on relevant
LE22  ORPUP TR $1,500-6,500 | $2,500-9,000
229.9 Movement of NONCOMPIYING I0COMOLIVES .......coiiiiiiiiiiiieii ettt U 1
229.11  Locomotive iIdeNntifiCatiON .........cccciieiiiiiiiieere e e e 1,500 2,500
229.13  CONtrol Of IOCOMOLIVES ......coiviiiieiiciieeti ettt et e e s re e e s re e e nneeene e 5,000 7,500
229.17  ACCIAENT FEPOMS ...t e st e e e e e b e e s e e s sbe s s aa e et e e s an e san e sane e e 3,000 4,500
219,19 PHON WAIVEIS ...ttt ettt st e h e s e e b e e s b e s he e et e e s hs e e b e e s ae e e sbe e s an e e sbeesan e e sanesaneesans U U
Subpart B—Inspection and Tests
229.21 Daily inspection:
(a)(b):
(1) INSPECHION OVEIAUE ...ttt ettt a et b et eae e et e sas e et e e eae e e ene e et e e nbe e et e nnneennees 3,000 4,500
(2) Inspection report not made, improperly executed, or not retained 1,500 2,500
(c) Inspection not performed by a qualified PEISON .........ooiuiiiiiiiii e 1,500 2,500
229.23 Periodic inspection: General
(a)(b):
(1) INSPECHION OVEIAUE .....eoeiiiiiiieieeete ettt r e sr e e nr e e e s n e se e neeeeennenaeenis 3,000 4,500
(2) Inspection performed improperly or at a location where the underneath portion cannot be safely
1 oY1 (=T SRS 3,000 4,500
(c)(d):
(1) FOIM MISSING ..ttt ettt h e ettt e s e e bt e eae e e bt e eat e e bt e eab e e sae e sabeenseeeabeennneenneas 1,500 2,500
(2) Form not properly displayed 1,500 2,500
(B) FOrm improperly EXECULEM ........cooiiiiiiiii ettt ettt et e b e st e et e e bt e e beesneeenneas 1,500 2,500
(e) Replace Form FRA F 6180—-49A by ADKl 2 ... s 1,500 2,500
(f) Secondary record of the information reported on Form FRA F 6180.49A .......cciiiiiirieiinece e 1,500 2,500
229.25
(a) through (e)(4) Tests: Every periodiC INSPECION .......c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiiecie e 3,000 4,500
(€)(5) Ineffective MAINTENANCE ........c.oiiiiiiee et sttt st et b e sbeeeanees 6,500 9,000
229.27 Annual tests 3,000 4,500
229.29 Biennial tests 3,000 4,500
229.31
(a) Biennial hydrostatic tests Of MaiN rESEIVOIIS .........coocuiiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(b) Biennial hammer tests Of MaIN FESEIVOIIS .........iiiiiiiiiiieeiie ettt sb e sae e 3,000 4,500
(c) Drilled telltale holes in welded MaiN FESEIVOIIS ........c.eoiiiiiiieiiiiiie ettt et 3,000 4,500
(d) Biennial tests of aluminum MaIN FESEIVOIIS ........cceiiiiiiiiiiie ettt st e saeeeeeas 3,000 4,500
229.33  OUE-Of-USE CIAIL ....veiueiiiiieitieeeste ettt sttt r e b et s b et e e e bt ean e nre e e sreesnesne e e ennennnenns 1,500 2,500
Subpart C—Safety Requirements
229.41 Protection against Personal iNJUIY .........cccoiiiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt sne e 5,000 7,500
229.43 Exhaust and battery gases 5,000 7,500
229.45 General condition: To be assessed based on relevant factS ........ccccceeveeeiiiiiiiiie e cccceee e 1,500-6,500 2,500-9,000
229.46  BraKeS: GENEIAI ...ccccuevieeiie e e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e eab e e e e e e e ee e bateeeeeeeaeaba—aeaeeeeaaanraraaeeeaaararareeeeeannres 5,000 7,500
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APPENDIX B TO PART 229.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued
Section 2 Violation vi\glllgtfiu(;n
229.47 EMErgenCy Drake VAIVE .......c.oooiiiiiiiiiii ittt ettt ettt 5,000 7,500
229.49 Main reservoir system:
(2)(1) Main resServoir SAfELY VAIVE .........ooiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt naeeeneas 5,000 7,500
(2) Pneumatically actuated CONIOl FESEIVOIN .......ccuiiiueiiiiiiie ittt sttt sttt saeeeneas 5,000 7,500
(D)(C) MaIN FESEIVOIT QOVEINOIS ...ciuiiiiiiiieeiie et ee sttt e sttt e is e eae e et e e st e eab e e sae e et e e sabeebeessbeesaeesabeeabeeenbeesnneenneas 5,000 7,500
229.51  AlUMINUM MEIN FESEIVOIIS ..eeiiuiiieiiutieeeiiee e ettt e e sttt e ettt e e e et e e e be e e s aare e e e neeeeasneeeeasbeeeasseeeaaseeeeannneeanneeeannneean 5,000 7,500
229.53  BraKe QAUJES ...ueiiiiiiiii ittt e e e b e e b e e b s s e e s ne e 5,000 7,500
P LS e 1= (o) I £ = V7= PR UPRPN 5,000 7,500
229.57 Foundation Brake GEAI ..ottt ettt re e 5,000 7,500
229.59  LEAKAGE ..eiueiiiiiitiet ettt e e b b e e b e e e b e e bt e e h e e b e e ha e he e na e et e e e n e e e nne e 5,000 7,500
P2t B D - U =3 V= =Y o T USRI 3,000 4,500
229.63  Lateral MOION ...oocoiiiiiiiiiie et e et e e e e et e e e e e e e et —— e e e e e e e e et ———eaeeeeaaanraraaeeeaaararareaeeaaannes 3,000 4,500
229.64 Plain bearing ... 3,000 4,500
229.65 Spring rigging .. 3,000 4,500
229.87  TIUCKS ...eeitieeieiei ettt e e e et e e e s e e e a e e e e R e e e e Re e e R e e e e Rt e e Rt ean e nre e r e e e e re e e ne e 5,000 7,500
229.69  SIAE DEAMNGS ...euteiiiieiiie ittt ettt ettt ettt h ettt ehe e e bt e h et e bt sa et e bt e ea bt e bt e ea et e nhe e eabeeabe e e beenaneeteenane 5,000 7,500
229.71 Clearance above top of rail . 1,500 2,500
229.73  WHEEI SBS ...ttt ettt ettt h et e et e e st e e e e ae e e e e n et e e R R e e e e R R e e e e Rn e e e ane e e e annn e e e nneeeenree s 5,000 7,500
229.75 Wheel and tire defects:
(a), (d) Slid flat or shelled spot(s):
(1) One spot 272" or more but less than 3”7 iN 18NGE .........coiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(2) One spot 3”7 0r MOre iN IENGN ..o 6,500 9,000
(3) Two adjoining spots each of which is 2” or more in length but less than 2'2” in length 5,000 7,500
(4) Two adjoining spots each of which are at least 2” in length, if either spot is 2'2” or more in length 6,500 9,000
(b) Gouge or chip in flange of:
(1) more than 12" but less than 1%&” in length; and more than 2” but less than %&” in width ............. 5,000 7,500
(2) 154&” or more in length and 5/8” or More in WIdth .........cocoiiiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
(oY =10 T T 11 PSP TOP U RTOPP 8,500 11,000
() IS T=: LT A TR =Y Lo PSPPSR STOPP 5,000 7,500
(f) Flange thickness of:
(1) 78”7 0or 1ess but MOre than 13/16” ........oiiieiieeee e e nn e e 5,000 7,500
[ I T o] gl (=TT PSS URPUPRT 6,500 9,000
(9) Tread WO NOIOW ..o e ettt st e e ba e e sb e s r e e sbe e s e e sbeeeaneas 5,000 7,500
(h) Flange height of:
(1) 1727 or greater but 1855 than 158" ....c..ei i e 5,000 7,500
(20 I o T 1o = PSSRSO 6,500 9,000
LRI LI 1o (g 1= USSPt 5,000 7,500
(j) Rim thickness:
(1) Less than 1”7 in road service and /4”7 iN Yard SEIVICE .......cccceeiueiiieriieeniinieesie ettt 5,000 7,500
(2) %46” or less in road service and 11/16” iN Yard SEIVICE ........cccererieniiriiiiineeie st 6,500 9,000
(k):
(1) Crack Of 18SS thaN 17 ... ettt e et et e e e e bt e et e e seeeabeesaeeemseeaneeenbeasneeanneas 5,000 7,500
{20 ] =T (o R 4T SRS 6,500 9,000
(B) BIBAK ..ttt E bR b e h e e nh e e e bt e a e e Rt e e e b eae e et 8,500 11,000
(1) LOOSE WRNEEI OF if€ ...eeeiuiiieeeiiie e ctie ettt sttt e et e et e e e st e e et e e e s aaeeeessaee e steeeessseeeanneeeeanseeeennnneesnnseeennnnn 8,500 11,000
(M) Welded WHEEl OF TIre ........oiiiiiii et st sr e et e esbn e 5,000 7,500
P2l I A 01| 4= o1 g oTo | =Tt (o] £ PP STOPPVRORRPRN: 3,000 4,500
229.79 Third rail ShOES and DEAMS. ........ociiiiiiii et sae e s 3,000 4,500
229.81 Emergency pole; Sh0e INSUIALION .........ceiiiiiiiiiie e e e e 5,000 7,500
229.83  INSUIAtiON OF GrOUNGING ......eiiiiiiie ittt ee et ee ettt et e e e e e e e bt e e e aee e e s ae e e e e sse e e eabeeeesbeeesasaeesanneeeeanneeeannneean 6,500 9,000
229.85 Door and cover plates marked “Danger” ..........ooceoiiiiiiiiiiieee et 3,000 4,500
229.87 Hand operated SWITCNES ......coeiiiiiiiie ettt et e e e e e bt e e stb e e e eabe e e s eanee e enneeeaneeean 3,000 4,500
229.89 Jumpers; cable connections:
(a) Jumpers and cable connections; located and gUArded ..............ccooiiiiiiiieiiiiii 5,000 7,500
(b) Condition of jumpers and cable CONNECHIONS .........cocuiiiiiiiiiiie et 5,000 7,500
Perzie e B B V(o) (o] £-38= T o [ o [=Y 0 T=T o= (o] £ TSRO 5,000 7,500
229.93  Safety CUL-Off AEVICE .....ooiuiiiiiiii ettt ettt e sbe ettt e et e saeesneenaes 5,000 7,500
P2t R R V=T o {1 o USRI 5,000 7,500
229.97  Grounding fUBI TANKS ......ocuiiiiiiii ettt ettt nae ettt e e nne e 5,000 7,500
229.99  SAfEY NANGEIS ....eiiiiiiie ettt h e bt e he e e be e et e e e be e eate e bt e enbeebeeeneeeaneeeabeeaseeanbeesaneereeannn 5,000 7,500
229.101 Engines:
(a) Temperature and pressure alarms, controls, and SWItChES .........cooiiiiiiiiii i 3,000 4,500
() A= Ul To R aTo iSSP SPOPPRO 5,000 7,500
(C) Wheel Slip/sSlide PrOtECHON .......c.iiueiiiitieieiee ettt ettt ettt ettt sr e e sb e e e e be e e 3,000 4,500
229.103 Safe working pressure; factor Of SAfELY .........coiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
229.105 Steam generator NUMDET ..........oiiiiiiiiriri ettt ettt sttt sttt bt et e bt snenne e e nneeanene 1,500 2,500
229.107 PrESSUIE QAUJE ...eeiiiurieeiiiieiiteeeeairie e st ta e st e e e ssee e e e s ee e e e se e e s sse e e e et e e e s eeeeasneeensseeenneeeeamneeeeannneeanneesannneenn 5,000 7,500
229.109  SAFELY VAIVES ..e.uiieiieieitieiie ittt ettt et h bbbkttt bt he e et h e n e ne e n e n e e 5,000 7,500
229. 111 Water-fOW iNAICAION ....couiiiiiieee ettt ettt e sbe e st e et e e s e saeesneenane 5,000 7,500
229. 113  WaAINING NOLICE ..ottt st e et e e s s e e b e e s aa e e sbe e san e e ebe e sab e e sanesneenans 5,000 7,500
b2 T I S TS 1 oY= e L= =Ty T SR 5,000 7,500
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APPENDIX B TO PART 229.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued
Section 2 Violation vivc\>lllrll|IiUC>In
229.117  SPEEA INAICAIOIS ....eiiiiiieii ettt ettt ettt e et e e st e e e beesateeteesabeesbeesnteeaseeenbeaaseeanseesaeeanseennns 5,000 7,500
229.119 Cabs, floors, and passageways:
(a)(1) Cab set not securely Mounted OF BraCed ..........coocuieiieiiiiiiiieieie ettt 3,000 4,500
(2) Insecure or improper 1atChiNg DEVICE .......coouiiiiiiiie e et sae e e 3,000 4,500
(b) Cab windows Of [€ad I0COMOLIVE ........eieeeiiieeiiie e e e e e e e e st e e s e e e e nneaeenneeesneeeeannees 3,000 4,500
(c) Floors, passageways, and compartments 3,000 4,500
(d) Ventilation and heating arrangemeENt ..........c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 5,000 7,500
() O a1 (g TU e TN TN o = T 1= USSP URORR 5,000 7,500
(f) Containers for fuses and tOrPEAOES .......c..oiuiiiiiiiiie ettt sttt b e e sbe e s aeeenteeenbeesaeeenneas 5,000 7,500
229.121 LOCOMOLIVE CAD NOISE .....ociiiiiiiiiiiiie i e s sne s 5,000 7,500
229.123 Pilots, SNOWPIOWS, ENA PIATES .......eeeiiiiieeiiiie et e s e e et e e seae e e sseee e enseeeessneeesseeeennseeenn 3,000 4,500
229.125
(a) Headlights ...... 5,000 7,500
(d) Auxiliary lights 5,000 7,500
229.127  CaD lIGNES ..ot Rt e e e r e e e s r e n e n e en e 3,000 4,500
229.129 Audible warning device:
(2) PresCribed SOUNG IBVEIS ......c..iiiiiiii ittt ettt b e et e st e st e e st e et esneeennees 5,000 7,500
ArrangemMENT Of HEVICE .....oiiuiiiiii ittt sttt e ee e bt e et et e nar e e be e e neesreenneenans 5,000 7,500
() IR T (10T T TP U ST U SO PR URPOPPRO 5,000 7,500
(c) test procedures 5,000 7,500
(C)(10) FECOIAS Of TESES ...iiuiieieiiiiieiee ettt sttt h e st e bt e e bt e sae e e ab e e sabeembeessbeebeesabeebeesnbeanneeanneas 5,000 7,500
P2ae i R B S T- 14 To 1= £ TSRO 1,500 2,500
229.135 Event Recorders:
(a) Lead locomotive without iN-SErvice EVENt rECOIAET .........coccuiiiiiiiiieiiee et et e e e anees 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to meet equUIpPMENt FEQUIrEMENTS ......coiuiiiiiiiiiieie e e 5,000 7,500
(c) Unauthorized removal or failure to remove from SEIVICE .........cccciiiiiiiiiiiieiie e 5,000 7,500
(d) Improper response to out of SEIVICE EVENE FTECOIAET ......cccuiiiuiiiiieiie ettt 5,000 7,500
(e) Failure to preserve data or unauthorized extraction of data 5,000 7,500
(g) Tampering With deVICe OF JAtA ........oooiiiiiiiiieii ettt neas 5,000 7,500
229.137 Sanitation, general:
(a) Sanitation compartment in lead unit, complete failure to provide required items ..........ccccovevereeiinenienns 5,000 7,500
[ IR LT {1 = o TSR RPRTORR 3,000 4,500
(P2 T Lo o] g T E=E Ty T USSP RTOPR 3,000 4,500
(2) (i) DOOT AOESIN'E CIOSE ...ttt ettt h e et ae e et esae e bt esab e e bt e eab e e nae e sateenseeenbeeanneenneas 3,000 4,500
(2) (1)) NO MOGESTY IOCK ...ttt b et ae et eae e bt esab e e bt e sae e et e eaneenseeenneas 1,500 2,500
(3) Not equipped With t0IlEt IN 188G .........c.iiiiiiiii et 5,000 7,500
(4) Not equipped with Washing SYSTEM .......c..oiiiiiiiiii e e e 3,000 4,500
(€5 =Tt ( Qo) o= o 1= ST USSR PO PP UROPPPRRPIN 3,000 4,500
(B) Lack Of trash rECEPLACIE ........eiiiiiiiiiiie ettt b ettt e st e be e e ab e e saeeeabeesseeebeesnneenneas 3,000 4,500
(b) Exceptions:
(1)(i) Commuter service, failure to meet conditions of XCEPLioN ........ccceeviiriiiiiiii e 1,500 2,500
(1)(ii) Switching service, failure to meet conditions of exception . 1,500 2,500
(1)(iii) Transfer service, failure to meet conditions of exception 1,500 2,500
(1)(iv) Class lll, failure to meet conditions Of @XCEPLION ........ccceiiiieiirieiireee e 1,500 2,500
(1)(v) Tourist, failure to meet conditions of EXCEPION .........ociiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,500 2,500
(1)(vi) Control cab locomotive, failure to meet conditions of eXCEPtioN ..........cceeveiriiiniiiiienieeeeeeeen 1,500 2,500
(2) NONCOMPLIANT TOHET ...ttt ettt ettt et e e e e e bt e saeeeneen 3,000 4,500
(c) Defective/unsanitary toilet in lead UNIt ..........coouiiiiiiii s 3,000 4,500
(1)—(5) Failure to meet conditions Of EXCEPLION ......coiuiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(d) Defective/unsanitary unit; failure to meet conditions for trailing position ...........ccoceeirieiinieiiiecereee 3,000 4,500
(e) Defective/sanitary unit; failure to meet conditions for switching/transfer service .........ccccoeveeviiiiinnicnnn. 3,000 4,500
(f) Paper, washing, trash holder; failure to equip prior to departure ..........ccccoeceeriieieenieenie e 3,000 4,500
(g9) Inadequate ventilation; failure to repair or move prior to departure 3,000 4,500
(h) Door closure/modesty lock; failure to repair OF MOVE .........ccocuiiiiiiiiiiiiieiic et 1,500 2,500
(i) Failure to retain/maintain of eqUIPPEA UNILS .....cc.eiiiiiiriiiiiie e e 3,000 4,500
(j) Failure to equip new units/in-cab facility 3,000 4,500
(k) Failure to provide potable WALET ...........ooiiiiiiiiieie e st sb e st nb e e sbe e nneas 3,000 4,500
229.139 Servicing requirements:
(a) Lead occupied UNit NOt SANITANY .......oooiiiiiiiiieie ettt e sa et sneeenees 3,000 4,500
(b) Components NOt PreSEeNt/OPEIALING ......ccviiiuiiiieiie ettt et san e 1,500 2,500
(c) Occupied unit in switching, transfer service, in trailing position not sanitary ............ccocevenieiinecinniene 1,500 2,500
(d) Defective unit used MOre than 10 AYS .......ccciiiriiiriiieii et 3,000 4,500
(e) Failure to repair defective MOdEStY I0CK ........cocuiiiiiiiiiiie it 1,500 2,500
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. o Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
229.141 Body structure, MU IOCOMOLIVES ......cccuuiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e st e s smn e e e enn e e e enneee s 5,000 7,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. Generally, when two or more violations of these regulations are
discovered with respect to a single locomotive that is used by a railroad, the appropriate penalties set forth above are aggregated up to a max-
imum of $11,000 per day. However, a failure to perform, with respect to a particular locomotive, any of the inspections and tests required under
subpart B of this part will be treated as a violation separate and distinct from, and in addition to, any substantive violative conditions found on
that locomotive. Moreover, the Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to $27,000 for any violation where circumstances war-
rant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. Failure to observe any condition for movement set forth in § 229.9 will deprive the railroad of the benefit
of the movement-for-repair provision and make the railroad and any responsible individuals liable for penalty under the particular regulatory sec-
tion(s) concerning the substantive defect(s) present on the locomotive at the time of movement. Failure to comply with §229.19 will result in the
lapse of any affected waiver.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 229. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should Iiggation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

PART 230—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20702; 30. Appendix D to part 230 is revised
28 U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49. to read as follows:
29. The authority citation for part 230

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX D TO PART 230.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

: N Willful
Section Violation violation
Subpart A—General
230.11 Repair of non-complying conditions:
(a) Failure to repair non-complying steam locomotive prior to USe iN SerVICe .........cccceciiriirciienieiieesieeen, $3,000 $4,500
(b) Failure of owner and/or operator to approve repairs made prior to use of steam locomotive .................. 3,000 4,500
230.12 Movement of non-complying steam I0COMOTIVE .........cocuiiiiiiiiiiiii et M M
230.13 Daily inspection:
(a) (b):
(1) INSPECLION OVEITUE ...ttt ettt e et e h ettt e ehe e eab e e bt e e sb e e sae e et e e nseeenbeenaneenneas 5,000 7,500
(2) Inspection not performed by qualified PErSON ........c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
(c) Inspection report not made, improperly executed or NOt retaiNed ...........cccceveeririerineese e 3,000 4,500
230.14 Thirty-one service day inspection:
(a):
(1) INSPECLION OVEIAUE ...ttt et ettt b e b e e b sae e st e e sbe e eb e e sneeenes 5,000 7,500
(2) Inspection not performed by qualified person 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to notify FRA ... 3,000 4,500
(c) Inspection report not made, improperly executed, not properly filed .........cccooiiiiiiiiiniiin 3,000 4,500
230.15 Ninety-two service day inspection:
(a):
(1) INSPECHION OVEITUE ...ttt ettt sttt et e h et e e eae e et e e bt e e ab e e saeeeabeenbeeenbeenaeeenneas 5,000 7,500
(2) Inspection not performed by qualified PErSON .........c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiee s 3,000 4,500
(b) Inspection report not made, improperly executed, not properly filed ...........cccooiiiiiiiiiniiiiee, 3,000 4,500
230.16 Annual inspection:
(a):
(1) INSPECLION OVEIAUE ...t ettt st e b e sae e s te e sbe e e b e e aeeeneas 5,000 7,500
(2) Inspection not performed by qualified PErsON ..........ccciiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure t0 NOLIfYy FRA .. ..ottt st e et e b e sr e et e e e e nbneenees 3,000 4,500
(c) Inspection report not made, improperly executed, not properly filed ..o 3,000 4,500
230.17 One thousand four hundred seventy-two service day inspection:
(a):
[ LTS o 1= T3 Lo T oY= o U1 SRS 5,000 7,500
(2) Inspection not performed by qualified PErsoN ..........cocieiiiiiiiiinie e 3,000 4,500
(b) Inspection report not made, improperly executed, not properly maintained, not properly filed 3,000 4,500
230.18 Service days:
(a) Service day record not available for INSPECHON .........cciviiiiiiiiereeee e 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to file service day report with FRA Regional AdmIniStrator ...........cccceeeireeriniecsenecse e 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to complete all 1,472 service day inspection items prior to returning retired steam locomotive to
ES]= Vo7 PPN 5,000 7,500
230.19 Posting of forms:
(a) FRA Form No. 1:
(1) FRA Form No. 1 not properly filled OUL ...........ooiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
(2) FRA Form No. 1 not properly diSPlay@d ...........cccceriiieeniiiieiiseeseneere e 3,000 4,500
(b) FRA Form No. 3:
(1) FRA Form No. 3 not properly filled OUt ..........c.oooiiiiiii s 3,000 4,500
(2) FRA Form No. 3 not properly diSplay@d ...........ccceccuiiiiiiiiiiieciieee ettt 3,000 4,500
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230.20 Alteration and repair reports:
(a) Alterations:
(1) Failure to properly file FRA Form No. 19 with FRA Regional Administrator .... 3,000 4,500
(2) FRA Form No. 19 not properly filled Out ........ccocoeeriiiiiiiiiieeee e 3,000 4,500
(8) FRA Form No. 19 not properly Maintained ..........ccceoiiiiiieiriieiiieiie ettt 3,000 4,500
(b) Repairs to unstayed portions of the boiler:
(1) FRA Form No. 19 not properly filled OUL ...........ccoiiiiiiiieee e s 3,000 4,500
(2) FRA Form No. 19 not properly maintained 3,000 4,500
(c) Repairs to stayed portions of the boiler:
(1) FRA Form No. 19 not properly filled OUt ..........cciiiiiiiiii s 3,000 4,500
(2) FRA Form No. 19 not properly maintained ...........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiieie et 3,000 4,500
230.21 Failure to properly document steam locomotive number Change ..........ccccoceeniiioiiiniinieesie e 3,000 4,500
Subpart B—Boilers and Appurtenances
230.22 Failure to properly report accident resulting from failure of steam locomotive boiler or part or appur-
L= Lo (g T=T =T PP SPRPR 5,000 7,500
230.23 Responsibility for general construction and safe working pressure:
(a) Failure to properly establish safe working pressure for steam locomotive boiler .............ccccovciiiinncennn. 8,500 11,000
(b) Placing steam locomotive in service before safe working pressure for boiler has been established ....... 8,500 11,000
230.24 Maximum allowable stress values on boiler components:
(a) Use of materials not of sufficient tensile Strength ... 3,000 4,500
(b) Use of a safety factor value of less than 4 when using the code of original construction in boiler cal-
LoT U =1 (o] o =PSRRI 6,500 9,000
230.25 Maximum allowable stresses on stays and braces:
(a) Exceeding allowable stress values on fire box and/or combustion chamber .............ccccciiiiniiiinnicenee. 3,000 4,500
(b) Exceeding allowable stress values on round, rectangular or gusset braces ..........cccccvvirveinieineenineenn. 3,000 4,500
230.29 Inspection and repair:
(a):
(1) Failure of owner and/or operator to inspect and repair any steam locomotive boiler and/or appur-
tenance under CONrol thErEOT .........cooii e e e e e e e e e e e aa e e e e e e 5,000 7,500
(2) Failure to remove steam locomotive from service when considered necessary to do so .................. 6,500 9,000
(b):
(1) Failure of perform repairs in accordance with accepted industry standards ...........ccccccovciiiinnncenen. 6,500 9,000
(2) Owner and/or operator returning steam locomotive boiler and/or appurtenances to service before
they are in good condition and safe and suitable for service 6,500 9,000
230.30 Lap-joint seam boilers, Failure to properly iNSPECT ........ccueeiiiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
230.31 Flues to be removed:
(a):
(1) Failure to remove all flues when inspecting boIler ...........ccocviiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(2) Failure to enter boiler and clean and INSPECE .......c.c.coiiiiiiiiieiiee e 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to remove superheater flues when deemed necessary t0 dO SO ........cccevveevciiiiiiiieenee e 3,000 4,500
230.32 Time and method of inspection:
(a) Failure to perform 1,472 service day inspection when required to do so 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to properly inspect boiler during 1,472 service day iNSPECION ........ccccvvuirieeiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
230.33 Welded repairs and alterations:
(a) Failure to obtain permission before welding on unstayed portions of boiler containing alloy or carbon
steel with carbon content over .25 percent CarboN ..........cooo i 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to perform welding on unstayed portions of boiler containing carbon steel not exceeding .25
percent carbon in accordance with a nationally accepted standard for boiler repairs ..........cccoceeveviiennnen. 5,000 7,500
(c):
(1) Failure to submit written request for approval before performing weld buildup on wasted areas of
unstayed boiler surfaces that exceed 100 square inches or the smaller of 25 percent of minimum
required wall thickness OF 12 INCH ........uiiii et 5,000 7,500
(2) Repairing Wasted SHEEES .......ccuiiiiiiiiie e e 5,000 7,500
230.34 Riveted repairs and alterations:
(a) Failure to obtain approval before making riveted alterations on unstayed portions of the boiler; failure
to do riveting in accordance with established railroad practices or accepted national standards for boiler
=T 2= 1L £ T PRSP RUPPPTPPIN 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to perform riveted repairs on unstayed boiler portions in accordance with established railroad
practices or accepted national standards for boiler repairs ..........ccoceeiiiiiinie i 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to perform riveted repairs on stayed boiler portions in accordance with established railroad
practices or accepted national standards for boiler repairs ..........ccoceeiiiiiinie i 3,000 4,500
230.35 Failure to raise temperature of steam locomotive boiler to 70 degrees F. before applying hydrostatic
PressUre 10 the DOIIEE ...ttt e e s e e e e e e ssr e e e snr e e e sanneeeanneeenane 3,000 4,500
230.36 Hydrostatic testing of boilers:
(a) Failure to perform hydrostatic test of boiler as required ............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to properly perform hydrostatic test ...........cccceriiiiiiiiini s 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to properly inspect boiler after conducting hydrostatic test above MAWP 5,000 7,500
230.37 Failure to perform proper steam test or inspection of boiler after completion of repair or alteration to
oo 1= SO U TP PR 3,000 4,500
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230.38 Telltale holes:
(a) Failure to have telltale holes as required in StAYDORS .........cccoiiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to have proper telltale holes in reduced body staybolts .... 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to keep telltales holes When SO reqUIrEd .........cceeiiioiiiiiiienie e e 3,000 4,500
230.39 Broken staybolts:
(a) Boiler in service with excess number of broken staybolts ...........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to replace staybolts when required to do so; to properly replace staybolts when so required; to
inspect adjacent staybolts when replacing broken staybolts .............cccoovviiiiiiiiiin e 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to count leaking, plugged, or missing telltale holes as broken staybolts 5,000 7,500
(d) Closing telltale holes by prohibited MEANS .........cceiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
230.40 Time and method of staybolt testing:
(a) Failure to hammer test staybolts When SO requIred ............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiee s 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to properly hammer test StaybOIS .........cooeiiiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
230.41 Flexible staybolts with caps:
(a) Failure to inspect flexible staybolts as reqUIred ..........ccoieciiiiiiiiiiee e 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to replace broken flexible staybolts; failure to close inner ends of telltale holes as required ....... 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to report removal of flexible staybolts caps and other tests on FRA Form No. 3 when so re-
[0 01T =Tc PSPPSR OPPRPONE 3,000 4,500
(d) Failure to remove staybolt caps or otherwise test when FRA inspector or steam locomotive owner and/
or operator consider it NECESSANY 10 0O SO ...ciiiuiii ittt ee ettt et e et e e et e e s s be e e s nbeeesnreeeannees 3,000 4,500
230.42 Failure to have accurate boiler steam gauge where engine crew can conveniently read ....................... 6,500 9,000
230.43 Failure to have gauge siphon of proper capacity on steam gauge supply pipe; failure to properly
clean, maintain the steam gauge SUPPIY PIPE ....ooiiiiiiiiiiii e s 3,000 4,500
230.44 Failure to test steam gauge When SO reqUIred ..........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiciie e 3,000 4,500
230.45 Failure to properly test and/or set SteamM GAUGE .......cccoirieiiiiieiiiieese ettt 3,000 4,500
230.46 Failure to attach to boiler backhead metal badge plate showing allowable steam pressure .................. 3,000 4,500
230.47 Boiler Number:
(a) (b) (c) Failure to stamp builder’'s number on boiler when number is Known ..........cccccovviriiiniinencncenen, 3,000 4,500
230.48 Number and capacity of safety relief valves:
(a) Failure to equip steam locomotive boiler with proper safety relief valves ..........cccccoooiiiiiiiiniicecee, 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to provide additional safety relief valve capacity when so required ..........ccccceeviirieininieeneeenen, 6,500 9,000
230.49 Setting of safety relief valves:
(a) Safety relief valve(s) set and/or adjusted by person not competent to do SO ........cccceeriiriieiiiiieenieeen, 6,500 9,000
(b) Safety relief valve(s) not set to open at prescribed pressure(s) 6,500 9,000
(c) Safety relief valve(s) not properly set .........cccovveiinieninieneneeeens 6,500 9,000
(d) Set pressure of lowest safety relief valve not properly indicated 3,000 4,500
230.50 Failure to test and adjust safety relief valves when required t0 do SO ........ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiccc s 5,000 7,500
230.51 Failure to equip steam locomotive boiler with at least 2 properly installed water glasses .... 3,000 4,500
230.52 Failure to properly equip Water gIasSes ........ccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee et 6,500 9,000
230.53 Failure to properly clean water glass valves and/or gauge cocks when required to do so 3,000 4,500
230.54 Testing and maintenance:
(a) Failure to properly test water glasses and/or gauge COCKS ..........ccoceriiiiiiiiiriiiee e 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to properly maintain gauge cocks, water column drain valves, and/or water glass valves ........... 5,000 7,500
230.55 Tubular type water and lubricator glasses and shields:
(a) Failure to renew tubular type water glasses as reqUIred ...........cccooeeiiierieeriienieeree e 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to properly shield tubular water glasses and/or lubricator glasses ............cccveevirieieneeiiiienene 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to properly locate and/or maintain water glasses and/or water glass shields .............cccccceveenen. 3,000 4,500
230.56 Failure to equip water glass with suitable [amp ... 3,000 4,500
230.57 Injectors and feedwater pumps:
(a) Failure to equip steam locomotive with proper means for delivering water to the boiler ......................... 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to properly test and/or maintain injectors, feedwater pumps, boiler checks, delivery pipes, feed
water pipes, tank hoSe, tanK VAIVES ..ottt e e sae e e e aneeeeaes 6,500 9,000
(c) Failure to properly brace injectors, feedwater pumps, and/or associated piping 3,000 4,500
230.58 Flue plugs:
(a) Plugging flue plugs when not otherwise permitted ............cccooiiiiiiriiiiie e 3,000 4,500
(b) Improperly plugging flue plugs, when otherwise permitted ..o, 3,000 4,500
230.59 Failure to remove and properly clean fusible boiler plugs when required to do so; failure to properly
[0y G I (=T 1 410 V7= | PP SPPRRIN 5,000 7,500
230.60 Time of washing:
(a) Failure to thoroughly wash boiler when required t0 dO SO .........cceeiiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to remove washout plugs, arch tube plugs, thermic siphon plugs, circulator plugs, water bar
plugs when washing 10COMOtIVE DOIIEE ...........cccocuiiiiiiiiii s 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to examine and/or properly maintain washout plugs, washout plug sleeves, threaded openings 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to clean fusible plugs when required t0 dO SO ........cociiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
230.61 Arch tubes, water bar tubes, circulators and thermic siphons:
(a) Failure to clean, wash, inspect arch tubes, water bar tubes, circulators and thermic siphons as re-
Lo 18] =Y USSR 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to renew arch tubes, water bar tubes; failure to repair or renew circulators, thermic siphons
A1 =T T =Y 111 = SRR 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to properly inspect and/or replace as necessary arch tubes, water bar tubes, circulators ... 5,000 7,500
230.62 Failure to properly inspect and/or repair or replace as necessary dry pipes subject to pressure 6,500 9,000
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230.63 Failure to properly inspect smoke box, steam pipes, pressure parts when required to do SO ................ 5,000 7,500
230.64 Failure to remove from service steam locomotive boiler leaking under lagging from condition which
may reduce safety and/or repair the boiler before returning to SEIVICe .........cccceviviiiiiiiiincceee 5,000 7,500
230.65 Failure to keep steam locomotive boiler, piping, appurtenances in repair so steam does not obscure
L7753 o PPN 3,000 4,500
230.66 Failure to properly oversee general design, construction, maintenance of steam locomotive(s) and
LE=1 010 (=T 6 IR PSPPI 3,000 4,500
230.67 Failure to ensure all steam locomotives and tenders are properly inspected and repaired and/or all
defects are properly repaired and steam locomotive and/or tender are in good condition, safe and suitable
for service before being returned t0 SEIVICE ........oociiiiiiiiiii e e 6,500 9,000
230.68 Failure to equip steam locomotive that operates in excess of 20 miles per hour over the general sys-
tem with speed indicator maintained to ensure accurate functioning ............cceriiiiiinii e 3,000 4,500
230.69 Failure to equip steam locomotive with properly supported ash pan with operating mechanism that
may be safely operated and securely ClOSEA ...........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiii s 3,000 4,500
230.70 Safe condition:
(a) Failure to perform proper pre-departure inspection when so required ..........ccccoccveeeiieeencieeeeccee e 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to properly equip steam locomotive with brake pipe valve clearly identified as “Emergency
BIaKe VaIVE ...ttt e e e e ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e a———eeeeeeaaa——a—eeeeeaaaan—aeaaeeeaaataraeeaaeaaaanes 3,000 4,500
230.71 Orifice testing of air compressors:
(a)(b):
Failure to properly test and/or maintain air cCOmpressor(s) CaPaCIty .......ccccccvverrreerieinieriieenie e 3,000 4,500
230.72 Testing main reservoirs:
(a) Failure to properly test main reservoir(s) When required ...........ccooeeiieeiieinienie e 3,000 4,500
(b) Impermissibly or improperly drilling MaiN FESEIVOIr .........cccuiiiiiiiiiie et 3,000 4,500
(c) Impermissibly using NDE method to measure wall thickness of main reservoirs ...........ccccccovceiieeneeenen. 3,000 4,500
(d) Failure to use appropriate method of NDE testing of wall thickness of welded or riveted longitudinal lap
seam main reservoir(s); failure to withdraw main reservoir(s) from service when testing reveals insuffi-
cient Wall thiCKNESS ......ooii e e s 5,000 7,500
230.73 Air gauges:
(a) Failure to equip steam locomotive with properly located air gauge(s) that are no more than 3 psi in
LY (o) P 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to test air gauge(s) when so required ... 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to properly teSt @ir QAUGE(S) .-veerrererrierieiiee ittt ettt sttt sb e e sae e st e et e e e e saeeenneas 3,000 4,500
230.74 Failure to properly clean and/or test all air brake valves, related dirt collectors, filters when required to
Lo (o JX=T o T TP URRPPPUPRRN 3,000 4,500
230.75 Failure to properly stencil or display date of testing and cleaning and initials of shop or station per-
oY gaa1TaTe IR0 QUSSR UURRRPRNE 3,000 4,500
230.76 Piston travel:
(@) Insufficient MINIMUM PISTON rAVE] ........ccouiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
(b) Excessive piston travel when steam locomotive is stationary .... 3,000 4,500
230.77 Foundation brake gear:
(a) Failure to properly maintain foundation brake gear ... 3,000 4,500
(b) Foundation brake gear less than 2.5 inches above rail ... 3,000 4,500
230.78 Leakage:
(a):
(1) Failure to test for leakage from main reservoir or related piping as required ..........ccccceveerieeneeennen. 3,000 4,500
(2) Failure to repair excessive leakage from main reservoir or related piping leakage ... 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to test for brake cylinder @as reqUIred ...........c.ooieeiiiiiiiiiiere e e 3,000 4,500
(c):
(1) Failure to test for leakage from steam locomotive brake pipe as required ..........ccccoeevenenicniennenne. 3,000 4,500
(2) Failure to repair excessive brake pipe 18aKaAGE ........cccooiieiiiiiiiirie e 3,000 4,500
230.79 Train signal system:
(1) Failure to test the train signal system or other form of on-board communication as required .................. 3,000 4,500
(2) Failure to repair train signal system or other on-board communication when not safe or suitable for
L=< Vo7 PPN 3,000 4,500
230.80 Cabs:
(a) Steam locomotive cab not safe and suitable for service .. 3,000 4,500
(b) Steam pipes: Construction, attachment ..............c.cccceennne 3,000 4,500
(c) Oil-burning steam locomotive, Cab-ENCIOSEA .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
230.81 Cab aprons:
(a) Cab apron, general provisions . 3,000 4,500
(b) Cab apron, iNSUFfICIENt WILh ..........oiiiii et ettt e et e e sse e e beesneeeneeas 3,000 4,500
230.82 Fire doors:
(a) Safe and suitable for service, general ProVISIONS .........c.cceceiiiiieiiiieieseee et 3,000 4,500
(b) Construction and maintenance of mechanically operated fire doors 3,000 4,500
(c) Construction and maintenance of hand-operated fire dOOIS. ..........cccooiiiiiiiiinine e 3,000 4,500
230.83 Cylinder cocks:
(1) Failure to properly equip with cylinder cocks 3,000 4,500
(2) Failure to properly maintain CyliNAEr COCKS .......coiuiiiiiiiiiiiieiie et 3,000 4,500
230.84 Sanders:
[ I Lo 2T =1 o] (ST o =Y ¢SSR 3,000 4,500
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(P I =V L = (oI (=T =T U o =T S RR 3,000 4,500
230.85 Audible warning devices:
(a) General provisions 3,000 4,500
(b) Sound level measurements, Failure to properly take 3,000 4,500
230.86 Required illumination:
(2) GBNEIAI PrOVISIONS ....iiutieitietieite ettt ettt et e et e st be e s i bt e she e eat e e bt e e ab e e saeeaas e e saseembeesabeenbeesmbeenbeeenbeeaneeenneas 3,000 4,500
(b) Dimming device, Failure to properly €quip With ........cccoiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(c) Multiple locomotives, Failure of lead locomotive to display headlight ............ccccoirieiiniiiiinicieseeeee 3,000 4,500
230.87 Cab lights: Failure to properly @quip With ........coeiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
230.88 Throttles: Failure to properly maintain, @QUIP ........ccceioiiiiiiiiieie e e 3,000 4,500
230.89 Reverse gear:
(2) GNEIAI PrOVISIONS ....cutiiiiiiiieeite ettt ettt ettt ettt b et h et st e et et e bt e eae e et e e sas e et e e esb e e bt e sareenbeeeareennneeaneen 3,000 4,500
(b) Air-operated power reverse gear 3,000 4,500
(C) POWET FEVEISE QAN FESEIVOIIS ....eiuiiiuiieiteeesteeruteatee st et e aas e e eae e et e e ae e e bt e sae e eateesas e e bt e asseeaneesateenbe e e bt e nnneenneas 3,000 4,500
230.90 Draw gear and draft systems:
() MaINtENANCE AN TESHNG ....eeteiiiiiii ettt a et et sae e e bt esae e e eae e st e e nbeesabeennneenneas 3,000 4,500
(b) Safety bars and ChaiNS, GENETAI ........c.ooiiiiiiii e ettt st e nb e b sbe e nneas 3,000 4,500
(c) Safety bars and chains, MiNIMUM IENGE ........c.oiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(d) Lost motion between steam locomotive and tENAEr ...........ccooiiiiiiiieiiniee e 3,000 4,500
(e) Spring buffers: Improper application, COMPIESSION .........cccciiiiieiiiieieree e 3,000 4,500
230.91 Chafing irons: Improper application, MaINENANCE .........c.coiiiiiiiiieereere e 3,000 4,500
230.92 Draw gear, draft systems: Improperly maintained, fastened ............ccccooiiiiiiiiiiin 3,000 4,500
230.93 Pistons and piston rods:
(a) Failure to properly inspect, Maintain, FENEW ..........ccciiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(b) Fasteners: Failure to keep tight, Properly @QUIP .......c.ooiieiiiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
230.94 Crossheads: Improperly maintained, XCeSS ClEAraNCEe ..........ccocuieieiriiiiiiiiiiesie et 3,000 4,500
230.95 Guides: Failure to securely fasten, properly Maintain ..........cccooeeeeeiiieieene e 3,000 4,500
230.96 Main, side, valve motion rods:
[C Y I =T aT=T = LSS PUSPOPRO 3,000 4,500
(D) REPEAIIS ...ttt ettt ettt 3,000 4,500
(1) Failure to make in accordance with accepted national standard 3,000 4,500
(2) Failure to submit written request for approval prior to Welding ..........ccoveeeriiienenieeneee e 3,000 4,500
(€) Bearings and DUSHINGS ......coouiiiiiii et st 3,000 4,500
(d) Rod side motion: Excessive Motion .........ccccceeeviieeiiiiennnns 3,000 4,500
(e) Qil, grease cups: Failure to securely fasten, properly equip 3,000 4,500
(f) Main rod bearings:
[ =TTV L= oo = SRR 3,000 4,500
(2) €XCESSIVE 10ST MOTION ...ttt et st e sae e eb e naeeeneen 3,000 4,500
(g) Side rod bearings, EXCESSIVE DOTE .......cceiiiiiiiiiiee ettt sttt st et saeeenees 3,000 4,500
230.97 Crank pins:
(a) General ProViSIONS ......cccceevceeeeeiieeerieeeseeeeeeeeeee e e e e e 3,000 4,500
(b) Maintenance: Failure to maintain in safe, suitable condition 3,000 4,500
230.98 Diriving, trailing, engine truck axles:
(2) CoONAEMNING AEFECES ...ttt b bbbt e e bt e nae e e sne e e re e e 3,000 4,500
(b) Journal diameter: Failure to stamp on end of axle .. 1,500 2,500
230.99 Tender truck axle: Insufficient dIAMELET .........ccoeiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
230.100 Defects in tender truck axles and journals:
(a) Tender truck axle condemning defects ..o 3,000 4,500
(b) Tender truck journal condemning defects 3,000 4,500
230.101 Steam locomotive driving journal boxes:
(a) Driving journal boxes: Failure to properly Maintain ........cccccooiiiiiiiiniiie s 3,000 4,500
(b) Broken bearings: Failure 10 FENEW ...........coiiiiiiiiiii e e 3,000 4,500
(c) Loose bearings: Failure t0 repair OF FEBNEW .......cocuiiiiiiiieiiie ittt 3,000 4,500
230.102 Tender plain bearing journal boxes: Failure t0 repair ..........cccceiiiiiiiiiiiie s 3,000 4,500
230.103 Tender roller bearing journal boxes: Failure to properly maintain ..........cccccoooeiiiieenie e 3,000 4,500
230.104 Driving box shoes and wedges: Failure to properly maintain ...........cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiniiiecee e 3,000 4,500
230.105 Lateral motion:
(a) Condemning limits: Total lateral Motion iN EXCESS Of ........cciiiiiiiiiieeeee e 3,000 4,500
(b) Limits exceeded, failure to demonstrate conditions require additional lateral motion 3,000 4,500
(c) Interferes with other parts of steam l0COMOLIVE .........cociiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
230.106 Steam locomotive frame:
(a) Failure to properly inspect and/or MAINTAIN ..........coiiriiiiiii e e 3,000 4,500
(b) Broken frames, not properly patched OF SECUIEA .........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiie et 6,500 9,000
230.107 Tender frame and body:
(a) Failure to properly Maintain .........coccoiiiiiii et 3,000 4,500
(b) Height difference between tender deck and steam locomotive cab floor or deck excessive .. 3,000 4,500
(c) Gangway minimum Width @XCESSIVE .........eiiuiiiiiiiiiiiieiie et 3,000 4,500
(d) Tender frame condemning AEfECES ........c.oi i e e 5,000 7,500
230.108 Steam locomotive leading and trailing trucks:
(a) Failure to properly Maintain ............oooiiiiiii e e e 3,000 4,500
(b) Safety chain, suitable safety chain NOt Provided ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiie s 3,000 4,500
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Section Violation ViVC\)llinuOIn
(C) INSUFFICIENT trUCK CIBAIANCE ....eiiiiiiiieieeee ettt st b e sb e sae e sateesseeenbeesaeeenneas 3,000 4,500
230.109 Tender trucks:
(a):
(1) TeNdEr trUCK fTAMES ....eeiiieeii ettt et et e ettt e e st e e e sae e e s aae e e sseeeeemseeeesnseeeenseeeenneeenn 3,000 4,500
(2) Tender truck center plate 3,000 4,500
(b) Tender truck bolsters: Failure to properly Maintain ...........coooiiiiiiniiiiee e 5,000 7,500
(c) Condemning defects, springs and/or SPriNg MGQING ....cc.eeoueeiirriienie ettt et seeesee e beesaeeeeeas 3,000 4,500
(d) Truck securing arrangement: Not properly maintained .. 3,000 4,500
(e) Side bearings, truck centering devices .........c.ccceeeeeeennee 3,000 4,500
(f) Friction side bearings: RUN iN CONTACT .......coouiiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt 3,000 4,500
(9):
(1) Side bearings, failure to equip rear trucks With ............ccociiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(2) INSUFFICIENE CIEAIANCE OF ...ttt sae e et e e bt e beesaeeenneas 3,000 4,500
230.110 Pilots:
(2) GBNEIAI PrOVISIONS ....eiuiieiiietieite ettt ettt e st et e et et eeab e e eae e s ate e beeeabeesaeeenbeesaseembeesabeeabeesmeeebeeenbeenneeenneas 3,000 4,500
(b) Clearance, iNSUFICIENT OF EXCESSIVE .....cccuuiiiiiiiieeiiie ettt ettt e et e e st e e s e e e e e bt e e esnneeesnnneeesnneen 3,000 4,500
230.111  Spring rigging:
(a) Arrangement oOf SPrings @nd EQUAIIZEIS .........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt 3,000 4,500
(b) Spring or spring rigging condemning AEfECLS .........coiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 3,000 4,500
230.112 Wheels and tires:
(a) Improperly Mounted, excess variance in axle diameter ..o 5,000 7,500
(o) IO 01 o] e = To [ PP TP S PP URPTOPPRO 3,000 4,500
(c) Flange distanCe VarianCe, EXCESSIVE ........cciuiiiiiiiiieiieeitie et eite sttt e st tee e e e beeanbeesaeesaeeesbeeenbeesneeenneas 3,000 4,500
(d) Tire thickness, insufficient 3,000 4,500
(€) Tire Width, INSUTFICIENT ........iiie ettt sttt ab e e sbe e st e e sbe e e nbeesneeenneas 3,000 4,500
230.113 Wheels and tire defects:
(@ I U= (o T 1= o X 1l USSP RUPRR 3,000 4,500
(2) Welding on, except as otherwise provided for .. 5,000 7,500
(a) Cracks or breaks in .......ccccceveineiiiienienieeneee 3,000 4,500
(o) I = L] o] £ TP TSSOSO PR PPPURPTOPPRU 3,000 4,500
(o) B0 a1 o] oT=To I 1 =T Vo = PSSO STOPRRI 3,000 4,500
(d) Broken rim .......... 3,000 4,500
(e) Shelled-out spots 3,000 4,500
(LTS L5T= Ly OSSPSR 3,000 4,500
() WOIN flangEs, EXCESSIVE WEA .....c..eiiiiiiiiieiie it eitee ettt e bt et e s bt e s ae e e bt e saeeenbeesabe e bt e anbeeaaeesateenseeenbeesneeenneas 3,000 4,500
(h) Worn treads, excessive wear .................. 3,000 4,500
(i) Flange height, insufficient or excessive . 3,000 4,500
(1) Rim thickness, INSUFFICIENT .......cooiiiieiie e e et e e e e e e e bt e e e enneeesnnneeeannees 3,000 4,500
(k) Wheel diameter, EXCESSIVE VANANCE .....c..oiiuieiiieiieiieeitieeteeriee et e st e bt esaeeeteesab e e bt e ssbeesaeesaseesseeanbeesaneenneas 3,000 4,500
230.114 Wheel centers:
(2) Filling DIOCKS @Nd SNIMS .....coiiiiiiiie ettt ettt et e st e e be e sab e e sbe e st e e nteeenbeesneeenneas 3,000 4,500
(b) Wheel center condemning limits, failure t0 rePair ..........coocuiiiiiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
(o) I A T T a (T (=T o= PSSP RUPRR 3,000 4,500
(d) CounterbalanCe MAINTENANCE .........ccciiiiiiiieeiie et et e et e e st e e e e teeeesaeeeeasneeeeaneeeeanseeesanseeesanseeeannees 3,000 4,500
230.115 Feed water tanks:
(2) GBNEIAI PrOVISIONS ....eutieiiieteeeit ettt ettt ettt b e e e bt e st e e bt e e bt e eae e et e e sas e et e e ees e e bt e naneenbeeeareeanneeanees 3,000 4,500
(b) Inspection frequency, failure to INSPECt @S rEQUITEA ........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 3,000 4,500
(c) Top of tender: Improperly maintained and/or @qUIPPEA ..........eoiciiiiiiiiierieeee e 3,000 4,500
230.116 OQil tanks:
(1) Failure to properly MaINTAIN .........ccoiiiiiiiie ettt sttt sb e sr et e b sbeeenees 6,500 9,000
(2) Failure to equip with complying safety Cut-off dEVICE .........cociiiiiiiiiiie e 8,500 11,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. Failure to observe any condition for movement set
forth in §230.12 will deprive the railroad of the benefit of the movement-for-repair provision and make the railroad and any responsible individ-
uals liable for penalty under the particular regulatory section(s) concerning the substantive defect(s) present on the locomotive at the time of
movement. Failure to comply with §2230.12 will result in the lapse of any affected waiver. Generally, when two or more violations of these regula-
tions are discovered with respect to a single locomotive that is used by a railroad, the appropriate penalties set forth are aggregated up to a
maximum of $11,000 per day. However, a failure to perform, with respect to a particular locomotive, any of the inspections and tests required
under this part, will be treated as a violation separate and distinct from, and in addition to, any substantive violative conditions found on that loco-
motive. The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 230. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given sec-
tion, each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not cor-
respond to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves
the right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code cita-

tion,

should they differ.

PART 231—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20702; 32. Appendix A to part 231 is revised
28 U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49. to read as follows;

31. The authority citation for part 231
continues to read as follows:
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110.A1 Hand Brake or Hand Brake Part MiSSING ........ccceciiiierereeierieeie e eee e seese e seeseeseesseeneesneeneesneeeesneenenns $6,500 $9,000
110.A2 Hand Brake or Hand Brake Part BroKen ... 6,500 9,000
110.A3 Hand Brake or Hand Brake Part Lo0SE O WOIN .........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
110.B1  Hand BraKe INOPEIALIVE ........ooi ittt ettt e sttt e e st e e e eae e e e e bt e e eenbeeesanneeesnnes 6,500 9,000
110.B2 Hand Brake INEfICIENT ........ooiiiieiiee et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e s enaaeeeeaesesnnnaeeaaeeaan 5,000 7,500
110.B3 Hand Brake Improperly APPlEA .......cooiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt 5,000 7,500
110.B4 Hand Brake INCOrrectly 10Cated ..........ooo ittt e et e e be e e s nnneeesnees 3,000 4,500
110.B5 Hand Brake Shaft Welded or Wrong DIMENSION .........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 3,000 4,500
110.B6 Hand Brake Shaft Not Retained in Operating Position 3,000 4,500
110.B8 Hand Brake or Hand Brake Parts Wrong Design ........cccccovoieniiniienieiiiec s 3,000 4,500
114.B2 Hand Brake Wheel or Lever Has Insufficient Clearance Around Rim or Handle ..............cccccoiiiinenene 3,000 4,500
114.B3 Hand Brake Wheel/Lever Clearance Insufficient to Vertical Plane Through Inside Face of Knuckle ..... 3,000 4,500
120.A1 Brake Step Missing EXCEPE DY DESIGN ......oiiuiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt 6,500 9,000
120.A2 Brake Step or Brace Broken O DECAYEM ...........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt sttt see e saeesareeneeeans 6,500 9,000
120.A3 Brake Step OF BraCe LOOSE .......ccceciiriieiiiiiieiesieet et ettt sttt n et n et nenreenenneennenn 5,000 7,500
120.B1  Brake Step OF BraCe BENt .......ooiuiiiiiiiii ettt ettt et st e st e be e e abeesaeeenbeesabeebeasnnaans 5,000 7,500
120.B2 Brake Step or Wrong DIMENSIONS .......cccuiiieiiiiiiirieeiesteet sttt sttt st sn et sn e e e e nae e 3,000 4,500
120.C1 Brake Step IMproperly APPlEA ..ottt 3,000 4,500
120.C2 Brake Step IMproperly LOCAIEA .........ocuiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ittt et 3,000 4,500
120.C3 Brake Step With Less Than 4” Clearance to Vertical Plane through Inside Face of Knuckle ................ 3,000 4,500
120.C4 Brake Step Obstructed or Otherwise UNSAFE .........cociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccie e 5,000 7,500
124.A1 Running Board Missing or Part Missing Except By Design ...........cccooiioiiiiiiiicee e 6,500 9,000
124.A2 Running Board Broken Or DECAYEA ..........ocooiiiiiiiiiieiiee et e e e e s e e e s e e e 6,500 9,000
124.A3 Running Board Loose Presents a Tripping Hazard or Other Unsafe Condition ...........ccccceeveeiierieennnnne 6,500 9,000
124.A4  Running Board Wrong Material ...........cooieiiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e s e e e e 3,000 4,500
124.B1 Running Board Bent to the Extent that It is UNSafe ..........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
124.B2 Running Board Wrong DIMENSIONS .........cccociiiiiiiiiiiieie it 3,000 4,500
124.B3 Running Board Wrong LOCAION .........oiiiiiiiiii ettt et sttt et e e e e e e e s e sbe e e s nnneeesnnes 3,000 4,500
124.C1  Running Board Improperly APPIIEA ......cc.coieiiiiiiiiieiesee ettt 3,000 4,500
124.C2 Running Board Obstructed ...........ccccoveeiineninenne 5,000 7,500
126.A1 End Platform Missing or Part Except By Design 6,500 9,000
126.A2 End Platform Broken Or DECAYEA ........ccceiiiiiiiiiiiiie et eiiee et e e see e et e e st e e e st e e e sneeeeaneeeeenseeeeanseeesnnees 6,500 9,000
126.A3  ENd PlAtfOrmM LOOSE .......uvviiiieeiieiiiiiiiee ettt e e ee ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e s esaaraeeeeeee e sbaseeeeesessssaneseeeeeansrneeeaenaan 5,000 7,500
126.B1  ENd Platform or Brace BeNt ..........oeiiiiiiiiiii ettt 3,000 4,500
126.B2 End Platform Wrong DIMENSIONS .........coiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt sttt sae e saeeereenseeens 3,000 4,500
126.C1 End Platform Improperly APPIEd .........ooiiioiiiiieiie et 3,000 4,500
126.C2 End Platform With Less Than Required Clearance to Vertical Plane Through Inside Knuckle .............. 3,000 4,500
126.C3 End Platform Improperly LOCAIEA .........ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiesiee ettt 3,000 4,500
126.C4  ENd Platform OBSIIUCIEA .........coiiiiiiieeeiieeseees e e s nenn 5,000 7,500
128.A1 Platform or SWitching Step MISSING ......ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e et 6,500 9,000
128.A2 Platform or Switching Step Broken or DECAYET ..........cociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie it 6,500 9,000
128.A3 Platform or SWtChing SEP LOOSE .......eeiiiuiiiiiiiiiirieii ettt ittt 5,000 7,500
128.B1 Platform or SWitChing STEP BENT ......coiiiiiiiiiie e et 5,000 7,500
128.B2 Platform or Switching Step Does Not Meet the Required Location or DIimensions ...........ccccecvevereenne 3,000 4,500
128.C1 Platform or Switching Step Improperly Applied or Repaired ...........ccoveeiiieiiiiiiieenieeeesee e 5,000 7,500
128.C2 Platform or Switching Step ODSIIUCIE .......c..iiiiiiiiiiii et 5,000 7,500
128.D1 Switching Step Back Stop or Kick Plate MiSSING ........cccuiiiiiiiieiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
128.D2 Switching Step Not llluminated When ReqUIred ..........cccoeciiiiiiiiiiieieieseeeee e 3,000 4,500
128.D3 Non-llluminated Step Not Painted Contrasting Color ..........ccociiiiiiiiiiieiieeee e 1,500 2,500
130.A1  Sill Step or Additional Tread, MISSING ......cociiiiiiiiiiii ettt et e b e e e e e ee e saeeeseasseaans 6,500 9,000
130.A2 Sill Step or Additional Tread, BrOKEN .........cccceeeiiiiiiiiiie e cteeeste e et e srtee e st e e e snee e e s naeeensseeeennseeesnnnes 6,500 9,000
130.A3 Sill Step or Additional Tread, LOOSE .......cc.coiiiiiiiiiieiieiie ettt st e et e et e e aeesaeeeseasneaans 5,000 7,500
130.B1  Sill Step or Additional Tread, BENt ........cceeeiiiiiieiiie e ciee st e s e et e e s e e e st e e e snae e e sneeeennseeesnnneeesnnnes 5,000 7,500
130.B2 Sill Step or Additional Tread, Having Wrong Dimensions or Improperly Located ...........ccccccovvviiinicnene 3,000 4,500
130.B3  Sill Step IMProperly APPIEA ........oo ittt 3,000 4,500
132. A1 SIdE MISSING SEEP ....eiiiiietiiii ettt ettt et bt et e b h e e bt ae e bt b e beeae e b e nbe e e e nneennenn 6,500 9,000
132.A2  Side DOOI STEP BIOKEN ...cooueiiiiiiieeeieie ettt e ettt e st e et e e et e e st e e e sasaeesasaeeeaseeaesnseeeesnseeeanseeeeanseeeannsenesnnnen 6,500 9,000
132.A3  Side DOOK SEEP LOOSE ....eeiiiiiiiiiieie ittt ettt ettt bt h et b et e bt b et ehe e b e nae e e e naeenne s 5,000 7,500
JEC 720 = B BT To T T Yo g T o B = 1= o OSSR 5,000 7,500
132.B2 Side Door Step Having Wrong DIMENSIONS ..........cieriiriiiiiiiiiie ittt 3,000 4,500
RS I I o (o 1= g =11 Vo PSPPSR 6,500 9,000
LR T v IR To (o (=Y gl =T (=T o [PPSR 6,500 9,000
T134.A3  LAOdEr LOOSE ....ooueiiiiiiii e e e 5,000 7,500
LIS N = I I To (o L= g = 1= T o | PSSO S PRSPPSO 5,000 7,500
134.B2 Ladder Having Wrong DIMENSIONS .......cc.eeiiiiiiiiiiiee et st e e e e s e e e s nnne e e snnes 3,000 4,500
134.C1  Ladder IMproperly APPHEA ........ooeiiiiiiiiiteeieitee ettt ettt b et eb et neenae e e naeenneas 3,000 4,500
134.C2 Ladder Having Insufficient Clearance or Improperly Located ...........ccoceeiiiiniiiiieenienieesee e 3,000 4,500
134.C3  Ladder WIONG DESIGN . ..oiiuiiiiiieitieiie ettt ettt et e st e e be e s aee e bt e eabeebeasmseeebeesmseaaseeanbeasseaanseesneeenseasnnaans 3,000 4,500
134.C4  Ladder WroNg MAEMIAL ........ccueiiuiiiii ettt ettt ettt sttt e et e bt e ebe e naeeereenineens 3,000 4,500
134.D1 ENd Clearance INSUFICIENT ..........cooiiuiiiiiiiee ettt e et e e e et e e e ete e e e eareeeeeneeeeenbaeeeenseeesnnes 3,000 4,500
136.A1 Ladder Tread or Handholds MiISSING ........coiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiee e e e 6,500 9,000
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136.A2 Ladder Tread or Handhold BroKEN ............ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiee et e s 6,500 9,000
136.A3 Ladder Tread or Handhold Loose Except By DeSIGN ........cccoociiiiiiiiiiiiieiiee et 5,000 7,500
136.B1 Ladder Tread or Handhold Bent to The Extent That It May Be Unsafe .........ccoccooviiviiiiiiiiincceeeee 5,000 7,500
136.B2 Ladder Tread or Handhold Wrong DIMENSIONS .......ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt e e be e e nee e 3,000 4,500
136.C1 Ladder Tread or Handhold Improperly APPlIEA .........c.ooiiiiiiiiiieiee e 3,000 4,500
136.C2 Ladder Tread or Handhold Having Wrong ClEaranCe ..........cccceceiiiiiiieiiieeiie e 3,000 4,500
136.C3 Ladder or Handhold Improperly LOCAEA ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt 3,000 4,500
136.C4 Ladder Tread or Handhold ODSIIUCIEA ..........coeiiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt 5,000 7,500
136.C5 Ladder Tread WithOut FOOIQUAITS ........cocuiiiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt sttt nn e niee e 5,000 7,500
138.A1 Hand or Safety RailiNg MISSING ....ccoueiuieiiitiiieitee ettt sae e sre e nne e 6,500 9,000
138.A2 Hand or Safety Railing BroKEN .........ooiiiiiiiiiii e ettt 6,500 9,000
138.A3 Hand or Safety Railing Loose EXCEpt By DESIGN .....cccueviriiriiiiiiiiiie et 5,000 7,500
138.B1 Hand or Safety Railing BENT ........ooiiiiiiiiiee e et 5,000 7,500
138.B2 Hand or Safety Railing Wrong DIMENSIONS .......ccuiiiriiriiiiirieeie ettt 3,000 4,500
138.C1 Hand or Safety Railing Improperly APPlIEd .........ooiiiiiiiiiiiieiie e 3,000 4,500
138.C2 Hand or Safety Railing Having Less Than the Required Clearance ..........ccccccocoeeriieiieiieeeiieieeseeseene 3,000 4,500
138.C3 Hand or Safety Railing Improperly LOCAtEA ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiieiee e 3,000 4,500
140.A1  Uncoupling Lever MISSING .......cooiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt b e sine e 5,000 7,500
140.A2 Uncoupling Lever Broken or DISCONNECIEA ........ccueeiiiiiiiiiiieeciee e 5,000 7,500
140.B1  Uncoupling Lever Bent Will Not Safely and Reasonably Function As Intended ..........cccoceevinieiinicnne 5,000 7,500
140.C1  Uncoupling Lever Bracket Bent Lever Will Not Function Properly .........ccccooeiiiiiniiniinicieceeeeneens 5,000 7,500
140.C2 Uncoupling Lever Bracket Broken or MISSING ........cccecirirriiriiriiiiiiie ettt 5,000 7,500
140.D1  Uncoupling Lever Wrong DIMENSION .........ooiuiiiiiiiie et e e e e e e e e 3,000 4,500
140.D2 Uncoupling Lever With Improper Handle ClearanCe ...........cccevirieiriiiiinieieseeeese e 3,000 4,500
B B @700 o] [ g Y 1111 o o U PRSPPI 6,500 9,000
144.B1  Coupler HEight INCOMECT .........ooiiieiiiiieeee ettt sb e nae e 3,000 4,500
B O B @0 10 o] L= gl g o] o T=T = {1V SRS 5,000 7,500
T45.A1  KICK Plate@S MISSING ..eeiueeiiiiiiii ittt ettt ettt e e s et e e s st e e e sbee e eabbeeesabeeeeanseeeaneeeeanseeeaanneeesnnen 3,000 4,500
T145.A2  KiCK Plates BIOKEN ........eiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt e e s e s s ne e e e nan e e e e mn e e e e nn e e e nreeesenneeesnnes 3,000 4,500
145.B1 Kick Plates Wrong DIMENSIONS .........eiiiiiiiiiiiieiitie ettt et e st e s iae e ste e e e s aee e e s saseesaneeeeanbeeesanseeasnnes 3,000 4,500
145.B2 Kick Plates IMProper CIEAIANCE .........cceiceieiiieieeiiieesieeessteeessseeeessaeesssseeesasseaesseeesssseeessssessassesesnsseessnses 3,000 4,500
145.B3 Kick Plates Insecure Or Improperly APPHEa .........ooeiiiiiiiiiieie et 3,000 4,500
146.A Notice or Stencil not Posted on Cabooses with Running Boards Removed ...........cccocovniiiiiinienieennens 1,500 2,500
146.B Safe Means not Provided to Clean or Maintain Windows of Cab0o0Se ...........cccccoeeeiiiiieiiiiecciiee e 1,500 2,500
231.31 Drawbars, standard NEIGNt .........coo i 5,000 7,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2This schedule uses section numbers from FRA’s Safety Appliance Defect Code, a restatement of the CFR text in a reorganized format. For
convenience, and as an exception to FRA’s general policy, penalty citations will cite the defect code rather than the CFR. FRA reserves the right,
should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR and/or statutory citation in place of the defect code section cited in the

penalty demand letter.

PART 232—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20102-20103, 20107, 34, Appendjx A to part 232 is revised
20133, 20141, 20301-20303, 20306, 21301 to read as follows:

33. The authority citation for part 232 21302, 21304; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49
continues to read as follows: CFR 1.49.

APPENDIX A TO PART 232.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

Section Violation vivc\>llirll|Iiuoln
Subpart A—General
232.15 Movement of power brake defects:
(a) Improper MOVEMENT, GENEIAI .......cc.eiiiiiiiiiiie ettt eb e sr e et b e sbeeenees M 1
(11) Failure to make determinations and provide notification of en route defect ... $5,000 $7,500
() 7o) aaT o] 1=y (I =TI LU =10 (oI ¢= o PSSO P U SPOPPRO 5,000 7,500
(1) INSUFFICIENT T8G OF TECOIT ...ttt et 1,500 2,500
(2), (4) Improper remMOVaAl Of TAG ......evvereeriiiieie e 5,000 7,500
(3) Failure to retain reCord Of TAG ........ooiuiiriiiie ettt 5,000 7,500
(C) IMProper 10adiNg OF PUIGING ...ceiuuiiiuiieieeitie et ie sttt sttt e et sae e st e e ste e eb e e sae e e abeesaseebeeaabeesneesabeenseeenbeesnneenneas 5,000 7,500
(e) Improper placement of defective EQUIPMENT .......c.coiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
232.19  Availability Of FECOMAS .....ouiiiiiiiii ettt sttt e bt e bt e ssbe e bt e sate et e e enbeesaeesnseennns U U
Subpart B—General Requirements
232.103 All train brake systems:
(a)—(c), (h)—(i) Failure to meet general design reqUIrEMENES ...........cceeviiiiiiiieiiie e 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to have proper percentage of operative brakes from Class | brake test ..........ccccociviiinnecenn. 6,500 9,000
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APPENDIX A TO PART 232.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES—Continued

: I Willful
Section Violation violation
(e) Operating with less than 85 percent operative brakes ............coocioiiiiiiiiieiiici e 6,500 9,000
(f) Improper use of car with inoperative or ineffective brakes ...........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(g) Improper display Of PISTON trAVE] .........coiiiiiiiiie et 5,000 7,500
(m) Failure to stop train with excess air flow or gradient ............ccoociiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(n) Securement of unattended equipment:
(1) Failure to apply sufficient number of hand brakes; failure to develop or implement procedure to
VErify NUMDET @PPIIEA ... .ottt e et e b e ar e e ne e nan e ne e 6,500 9,000
(2) Failure to initiate MErgENCY ........cciiiiiiiii e s 5,000 7,500
(3) Failure to apply hand brakes on [0COMOLIVES .......cc.coiuiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 5,000 7,500
(4) Failure to adopt or comply with procedures for securing unattended locomotive ..........c.ccceoeereeenen. 6,500 9,000
(0) Improper adjustment of air regulating EVICES .........c.oiiuiiiiiiiiiii e e 5,000 7,500
(p) Failure to hold supervisors jointly reSPONSIDIE .........c.coiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e e 5,000 7,500
232.105 Locomotives:
(a) Air brakes not in safe and suitable CONAItION ...........ccociiiriiiiieee e 6,500 9,000
(b) Not equipped with proper hand or parking Brake ............coceiiiiiiiiei e 6,500 9,000
(c)(1) Failure to inspect/repair hand or parking brake ..o e 5,000 7,500
(2) Failure to properly stencil, tag, or record 3,000 4,500
(d) Excess leakage from equalizing reservoir 5,000 7,500
(e) Improper use of feed or regulating valve braking ..........cccccoiiiriiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(f) Improper use of PASSENGET POSITION ......cc.iiiiiiiiiiiee ettt sneeeneas 5,000 7,500
(g) Brakes in operative CONAILION ..........oiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e saeeeneas 6,500 9,000
232.107 Air sources/cold weather operations:
(a)(1), (2) Failure to adopt or comply with monitoring program for yard air SOUrCes .........c.cceveerverieeneeennn. 6,500 9,000
(B) Failure t0 MaiNtAIN FECOMAS .....co.uiiiiiiiiieiiee ettt sttt e s ab e bt e e b e e sae e sabeesbeeeabeesnneenneas 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to BIOW CONAENSALION ......couiiiiiiiiiietie ettt et sttt e s sb e e sbe e st e e nbeeenbeesaeeenneas 6,500 9,000
(€) Use Of iMProper ChEMICAIS .........coiiiiiiriiriee ettt e e sr e e e s re e e 6,500 9,000
(d) Failure to equip or drain yard @ir FESEIVOIIS ........cccvirrueririeerieeie sttt st eesre e sr e e 6,500 9,000
(e) Failure to adopt or comply cold weather operating proCedures ............ccceoviiriiinieiiieeiee e 6,500 9,000
232.109 Dynamic brakes:
(a) Failure to provide INfOrmMation ............cooiiiiiii e s 5,000 7,500
(o) IRE= LT (oI 4 F= LT =T o = S 5,000 7,500
(C) Failure 10 ProPerly Tag ....ccuiiiieiiieiee ettt st st 3,000 4,500
(d) Failure to maintain reCord Of FEPAIN .......cccueiiiiiie e e e e e e e e te e e s e e e s aee e e naeeeennnneesnnneeennees 1,500 2,500
(€) IMProper dEACHVALION .........ociiiiiii et st e st eb e 5,000 7,500
(f) Improper use of locomotive as CoNtrolliNg UNIt ........couoiiiiiiii e e 5,000 7,500
(9) Locomotive not properly equipped With INICALOr ..........cccocuiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(h) Rebuilt locomotive Not Properly EQUIPPEA .........oiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt 5,000 7,500
(j) Failure to adopt or comply with dynamic brake operating rules ...........ccooceiviiiiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
(k) Failure to adopt or comply with training on operating ProCedUres ...........ccooceeriirreeriieenie e 6,500 9,000
232.111 Train handling information:
(a) Failure to adopt and comply With ProCEAUIES ........couiiiuiiiiieie e 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to provide specific INfOrMAtioN ...........cociiiiiiiiiii s 5,000 7,500
Subpart C—Inspection and Testing Requirements
232.203 Training requirements:
(a) Failure to develop Or @dOPt PrOGIAM ........oiuiiiiiiiee ettt sttt sttt sab et e b e e sae e sabeenbe e e b e e saeeenneas 8,500 11,000
(b)(1)—(9) Failure to address or comply with specific required item or provision of program ............ccceceeeueee. 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to adopt or comply with two-way EOT Program ..........cceceereeeieenienieeeseeeieesiee e e eseee e esseesneas 6,500 9,000
(d) Failure to adopt or comply with retaining valve program ..........ccceceiiiiiiiirieniieee e 6,500 9,000
(e) Failure to maintain adequAate FECOMIS .........c.ciiiiiiiiiiieetie ettt sttt e sae et esaeeenneas 6,500 9,000
(f) Failure to adopt and comply with periodic assessment plan ...........c.ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiieei e 8,500 11,000
232.205 Class | brake test—initial terminal inspection:
(a) Complete failure to perform INSPECHON .........coiiiiiiiiie e e 18,500 11,000
(c)(1)—(4), (6)—(8) Partial failure to perform INSPECHON ........ccoiuiiiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
(c)(5) Failure to properly adjust piSton travel (PEF CAI) .....c.eoiiiiiiiiiiie et snees 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to use carman WhEN FEQUITEA ...........ooiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt s b e b e bt ste et e e b e e saeeeneas 3,000 4,500
(e) Failure to provide proper NOfICAtION ..........ciiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 5,000 7,500
(f) Failure to vOid COMPIESSEA @IF .....ccueiiiiiiiieiiie ittt sae et e st e e bt e s ab e e sbe e saeeenbeeeabeesbeeenneas 5,000 7,500
232.207 Class IA brake tests—1,000-mile inspection:
(a) Complete failure to perform inspection ........ 16,500 9,000
(b)(1)—(6) Partial failure to perform inspection .. 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to properly designate location ............. 5,000 7,500
(c)(1) Failure to perform at designated location ... 5,000 7,500
(c)(2) Failure to provide NOIfICAtION ........cciiiiiie et sae e e e 5,000 7,500
232.209 Class Il brake tests—intermediate inspection:
(a) Complete failure to Perform INSPECHON .........ooiiiiiiiii et 16,500 9,000
(b)(1)—(5), (c) Partial failure to perform inspection ..... 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to conduct Class | after Class Il pick-up U Q)
232.211 Class lll brake tests—trainline continuity inspection:
(a) Complete failure to Perform INSPECHON .........coiiiiiiiiii et 6,500 9,000
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APPENDIX A TO PART 232.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES—Continued
: N Willful
Section Violation violation
(b)(1)—(4), (c) Partial failure to perform INSPECHION .........ceciiiiriiiieie e 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to restore air PreSSUIE At FEAT ..........coiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt st sae e st e et saeeeneas 5,000 7,500
232.213 Extended haul trains:
(a)(1) Failure to properly designate an extended haul train ...........cccoeiiiiiiiiinc e 6,500 9,000
(a)(2)—(3), (5)(i), (8) Failure to perform inspections U U
(a)(4) Failure to remove defective car (per car) ......... 3,000 4,500
(a)(5)(ii), (6) Failure to conduct inbound inspection 6,500 9,000
(a)(7) Failure to maintain record of defects (PO CAr) ......cociiiiiiiiiiieeee e 3,000 4,500
(b) Improper movement or use of extended haul train ... 6,500 9,000
232.215 Transfer train brake tests:
(a) Failure to perform INSPECHON .......cc.ii it st e e bt st enbe e e b e e sneeenneas 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to perform on cars added 5,000 7,500
232.217 Train brake system tests conducted using yard air:
(a) Failure to USE SUItADIE AEVICE ......c.eiiiiiiiieiee ettt sb e et sae e et e san e e bt e snne s 5,000 7,500
(b) Improper connection of air test device .... 6,500 9,000
(c) Failure to properly perform inspection U U
(d) Failure to calibrate teSt AEVICE .........iiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et st et sae e e 5,000 7,500
(€) Failure 10 USE GCCUIAtE GEVICE .....oiiiiiiiieiiiie ettt ie et ee e ettt e et e e et e e et e e e e et e e e enseeeaneeeeaneeeeanneeeeanseeesnnees 5,000 7,500
232.219 Double heading and helper service:
(a) Failure to perform inspection or inability to control brakes ..........ccccooieiiiiiiiiiiee e 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to make visual INSPECHON ........oiiiiiiiiiii ettt 5,000 7,500
(c) Use of improper helper lINK BVICE ........cc.iiiriiriiriiii ittt 5,000 7,500
Subpart D—Periodic Maintenance and Testing Requirements
232.303 General requirements:
(b)—(d) Failure to conduct inspection or test when car on repair track ..........ccccceriiiiieiiiiiniinieese e, 5,000 7,500
(e) Improper movement of equipment for testing .........cccoocevieenieenen. 5,000 7,500
(e)(1) Failure to properly tag equipment for movement 3,000 4,500
(e)(2)—(4) Failure to retain record or improper removal of tag or Card ..........cccccceeriiiiiieiiiiine e 3,000 4,500
(f) Failure to stencil or track test iINfOrmMation ............cooiioiiiii e 5,000 7,500
232.305 Single car tests:
(a) Failure to test in accord with required ProCEAUIE .........ccociiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(b)—(C) Failure to PerfOrmM tESt .....coceiiiii e 5,000 7,500
232.309 Repair track air brake test and single car test equipment and devices:
(a)—(f) Failure to properly test or CalIrate ............coooiiiiiiiiii s 5,000 7,500
Subpart E—End-of-Train Devices
232.403 Design standards for one-way devices:
(a)—(g) Failure to Meet StANAAIAS .........ooiiiiiiiie ettt st e b e st e sateesbe e e beesaeeenneas 5,000 7,500
232.405 Design standards for two-way devices:
(a)—(i) Failure to Meet STANAAIAS .........ccciiiiiiiieee e 5,000 7,500
232.407 Operating requirements for two-way devices:
(b) Failure t0 @qUIP @ TrAIN ...c.eiiiiiee e e e 6,500 9,000
(c) Improper purchase ..........ccecoeeveeiiieeniinieeseeee 5,000 7,500
(f)(1) Failure of device to be armed and operable .. 6,500 9,000
(f)(2) Insufficient DAttery Charge ..ottt 5,000 7,500
(f)(3) Failure 10 activate the GEVICE .........c.ciiiiiiiiiii ettt 5,000 7,500
(g9) Improper handling of en route failure, freight or other non-passenger . 6,500 6,500
(h) Improper handling of en route failure, PASSENGET ........cccoiiiiiiiiiiie e e 6,500 9,000
232.409 Inspection and testing of devices:
(a) Failure t0 have UNIQUE COOE .......ooiuiiiiiiiiietie ettt ettt et ab e et e e s ab e e bt e saeeenbeeenbeesbeeenneas 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to compare quantitative values .... 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to test emergency capability ........ 6,500 9,000
(d) Failure to properly CaliDrate .............oociiiiiii e e e 5,000 7,500
Subpart F—Introduction of New Brake System Technology
232.503 Process to introduce new technology:
(b) Failure to obtain FRA @PPIOVA ........cociiiiiiiiiieiie ettt sttt sae et e et sneeenees 8,500 11,000
232.505 Pre-revenue service acceptance testing plan:
(a) Failure to obtain FRA @PPIOVA ........cociiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt sttt e e e sbe e ste et e eesneeenneas 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to comply with plan 5,000 7,500
(f) Failure to test previously used technology 6,500 9,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. Generally, when two or more violations of these regulations are
discovered with respect to a single unit of equipment that is placed or continued in service by a railroad, the appropriate penalties set forth above
are aggregated up to a maximum of $11,000 per day. Although the penalties listed for failure to perform the brake inspections and tests under
§232.205 through §232.209 may be assessed for each train that is not properly inspected, failure to perform any of the inspections and tests re-
quired under those sections will be treated as a violation separate and distinct from, and in addition to, any substantive volatile conditions found
on the equipment contained in the train consist. Moreover, the Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to $27,000 for any viola-

tion where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.
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Failure to observe any condition for movement of defective equipment set forth in §232.15(a) will deprive the railroad of the benefit of the
movement-for-repair provision and make the railroad and any responsible individuals liable for penalty under the particular regulatory section(s)

concerning the substantive defect(s) present on the equipment at the time of movement.

Failure to provide any of the records or plans required by this part pursuant to §232.19 will be considered a failure to maintain or develop the
record or plan and will make the railroad liable for penalty under the particular regulatory section(s) concerning the retention or creation of the

document involved.

Failure to properly perform any of the inspections specifically referenced in §232.209, §232.213, and §232.217 may be assessed under each

section of this part or this chapter, or both, that contains the requirements for performing the referenced inspection.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

PART 233—[AMENDED]

35. The authority citation for part 233
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 233.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

36. Appendix A to part 233 is revised
to read as follows:

: I Willful
Section Violation violation
233.5 Accidents resulting from signal failure $5,000 $7,500
233.7 Signal failure reports ........ccccoeveeeenenens 3,000 4,500
P22C TG TS B N o U (=Y o] o - SRR 1,500 2,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28

PART 234—[AMENDED]
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

37. The authority citation for part 234
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 234.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

38. Appendix A to part 234 is revised
to read as follows:

: I Willful
Section? Violation violation
Subpart B—Reports
234.7 Accidents involving grade crossing signal failure ..............cccociiiiiiiiiiiiii $5,000 $7,500
234.9 Grade crossing signal system failure repOMS ..........cccoiiiiriiiriniesceee e 3,000 4,500
Subpart C—Response to Reports of Warning System Malfunction
234.101 Employee NOLIfICAtION TUIES .......oociiiiiiiiie ittt ettt esne e 3,000 4,500
234.103 Timely response to report of MalfunCtion ..o e 6,500 9,000
234.105 Activation failure:
(a) Failure to NOLIfYy—rain CrEWS .......ccuiiiiiiiiiet ettt sttt e eb e sae e et e et e b e anees 8,500 11,000
(1 L= g =111 (oY= To TSROSO ORSRRROPSRRRNt 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure to notify law enforcemMENt AQENCY ........uiiiieiiiiiiieiei et 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to comply with—flagging requiremMents ...........cccooiiiiiiiiic e 6,500 9,000
SPEEA FESLICHONS ...ttt sttt e et e bt e et e e ese e eabeesseeenbeeeaeesmseeanseenbeasneaanneas 6,500 9,000
(d) Failure to activate horn oF WHIStE ........coeiiiiiii et 3,000 4,500
234.106 Partial activation:
(a) Failure to NOtIfy—Arain CrEWS ........c.ciiiiiii e s e 5,000 7,500
Other railroads 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to notify law enforcemMent AQENCY ..........coiiiiiiiiieiie et e 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to comply with—flagging requirements speed restriCtions ...........ccccveerireeninieeneneee e 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to activate horn oF WHIStE ........o..eiiiiiiee ettt s 3,000 4,500
234.107 False activation:
(a) Failure to NOLIfYy—Arain CrEWS .......ccuiiiiiiiiiiie et s sb e 6,500 9,000
(@] (g1 g =111 (o= To [PPSO PPRRION 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to notify law enforcement AQENCY ..........cociiiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to comply with—flagging requiremMents ............ccooiiiiiiiiiicc e 5,000 7,500
S oT=Y= T B Y] (4 ] o] o TSRS 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to activate horn OF WhIStIE ........cocuiiiiiiiecce e e e e e e e e s neeeennneeesnees 3,000 4,500
P2 o L 01 B o= ToTe] o | C=T=T o] o o SRR 1,500 2,500
Subpart D—Maintenance, Inspection, and Testing
Maintenance Standards:
P22 7o I oo o] W o) o] F=T o I PPN 3,000 4,500
P2 7 2 0 B @7 o1 (o] o 1 (o1 U | PPN 5,000 7,500
234.205 Operating characteristics of warning system apparatus ...........ccccceeceeeiiiiiinsiesieesee e 6,500 9,000
234.207 Adjustment, repair, or replacement of COMPONENT .........ccciciiiiiiiiiiiieee e 6,500 9,000
234.209 Interference with normal functioning of SYSteM .........cccceviiiiiiiiii i 8,500 11,000
234.211 Locking of warning system apparatus ...........ccccceiiriiiiiiniie e 3,000 4,500
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APPENDIX A TO PART 234.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued
. o Willful
Section? Violation violation
P T e I € 1 (o TU g Lo USSP ST S PRSP 5,000 7,500
234.215  Standby POWET SYSIEIM ...c.iiiiiiiiiiii ettt st et et b e et e e nae e eneenaneeas 8,500 11,000
234.217  FIashing NGt UNIES .........ooiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt e e e e e e e s s e e e sann e e e snneeesanneeenaes 3,000 4,500
234.219 Gate arm lights and light cable .. 3,000 4,500
234.221 Lamp voltage ........cccceviveeenennn. 5,000 7,500
P e B C T (=Y 14 o S 3,000 4,500
234.225 Activation of Warning SYSIEIM ........ocii ittt a e e 8,500 11,000
234.227 Train detection apparatus 8,500 11,000
234.229 Shunting sensitivity .......... 8,500 11,000
234.231  FOUIING WIFBS ....cuiiiiiiiiiieii e s e s e s 6,500 9,000
2834.233 R JOINIS ..oiiiiiiiiieietieie ettt e r e r e r et n et e n e nn 6,500 9,000
234.235 Insulated rail joints .......cccocoeiciiniiiiieeen. 8,500 11,000
234.237 Switch equipped with circuit controller 3,000 4,500
234.239 Tagging of wires and interference of wires or tags with signal apparatus .............ccccccceiveiinnnen. 3,000 4,500
234.241 Protection of insulated wire; splice in UNderground Wire ............ccceieieiiiiieenee s 5,000 7,500
234.243 Wire on pole line and aerial cable 5,000 7,500
284,245 SIQNS eeitiiieeeti et R R Rt Rt e Rt Rt e R e R e e r e et e r e n e rn 3,000 4,500
Inspections and Tests:

234.247 Purpose of inspections and tests; removal from service of relay or device failing to meet test re-

Lo 0T =T o g T=T o) T TP RTR PP PR URPPPRPON 6,500 9,000
234.249 Ground tests .... 6,500 9,000
234.251 Standby power 5,000 7,500
234.253 Flashing light units and [amp VOIAJE .......ccoooiiiiiiiieiiie e 3,000 4,500
234.255 Gate arm and gate mechanism 3,000 4,500
234.257 Warning system operation ............ 6,500 9,000
234.259  WaArNING tIME ....ooiiiiiiiie e e e e e 5,000 7,500
234.261 Highway traffic signal pre-emplion ... 5,000 7,500
234.263 Relays ......ccccvviiiiiniieeeeee 5,000 7,500
234.265 Timing relays and timing devices 5,000 7,500
234.267 Insulation resistance tests, wires in trunking and cables ..............cccciiiiiiiiiini 5,000 7,500
284.269  CUL-OUL CIFCUIS ....veiueirieieetieieeete sttt ettt sr e e e r e e e e r e s e e neeeeenneneeennan 8,500 11,000
234.271 Insulated rail joints, bond wires, and track connections ... 5,000 7,500
234.273 Results of tests .....ccevirieiiiice e 1,500 2,500
234.275 Processor-Based SYSIEMS .......ccciiiiiiiiiiiieiie e 6,500 9,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 234. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

PART 235—[AMENDED]

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

39. The authority citation for part 235
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 235.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

40. Appendix A to part 235 is revised
to read as follows:

. N Willful
Section Violation violation
235.5 Changes requiring filing of @pPlICAtION .........ccveiiiiiiiier e e $3,000 $4,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

PART 236—[AMENDED]

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28
U.S.C. 2461, note and 49 CFR 1.49.

41. The authority citation for part 236
continues to read as follows:

42. Appendix A to part 236 is revised
to read as follows:
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APPENDIX A TO PART 236.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES 1
: I Willful
Section Violation violation
Subpart A—Rules and Instructions—All Systems
General:
236.0 Applicability, MiNiMUM reQUINEMENES .......cccviieieeiereeeerie e e e ee st ee e esne e ense e eneenneenees $5,000 $7,500
236.1 Plans, where kept 6,500 9,000
P2 [ 2 1 (o T 4 Lo LUV SPROSP 6,500 9,000
236.3 Locking of signal apparatus housings:
(a) Power interlocking machine cabinet not secured against unauthorized entry ...........c.cccocciiiiinnnnen. 3,000 4,500
(D) OthEr VIOIAtIONS .....eeiiiiiiieeiie ettt et b e e e aree s 3,000 4,500
236.4 Interference with normal functioning of device 8,500 11,000
236.5 Design of control circuits on closed Circuit PrinCIPIE ........c.coiciiiiiiiiiiice e 8,500 11,000
236.6 Hand-operated switch equipped with switch circuit controller ... 6,500 9,000
236.7 Circuit controller operated by switch-and-lock movement ...............coccooiiiiiiii e, 6,500 9,000
236.8 Operating characteristics of electro-magnetic, electronic, or electrical apparatus ............ccccceeveevnenne 5,000 7,500
236.9 Selection of circuits through indicating or annunciating iNStruments ..........c.cccoooeiiineiieene e 3,000 4,500
236.10 Electric locks, force drop type; Where requIred ...........c.ooiieiiiiiiiiiieenee et 3,000 4,500
236.11 Adjustment, repair, or replacement of COMPONENT .........cciiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 6,500 9,000
236.12 Spring switch signal protection; Where requUIred ............ccceeeririieneeieeneeee e 5,000 7,500
236.13 Spring switch; selection of signal control circuits through circuit controller ............cccoceverieninnenne. 5,000 7,500
236.14 Spring switch signal protection; reqUIreMENES ...........cocuiiiriiriiiinii s 5,000 7,500
236.15 Timetable INSIIUCLIONS .........oviiiiiii e e e e e e e e e e e e e e st e e e e e e e e sanneaeeaeeaaannes 3,000 4,500
236.16 Electric lock, main track releasing circuit:
(a) Electric lock releasing circuit on main track extends into fouling circuit where turnout not equipped
with derail at clearance point either pipe-connected to switch or independently locked, electrically ... 6,500 9,000
(D) OtNEI VIOIAHIONS ...ttt e s r e e n e e n e e e nenneennes 6,500 9,000
236.17 Pipe for operating connections, requUIreMENtS ..........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiese e 3,000 4,500
236.18 Software management control plan:
Failure to develop and adopt @ Plan .......c.c.ooiiiiiiiiiii s 5,000 7,500
Failure to fully implement PIan ..o e 5,000 7,500
[LaT=To LYo [N =T (N o] - Lo USRS 5,000 7,500
Roadway Signals and Cab Signals—
236.21 Location of roadway SIGNAIS ........c.ccceiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 6,500 9,000
236.22 Semaphore signal arm; clearance to other ObJECS ..........ccoociiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
236.23 Aspects and iNAICALIONS .........coiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e s e s e e r e e e e e e 5,000 7,500
236.24 Spacing Of r0adWay SIGNAIS ......c.eeeeiiruieiiiiieii ettt sttt b e b e e 6,500 9,000
236.26 Buffing deviCe, MAINTENANCE ........c.iiiuiiiieiitie ettt ettt sab e e bt e s b e e saeesneenaeeens 6,500 9,000
Track Circuits—
236.51 Track circuit requirements:
(a) Shunt fouling circuit used where permissible speed through turnout greater than 45 m.p.h ............. 6,500 9,000
(b) Track relay not in de-energized position or device that functions as track relay not in its most re-
strictive state when train, locomotive, or car occupies any part of track circuit, except fouling sec-
tion of turnout of hand-operated main-track CrOSSOVET ..........cociiiiiiiiiiiieie e 8,500 11,000
[(& e 1a L= R/ 1] = L1 (o] o - PSP P PP PPRROPI 6,500 9,000
236.52 Relayed CUL-SECHION .....ccviiiiiiieiiiie ettt e e e s e s e e e s e e e e e e e e snneeesnreeeannneenans 6,500 9,000
236.53 Track circuit feed at grade CroSSING .......cccceiiiiiiiiiiiie it 6,500 9,000
236.54 Minimum length Of track CIFCUIL ...........ooiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
236.55 Dead section; maximum [ENGIN ......ocoiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
236.56  ShUNtiNG SENSILIVITY ....eiiitiiiiiiie ettt ettt b e st e esaeeeneenaeeens 6,500 9,000
236.57 Shunt and fouling wires:
(a) Shunt or fouling wires do not consist of at least two discrete conductors ...........ccocceeveevienieeniecenen. 6,500 9,000
[(o) Ie Lt a1 g VA o] F= o] o I PSP P PPPROPI 5,000 7,500
236.58 Turnout, fouling section:
(a) Rail joint in shunt fouling section NOt bONAEd ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
({0 a1 ARV o] = 14 oo T PP P ST SPUPPR 5,000 7,500
236.59 INnsulated rail JOINES .......oooiiiiiiiie e e e 6,500 9,000
236.60 Switch shunting circuit; USE reStrCIEA .........ooiuiiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
Wires and Cables—
236.71 Signal wires on pole line and aerial Cable ............cooiiiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
236.73 Open-wire transmission line; clearance to other CIrCUIS ...........ccoovriiiriiiiiniiieseee e 5,000 7,500
236.74 Protection of insulated wire; splice in UNderground WIre ...........cccocuieieeiieeiieniee e 5,000 7,500
236.76 Tagging of wires and interference of wires or tags with signal apparatus ...........ccccceeviiniiiiennee 3,000 4,500
Inspections and Tests; All Systems—
236.101 Purpose of inspection and tests; removal from service or relay or device failing to meet test re-

Lo UL T=T0 1T o | - SPRR 5,000 7,500
236.102 Semaphore or search-light signal mMechanisSm ............cccoiiiiriiniii s 6,500 9,000
236.103 Switch circuit controller or poiNt AETECION .........c.eiiiiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
236.104  Shunt fOUING CIFCUIL ...eevieiiieitiiiii ettt ettt e bt e st e e be e saeeeteesnbeesbeeenbeesseeenseaaneaans 5,000 7,500
236.105  EIECHIC IOCK .....ooiiiiiiiiiiiec e e e 5,000 7,500
236.106 Relays ........... 5,000 7,500
2836.107  GrOUNG tESES ...cviiieiiiieeieieee et e e e r e e r e e e e nn e e e e e re e e e nreenenreennenn 5,000 7,500
236.108 Insulation resistance tests, wires in trunking and cables:
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APPENDIX A TO PART 236.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

: I Willful
Section Violation violation
(a) Circuit permitted to function on a conductor having insulation resistance value less than 200,000
(o] 0144 USSP USRS RPN 6,500 9,000
[(0) e {a oI ARV o] - 14 o o T PRSPPI 5,000 7,500
236.109 Time releases, timing relays and timing devices 5,000 7,500
236.110  RESUILS OF tESES ..ot e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s anraeeeeeeesnananneeeas 1,500 2,500
Subpart B—Automatic Block Signal Systems
236.201 Track circuit CONtrol Of SIGNAIS .......coiuiiiiiiiii et 6,500 9,000
236.202 Signal governing movements over hand-operated switch .. 6,500 9,000
236.203 Hand-operated crossover between main tracks; protection .......... 6,500 9,000
236.204 Track signaled for movements in both directions, requirements ..... 6,500 9,000
236.205 Signal control circuits; requiremMents ..........cccccoeveeriieninnieeneeeenn 8,500 11,000
236.206 Battery or power supply with respect to relay; location ..., 5,000 7,500
Subpart C—Interlocking
236.207 Electric lock on hand-operated switch; control:
(a) Approach or time locking of electric lock on hand-operated switch can be defeated by unauthor-
ized use of emergency device which is not kept sealed in the non-release position ............ccceceeeneee. 6,500 9,000
(D) OtNEI VIOIAHIONS ...ttt ettt e s r e e n e se e n e e e neneeennes 5,000 7,500
236.301 Where signals shall be provided ... 5,000 7,500
236.302 Track circuits and route lOCKING ..........cociiiiiiiiiiiie e e s 6,500 7,500
236.303 Control circuits for signals, selection through circuit controller operated by switch points or by
SWitch 10CKING MECHANISM ... e s 6,500 9,000
236.304 Mechanical locking or same protection effected by circuits 6,500 9,000
236.305 Approach or time 10CKING .......cceeviueeiiiiiieriiee e 6,500 9,000
236.306 Facing point lock or switch-and-lock movement . 5,000 7,500
236.307 Indication [0CKING .......ccocviiiiiiiiiiiee e 6,500 9,000
236.308 Mechanical or electric locking or electric circuits; requisites 6,500 9,000
236.309 Loss of shunt protection; where required ...........cccociiiiiiiiiiiiii 6,500 9,000
(a) Loss of shunt of five seconds or less permits release of route locking of power-operated switch,
movable point frog, Or Aerail ............cceiiiiiiii 6,500 9,000
[(o) B4 L= G711 = Lo o - R URPSP 5,000 7,500
236.310 Signal governing approach to home SigNal ..........ccoceiiiiiiiieeiesee e 5,000 7,500
236.311 Signal control circuits, selection through track relays or devices functioning as track relays and
through signal mechanism contacts and time releases at automatic interlocking ..........ccccoceiciiiininnnnns 6,500 9,000
236.312 Movable bridge, interlocking of signal appliances with bridge devices:
(a) Emergency bypass switch or device not locked or sealed ...........coceoireeiinicienecieeee e 6,500 9,000
[(o) e L aT= Ao F= i o T RSP 6,500 9,000
236.314 Electric lock for hand-operated switch or derail:
(a) Approach or time locking of electric lock at hand-operated switch or derail can be defeated by un-
authorized use of emergency device which is not kept sealed in non-release position ...................... 6,500 9,000
[(o) e L aT= Ao F= i o T RSP 6,500 9,000
Rules and Instructions—
236.326 Mechanical locking removed or disarranged; requirement for permitting train movements
through INTEIIOCKING ..o e 5,000 7,500
236.327 Switch, movable-point frog or split-point derail 6,500 9,000
236.328 Plunger of facing-point ...........cocoeiiiiiiiiiiienns 5,000 7,500
236.329 BOIt I0CK ..oocvveeieiiiieiineeee e 6,500 9,000
236.330 Locking dog of switch and lock movement 5,000 7,500
236.334 Point detector ..........ccovriiiiiiiiiieiee e 6,500 9,000
236.335 Dogs, stops and trunnions of mechanical locking .. 3,000 4,500
236.336 Locking bed .......ccccoverieiiieneeeee e 3,000 4,500
236.337 Locking faces of mechanical locking; fit ..........cocceiiiiiiiiiiie 3,000 4,500
236.338 Mechanical locking required in accordance with locking sheet and dog chart . 3,000 4,500
236.339 Mechanical locking; maintenance requireMeNts ...........c.ccoceeiiiiiin i 3,000 4,500
236.340 Electromechanical interlocking machine; locking between electrical and mechanical levers 3,000 4,500
236.341 Latch shoes, rocker links, and quadrants 3,000 4,500
236.342  SWItCh CIrCUIt CONTIOIIET ... e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s eaabaeeeeeeeennnsraeeeas 6,500 9,000
Inspection and Tests—
236.376  MeChaniCal IOCKING .....eiiiiiiiiitieete ettt ettt ettt et san e e be e s e e e sneenreenans 5,000 7,500
236.377 Approach locking ....... 5,000 7,500
236.378 Time locking ..... 5,000 7,500
236.379 Route locking ... 5,000 7,500
236.380 Indication locking . 5,000 7,500
236.381 Traffic locking ................ 5,000 7,500
236.382 Switch obstruction test .........cccceieiiiins 6,500 9,000
236.383 Valve locks, valves, and valve magnets ... 5,000 7,500
236.384 Cross protection ..........ccocceeveerieeneencnennns 5,000 7,500
236.386 Restoring feature on power SWItChES ..........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiii s 5,000 7,500
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APPENDIX A TO PART 236.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued
: I Willful
Section Violation violation
236.387 Movable bridge I0CKING .....c...iiiiiiiiiiei ittt st 6,500 9,000
Subpart D—Traffic Control Systems Standards
236.401 Automatic block signal system and interlocking standards applicable to traffic control systems:
236.402 Signals controlled by track circuits and control Operator ............ccoceeiiiiiiiiieeiieenee e 8,500 11,000
236.403 Signals at controlled POINT ........c.ceeiirieiiiieie et r e nr e 8,500 11,000
236.404 Signals at adjacent CONIol POINS ........ccereeriiiieiiiiie ettt se e ens 8,500 11,000
236.405 Track signaled for movements in both directions, change of direction of traffic ............................ 8,500 11,000
236.407 Approach or time locking; Where requIred ...........ocoooviiiieiiiiiiiiieee e 8,500 11,000
236.408 ROULE IOCKING ...eiiutiiiiiiitieeitieite ettt ettt ettt b e e b e e bt e sae e et e e eab e e s b e e s abeesae e ebeeaaneeas 8,500 11,000
236.410 Locking, hand-operated switch; requirements:
(a) Hand-operated switch on main track not electrically or mechanically locked in normal position
where signal not provided to govern movement to main track, movements made at speeds in ex-
cess of 20 m.p.h., and train or engine movements may clear main track ...........ccccccoovriiiniiiiieenneens 6,500 9,000
(b) Hand-operated switch on signaled siding not electrically or mechanically locked in normal position
where signal not provided to govern movements to signaled siding, train movements made at
speeds in excess of 30 m.p.h., and train or engine movements may clear signaled siding ................ 6,500 9,000
(c) Approach or time locking of electric lock at hand-operated switch can be defeated by use of emer-
gency release device of electric lock which is not kept sealed in non-release position 6,500 9,000
[0 ) Ie Lt a1 g VAo F= o] o I PSPPSR PPRROPI 5,000 7,500
Rules and Instructions—
236.426 Interlocking rules and instructions applicable to traffic control systems ..........ccccoooviiiiiiiiiennene 1,500 2,500
236.476 Interlocking inspections and tests applicable to traffic control systems ...........ccccovviiiiiniiiiiennes 1,500 2,500
Subpart E—Automatic Train Stop, Train Control and Cab Signal Systems Standards
236.501 Forestalling device and SPeed CONTIOL ........cc.eiiiiiiiiiiiieiee ettt 5,000 7,500
236.502 Automatic brake application, initiation by restrictive block conditions stopping distance in ad-

A= 11 Y 6,500 9,000
236.503 Automatic brake application; initiation when predetermined rate of speed exceeded .................... 6,500 9,000
236.504 Operations interconnected with automatic block-signal system ............cccccooiiiiiiiiiiicc, 5,000 7,500
236.505 Proper operative relation between parts along roadway and parts on locomotive ..............cccecee... 3,000 4,500
236.506 Release of brakes after automatic appliCation ...........ccceeiiiiiiiiir i 6,500 9,000
236.507 Brake application; fUll SEIVICE ..........cociiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
236.508 Interference with application of brakes by means of brake valve ..........cccccoociiiiiiiiiiiniieeee 5,000 7,500
236.509 Two or more 10COMOLIVES COUPIEA ........cociiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 3,000 4,500
236.511 Cab signals controlled in accordance with block conditions stopping distance in advance ........... 5,000 7,500
236.512 Cab signal indication when locomotive enters BIOCKS ..........cccceviriiiniiiinineeneceee e 6,500 9,000
236.513  AUAIDIE INAICALOL ...veeiiiieiiiieeeee et e e et e e e e e e et e e e e e e e abaeeeeeeeessssseeeeeseeassssaeeeeesannnnes 5,000 7,500
236.514 Interconnection of cab signal system with roadway signal system ...........ccccccoviiiiiiiiiiiicenee 3,000 4,500
236.515  Visibility Of CaD SIGNAIS ....c..eiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
236.516  POWEE SUPPIY .o e e 3,000 4,500

Rules and Instructions; Roadway—

236.526 Roadway element not functioning Properly .........ocoooiiiiiiiiiii 3,000 4,500
236.527 Roadway element insulation resistance ... 3,000 4,500
236.528 Restrictive condition resulting from open hand-operated switch; requirement ...............ccccoeee 5,000 7,500
236.529 Roadway element inductor; height and distance from rail ............cccoooiiiiiiiiiniii, 3,000 4,500
236.531 Trip arm; height and distance from rail ... 3,000 4,500
236.532 Strap iron indUCEOr; USE FESIHCIEA ......iiiiiiiiiiiie e e et e s e e e nbe e e snreeesnnneeeans 3,000 4,500
236.534 Rate of pressure reduction; equalizing reservoir or brake pipe .........cccccrviiiiiiiiinninici e 5,000 7,500
236.551 POWET SUPPIY VOIAGE .. .eeiiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt ettt b et eae e nneennne e 3,000 4,500
236.552  INSUIALION FESISTANCE ......oiiuiiiiiiiii e e 3,000 4,500
236.553  Seal, WhEre rEQUITEA .......cciiiiiiiiiie it csee ettt e sttt e st e e st e e e sate e e e aeeeessneeeeasaeeessseesanneeeeassneenans 3,000 4,500
236.554 Rate of pressure reduction; equalizing reservoir or brake pipe .........ccccciviiiiiiiiiiniie i 5,000 7,500
236.555 Repaired or reWouNd FECEIVET COIl .......uiiiuiiiiieiiiiiieeiie ettt ettt sne e 1,500 2,500
236.556 AdJUSIMENT Of FEIAY ....oceeiieiii e 3,000 4,500
236.557 Receiver; location with reSpect 10 rail .........oocuiiiiiii i e 3,000 4,500
236.560 Contact element, mechanical trip type; location with respect to rail ..........ccccoovveeiniiciiniciinee, 3,000 4,500
236.562 Minimum rail CUITENT FEQUITEM ......coiiiiieeiiieeeiiee st e st e e ettt e e st e e st e e s naee e e s seeeeasseeessseeesneeeeanseeennns 3,000 4,500
286.563  DEIAY HIME ..o.viieeiiieieeteee ettt r et b e e r e R e r e e n e r e rn 5,000 7,500
236.564 ACKNOWIEAGING tIME ..ottt ettt st et e et b e e e e e sae e nneesaneens 3,000 4,500
236.565 Provision made for preventing operation of pneumatic brake-applying apparatus by double-

heading ClOCK; FEQUIrEMENT .......couiiiiieiee e sttt e a et nbe e eb e nneeeanees 3,000 4,500
236.566 Locomotive of each train operating in train stop, train control or cab signal territory; equipped ... 3,000 4,500
236.567 Restrictions imposed when device fails and/or is cut out en route:

(a) Report not made to designated officer at next available point of communication after automatic

train stop, train control, or cab signal device fails and/or is cut en route .........ccccceceeiiviiiiniinieennes 5,000 7,500
(b) Train permitted to proceed at speed exceeding 79 m.p.h. where automatic train stop, train control,

or cab signal device fails and/or is cut out en route when absolute block established in advance of

train on which device iS INOPErative ..o 5,000 7,500
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APPENDIX A TO PART 236.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

: I Willful
Section Violation violation
(00 I 1A L= Y/ T ] = L1 [ 4 - R PRR 3,000 4,500
236.568 Difference between speeds authorized by roadway signal and cab signal; action ........................ 3,000 4,500
Inspection and Tests; Roadway—
236.576 ROAAWAY EIEBMENT ...t n e e r e e e e e e 3,000 4,500
236.577 Test, acknowledgement, and CUt-iN CIFCUILS ........ceeiiiiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
Inspection and Tests; Locomotive—
236.586 Daily or after trip teSt .......coii 5,000 7,500
236.587 Departure test:
(a) Test of automatic train stop, train control, or cab signal apparatus on locomotive not made on de-
parture of locomotive from initial terminal if equipment on locomotive not cut out between initial ter-
minal and equipped territory 6,500 9,000
(b) Test of automatic train stop, train control, or cab signal apparatus on locomotive not made imme-
diately on entering equipped territory, if equipment on locomotive cut out between initial terminal
EoTaTo [ =To [V o] o =To IR (=14 1 (o] VOO P PSP PR PPP U RUPPRPRTONE 6,500 9,000
(c) Automatic train stop, train control, or cab signal apparatus on locomotive making more than one
trip within 24-hour period not given departure test within corresponding 24-hour period .................... 6,500 9,000
(d) OthEr VIOIALONS ......eieiie i ettt et sbe e sbe e saeeeneeas 5,000 7,500
236.588 Periodic test .. 6,500 9,000
P LTS L T o 1= PSR 5,000 7,500
236.590 Pneumatic apparatus:
(a) Automatic train stop, train control, or cab signal apparatus not inspected and cleaned at least
ONCE EVETY 736 TAYS ....oiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt s e s e e e e b e s b e e s b e s e e et e e s s e e sre e sneeaes 5,000 7,500
[(o) e LT g4 o] F= i o] T SR PRPPI 5,000 7,500
Subpart F—Dragging Equipment and Slide Detectors and Other Similar Protective Devices; Standards
236.601 Signals controlled by devices; I0CAtION ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiee e 6,500 9,000
Subpart H—Standards for Processor-Based Signal and Train Control Systems
236.905 Railroad Safety Program Plan (RSPP):
(a) Failure to develop and submit RSPP when required ...........cccocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeciee e 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to obtain FRA approval for a modification to RSPP 6,500 9,000
236.907 Product Safety Plan (PSP):
(2) Failure t0 deVelop @ PSP ... ettt et b e neas 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to submit @ PSP When reqUIred ...........oceiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt 6,500 9,000
236.909 Minimum Performance Standard:
(a) Failure to make analyses or documentation available .............c.ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiici e, 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to determine that the standard has been met ...........oooiiiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
236.913 Notification to FRA of PSPs:
(a) Failure to prepare a PSP or PSP amendment as requUIred ..........ccoceeriirieniiieiiie e 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to submit a PSP or PSP amendment as required ...........cccceeeiiiiiiiiiin i 6,500 9,000
(c) Field testing without authorization or @pProval .............cooceiiiiiiiie e 8,500 11,000
236.915 Implementation and operation:
(a) Operation of product without authorization or approval .............cceeeiieiiiiieerie e 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure to comply With PSP ......ooiii et 5,000 7,500
(c) Interference with normal functioning safety-critical Product ...........ccccceeriiiiiiiiiiie e, 8,500 11,000
(d) Failure to determine cause and adjust, repair or replace without undue delay or take appropriate
E=Teq i o] T oT=T ol 1o T B =T o - 11 SRRSO PPRPOPPRPN 5,000 7,500
236.917 Retention of records:
(a) Failure to maintain records as reQUIrE ...........oceiiiiiiiiiiieeriie ettt et be e sae e 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to report inconsistency ................... 6,500 9,000
(c) Failure to take prompt countermeasures .... 6,500 9,000
(d) Failure to provide final report ..................... 3,000 4,500
236.919 Operations and Maintenance Manual ............ 5,000 7,500
236.921 Training and qualification program, general ...........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiesee et 5,000 7,500
236.923 Task analysis and basic requirements:
(a) Failure to develop an acceptable training Program ............coceeiiiiiieiiirie e 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to train Persons @s MEQUIrEA ..........coouiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt st et e b e b e saeeeeeas 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to conduct evaluation of training program as required ...........cccceeceriieeiienee e 3,000 4,500
(d) Failure to maintain records as reQUIrE ...........oceeiuiiiiiiiieeriee ettt et be e eeas 1,500 2,500
236.925 Training specific to control office Personnel ...t 5,000 7,500
236.927 Training specific to locomotive engineers and other operating personnel ...........cccccoooeeninieennene 5,000 7,500
236.929 Training SPeCific 10 roadWay WOTKEIS ........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiieiee ettt 5,000 7,500

1The Administrator reserves the right to assess a civil penalty of up to $27,000 per day for any violation where circumstances warrant See 49
CFR part 209, appendix A. A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation The Administrator reserves the right to as-
sess a penalty of up to $27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A The penalty schedule uses
section numbers from 49 CFR part 236 If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section, each item is also designated by a
“penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond to any subsection designation(s)
For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any FRA reserves the right, should litigation become nec-
essary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation, should they differ.
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PART 238—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20133, 44, Appendix A to part 238 is revised
20141, 20302—20303, 20306, 2070120702, to read as follows:
43. The authority citation for part 238  21301-21302, 21304; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; 49
continues to read as follows: CFR 1.49.

APPENDIX A TO PART 238.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

: I Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
Subpart A—General
238.15 Movement of power brake defects:
(b) Improper movement from Class | or 1A brake teSt .........ccocuiiiiiiiiiiiic e $6,500 $9,000
(c) Improper movement of en route defect 5,000 7,500
(2), (3) Insufficient tag or record .........cccceveennee. 1,500 2,500
(4) Failure to determine percent operative Brake ..o 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to follow operating reStriCtONS ........c.coiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e 6,500 9,000
(e) Failure to follow restrictions for inoperative front or rear UNit ...........coccoiieeiiinienie e 5,000 7,500
238.17 Movement of other than power brake defects:
(€)(4), (5) Insufficient tag OF FECOI .........c.iiiiiiiiiee et 1,500 2,500
(d) Failure to inspect or improper use of roller bearings 5,000 7,500
(e) Improper movement of defective safety appliances 5,000 7,500
238.19 Reporting and tracking defective equipment:
(a) Failure to have reporting or tracking SYSIEM ......cc.ooiiiiiiiiiie e e 8,500 11,000
() IR LU= (oI (=Y c= U I (=Y oTo] (o - O RTPSN 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to make records available ...............ooo i 1,500 2,500
(d) Failure to list power brake repair POINES ........cocuiiieiiiiiiieiie ettt st sbeeeneas 3,000 4,500
Subpart B—Safety Planning and General Requirements
238.103 Fire protection plan/fire safety:
(a) Failure to USE ProPer MALEHIAIS .......ccueiiriiriirreeieee ettt e e s e e e sre e e sr e e e s re e e 6,500 9,000
(o) L] oTgo] o T=Y o =T 1T (T o OSSR 1,500 2,500
(c) Failure to consider fire safety on NEW €QUIPMENT ........eeiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
(d) Failure to perform fire safety @nalYSIS ........cccciiiriiriieeie e 6,500 9,000
(e) Failure to develop, adopt or comply With ProCEAUIES .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
238.105 Train electronic hardware and software safety:
(a), (b), (c) Failure to develop and maintain hardware and software safety ..........ccccocceeiiiniiniinciencee, 6,500 9,000
(d) Failure to include required design fEATUIES .........cooiiiiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
(e) Failure to comply with hardware and software safety program ...........cccoceeiiiriiineie e 6,500 9,000
238.107 Inspection, testing, and maintenance plan:
(D) Failure t0 deVEIOP PIAN ..ottt a et sae e et ab e e bt st e e nbe e b nne e nean 6,500 9,000
(b)(1)—(5) Failure of plan to address SPECIfiC HEM .......ciuiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to CONAUCE @NNUAI FEVIEW .........oiiiiiiiiiitiieie ettt sttt ettt e ebeesbe e e beesaeeebeeenneenbeeaneeas 6,500 9,000
238.109 Training, qualification, and designation program:
(a) Failure to develop Or adOPt PrOGIAM ........cciriirtirririier et ettt ettt ettt r et r e sae e e sreenesre e e sreesne e 6,500 9,000
(b)(1)—(4) Failure of plan to address specific item ........c.cccceriiviiiiiiiiiiceee, 5,000 7,500
(b)(5)—(12) Failure to comply with specific required provision the program 5,000 7,500
(b)(13) Failure to maintain adequate reCOIAS .........cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiie et 5,000 7,500
238.111 Pre-revenue service acceptance testing plan:
(a) Failure to properly test previously used eqQUIPMENT ........cocuiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 6,500 9,000
(b)(1) Failure 10 deVEIOP PIAN ......eiiiiiii ittt sttt et e sb et nne e neas 6,500 9,000
(b)(2) Failure to submit plan 10 FRA ... oot e e e e e e e e e e e s e e e s nneeesnneeesnnreeeanees 6,500 9,000
(b)(3) Failure to comply With PIAN .....c..eiiie ettt st sae e 6,500 9,000
(b)(4) Failure to document results Of tESHNG ......coiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 6,500 9,000
(b)(5) Failure to correct safety deficiencies or impose operating limits ..........cccceeriirrieriinnn e, 6,500 9,000
(b)(6) Failure to MAINTAIN FECOIAS ......c.eeiviiiirieitier ettt e e s re e e sre e e sn e e e s reesne e 3,000 4,500
(b)(7) Failure to obtain FRA approval 6,500 9,000
238.113 Emergency window exits ........ 5,000 7,500
238.115 EMErgenCy lIGNtING ......oooiiiiiiii ettt ettt b e st sbe e s r et e s r e sanesre e 5,000 7,500
238.117 Protection against Personal iNJUIY ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiie et sttt s esne e 5,000 7,500
238.119 Rim-stamped straight plate WhEelS ...........cooiiiiiiiiiii e e 5,000 7,500
Subpart C—Specific Requirements for Tier | Equipment
238.203  StatiC €N SIIENGIN ......oieiiiie e ettt et r e e e naneene e 5,000 7,500
238.205 Anti-climbing MECNANISM ... . st e e e e s e e e e ene e s 5,000 7,500
238.207 Link between coupling mechanism and Car DOAY ...........cooiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeeee e 5,000 7,500
238.209 Forward-facing end structure of I0COMOLIVES ..........ccccciiiiiiiiiiiii s 5,000 7,500
238.211  COllISION POSES ...cuviiueeiieiieitieieet ettt ettt ettt st r et b e bt e bt e s e b e e ae e et eae e beeae e neese e nesae e nenee s 5,000 7,500
238.213  COMEI POSES ...eueitiiueirteeutesteeit e sttt et eee et e et e na e et eae e et eae e et eh e e s e e he e s e e b e e st eb e et e eb e et e naeeanenbeennenneennenneennenne 5,000 7,500
238.215  ROIOVEr SIFENGLN ... et 5,000 7,500
238.217 S SITUCIUIE ...ttt et st e bt e ettt e bt e s et e e bt e s an e et e e ean e e saeesneeans 5,000 7,500
238.219 Truck-to-car-body attaChment ............cooiiiiiiiieie ettt 5,000 7,500
oS B2 B 1 =4 o SRSt 5,000 7,500
288.223  FUEBI tANKS .ueeeieietieie sttt ettt e e et et e e et e et e a e et e Rt e e Rt e et ekt e te et et e nae e eenne et e nneeneenneeneene 5,000 7,500
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238.225  EIECHCAI SYSTEIM ..ottt ettt et e e et e bt e ea bt e nbe e nar e et e e e bt nanenre e 5,000 7,500
238.227  SUSPENSION SYSTEIM ....eiitiiiiiiiii ettt ettt ettt ettt eae et e s b et b e sa et et e e ea et e bt e saeeenbeenaseeabeeaaneesanenneenens 5,000 7,500
239.229 Safety appliances—general:
(e) Failure to properly identify eqUIPMENt (PEF CAI) ....ooiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(g) Failure to adopt or comply with iNSPECioN Plan ..........cceoiiiiiiiii s 5,000 7,500
(h) Failure to use qualified PErSON (PEF CAI) ...cc.eiiiiiiiieiiieiie ettt ettt sttt b e sae e et eesbeeebeesaeeenneas 5,000 7,500
(i) Failure to properly conduct initial or periodic iNSPECtON (PEF CAr) .....eevverieerririieiririere e 5,000 7,500
(j) Failure to take proper remedial aCtion (PEF CAI) ......ccereiriirieiriieie ettt 5,000 7,500
(k) Failure to maintain reCords (PEI CAI) ........ccciiiiiiiiiiieie et 3,000 4,500
238.230 Safety appliance—new equipment:
(b)(2) Failure to identify welded applianCe (PEr CA) ........oociiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e 5,000 7,500
(b)(3) Failure to receive approval for USE (PEF CAI) .....ccceeiieiiiiiiiiiiieei ettt 5,000 7,500
(c)(2) Failure to make proper repair (per car) 5,000 7,500
238.231 Brake System (a)—(g), (i)=(N) «eoveeroeeeieireeieeeeeeee 5,000 7,500
(h)(1), (2) Hand or parking brake missing Or iINOPErative ..........c.coovieiiiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
(h)(8) Hand or parking brake inspection or reCord (PEI CAI) .......cceceereeirieerieeiee et e et saee e 5,000 7,500
(h)(4) Hand or parking brake not applied to hold equipment unattended on grade or prematurely released 6,500 9,000
238.233  Interior fithnNgS @Nd SUMACES ......coouiiiiiiiiiiii ettt et e e sae e e be e be e e nbeesaeeeeeennne 5,000 7,500
238.235 DOOIS ...ooveeeririeeierieenrenieenenns 5,000 7,500
238.237 Automated monitoring 5,000 7,500
Subpart D—Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Requirements for Tier | Equipment
238.303 Exterior mechanical inspection of passenger equipment:
(a)(1) Failure to perform mechanical INSPECHION .......c.eiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 5,000 7,500
(a)(2) Failure to inspect secondary brake SYSEM .........ccociiiiiiiiiiiiei e 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to perform inspection on car added t0 train ........coccveeeiiiiiecee e 15,000 7,500
(c) Failure to utilize properly qualified PEISONNEL ........ooiiiiiiiiiie e e 5,000 7,500
(e)(1) Products of combustion not released outsSide Cab ..........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(e)(2) Battery not vented Or gassing EXCESSIVEIY ......c.ccouiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt et 5,000 7,500
(€)(3) Coupler NOt iN Proper CONAITION ........oiuiiiiieiie ettt sttt sb e e sbe e st et e e e e naeeenneas 5,000 7,500
(e)(4) No device under drawbar pins or CONNECION PINS .....cccuiiiiiriiiiiii et 5,000 7,500
(e)(5) Suspension system and spring rigging not in proper CoNdition ...........cccociiriiiiieiiieiee e 5,000 7,500
(€)(6) Truck not in Proper CONAITION ........c.oiiiiiiiii ittt enees 5,000 7,500
(e)(7) Side bearing Not iN Proper CONDItION ........coiuiiiuiiiiieiie ettt et se e et e e e saeeenneas 5,000 7,500
(e)(8) Wheel not in proper condition:
(i), (iv) Flat spot(s) and shelled spot(s):
(A) One spot 272" or more but less than 3”7 in 1ength ... 5,000 7,500
(B) One spot 3”7 0r MOre iN I8NGEN ....o.eiiiiiiiieee e 6,500 9,000
(C) Two adjoining spots each of which is 2” or more in length but less than 274" in length ........... 5,000 7,500
(D) Two adjoining spots each of which are at least 2” in length, if either spot is 227" or more in
1= g o o OO U PP PSP PURURTUPRON 6,500 9,000
(ii) Gouge or chip in flange:
(A) More than 12” but less than 1%&” in length; and more than '2” but less than %s” in width ..... 5,000 7,500
(B) 154" or more in length and %" or more in width ... 6,500 9,000
(i) BrOKEN MM .ot 6,500 9,000
(A RS L= LTI (=TT PR SPUPPRT 5,000 7,500
(vi) Flange thickness of:
(A) 7&” or less but more than 5,000 7,500
(B) 13%16” Or less .....cccoceevevrueenenne 6,500 9,000
(Vi) Tread WO NOIOW ...ttt et nae e et be e e bt e sae e et e e saeeebeesaneenneas 5,000 7,500
(viii) Flange height of:
(A) 112" or greater but less than 155" 5,000 7,500
(=) I o] g 4o = RSO PP RSRNY 6,500 9,000
(ix) Rim thickness:
(A) Less than 1”7 5,000 7,500
(B) '%16” or less 6,500 9,000
(x) Crack or break in flange, tread, rim, plate, or hub:
(A) Crack of 18SS thaN 17 ...ttt b e b st e be e be e b e e saeeeneas 5,000 7,500
(B) Crack Of 17 OF MO .....ooiiiiiieiiee ettt b e st sre et b e an e nees 6,500 9,000
(O T === LT P RSOSSN 6,500 9,000
(XI) LOOSE WIEEI ...ttt ettt et st nae e bt 6,500 9,000
(Xii) WEIAEA WHEEI ...ttt b e ettt e e ab e e sae e st e e sbeesabeesaeeenneas 6,500 9,000
()(10) Improper grounding OF INSUIATION ..ottt et 6,500 9,000
(e)(11) Jumpers or cable connections not in proper CONAItION ..........cooeiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(e)(12) Door or cover plate not properly Marked ...........coocieiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(e)(13) Buffer plate Not Properly PIACEA .........couiiiiiiiiiiie ettt s sae e 5,000 7,500
(e)(14) Diaphragm not properly placed or aligned ...........ccceiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(e)(15) Secondary braking system not in operating mode or contains known defect ...........ccocceeviiiienncenen. 5,000 7,500
(e)(16) Roller bearings:
(IO (g T=T=1 (=T PP USPPPRT 8,500 11,000
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(i) Cap SCrew l00SE OF MISSING .....veiriieitiiitiieti ettt et e st sae e e bt sab e e ebeeeab e e sneesareenbeeaabeenneeenneas 5,000 7,500
(iii) Cap screw lock broken or missing ............. 3,000 4,500
(iv) Seal loose, damaged, or leaks lubricant 5,000 7,500
(g) Record of inspection:
(1), (4) Failure to maintain record of INSPECHION .......cciiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(2) Record contains insufficient information 3,000 4,500
(€)(17) Air COMPIESSOr INOPEIALIVE ...c.veiueiireeireitiriresterreste s st st e e e s b s bt e e s e eeesreenenreenesne e e e nrensnenns 5,000 7,500
238.305 Interior mechanical inspection of passenger cars:
(a) Failure to perform INSPECHION ..........ooiiiiii e 13,000 4,500
(b) Failure to utilize properly qualified personnel .. 3,000 4,500
(c)(1) Failure to protect against personal injury 5,000 7,500
(c)(2) Floors not free of condition that creates hazard .............cocoiiiiiiiiiiic e 5,000 7,500
(c)(B) Access to manual door release not in place 3,000 4,500
(c)(4) Emergency equipment not in place ..........cc.cc...... 3,000 4,500
(c)(5) Emergency brake valve not stenciled or Marked ............cooiiiiiiiiiiieeiie e 3,000 4,500
(c)(6) Door or cover plates not pProperly MArKEA .........coceereeiiiiiii et 3,000 4,500
(c)(7) Safety signage not in place Or 18GIDIE .......c..iiiiiiiiiiie e e 3,000 4,500
(c)(8) Trap door unsafe or IMPrOPErlY SECUIEA .......ccceiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt sttt sae e st et e b e saeeeneeas 5,000 7,500
(c)(9) Vestibule steps NOt illUMINALEA .........cooviiiriiiii e 3,000 4,500
(c)(10) Door not safely operate as iNtENAEA .........ccoeiviririiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(c)(11) Seat broken, loose, or not properly attached ..........c.coociiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(e) Record of inspection:
(1), (4) Failure to maintain record of inspection 3,000 4,500
(2) Record contains insufficient iNfOrMAtIoN ...........oociii i 1,500 2,500
(f) Record of inspection:
(1), (4) Failure to maintain record of INSPECHION .......cciciiiiiiiiei e 3,000 4,500
(2) Record contains insufficient iNfOrMAtION ..........ccccuiviiiie e 1,500 2,500
238.307 Periodic mechanical inspection of passenger cars and unpowered vehicles:
(a) Failure to perform periodic mechanical INSPECHION .........cciuiiiuiiiiiieie e e 15,000 7,500
(b) Failure to utilize properly qualified personnel 5,000 7,500
(c)(1) Seat or seat attachment broken or loose 5,000 7,500
(€)(2) Luggage rack broKEN OF I0OSE ........ceeuiiuirieriiriieiti ettt sttt ettt nr e nr e eeen e 5,000 7,500
(c)(3) Bed, bunks, or restraints broken OF I00SE ..........ciiiiiiiiiiiie e e e snees 5,000 7,500
(c)(4) Emergency window exit not properly operate .. 5,000 7,500
(c)(5) Emergency lighting not operational .................. 5,000 7,500
(c)(6) Switches Not in Proper CONAITION ..........coiuiiiiiiiie ittt st sbeeenees 5,000 7,500
(€)(7) Coupler Not in Proper CONGIION ........cc.eiiiieiieeiee ittt e e sre e e b e e e e snneenees 5,000 7,500
(c)(8) Truck not equipped with SECUrNg arraNgemMENt .........ccccuiiiiiriiiinii ettt et 5,000 7,500
(€)(9) Truck center casting cracked OF DIrOKEN ..........c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et 6,500 9,000
(c)(10) General conditions endangering CreW, PASSENJETS .......ccueiiueereraiueareeaeeeseeeareaaseeasseeseeeasesanseesseessens 5,000 7,500
(c)(13) Hand or parking brake test Not PEOrMEM ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiee e 5,000 7,500
(d)(1) Manual door release does not operate as intended ............cccooiiiiiiiiiciiie 5,000 7,500
(d)(2) Hand or parking brake inspection Not PerformMed ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiienie e 5,000 7,500
(e)(1) Failure to maintain record of INSPECHON .........ccoiiiiiiiiii s 3,000 4,500
(i)—(iv) Record contains insufficient iNfOrmMation ............ccceeeiiiie i 3,000 4,500
(f)(1) Record of inspection:
(i) Failure to maintain record of INSPECHION ......c..eiiiiiiie e e e neee s 3,000 4,500
(ii) Record contains insufficient INfOrMation ..o 1,500 2,500
238.309 Periodic brake equipment maintenance:
(b) Failure to perform on MU I0COMOLIVE ........cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to perform on conventional l0cCOMOtIVe .........cccevevieeeviciee e, 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to perform on passenger coaches or other unpowered vehicle 5,000 7,500
(e) Failure to Perform ON CaD CAI .......oooiiiie e e e e e et e e st e e e s e e e e naeeeenneeeannneeennnens 5,000 7,500
(f) Record of periodic maintenance:
(1), (2) Failure to maintain record Or StENCIl .........cocciiiiiiie e et e e eeee s 3,000 4,500
238.311 Single car tests:
(a) Failure to test in accord with required ProCEAUIE ........c.eieiiiieiiiiie e enee e e eneeeennneas 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to utilize properly qualified Personnel ..o 5,000 7,500
(c), (e) Failure to perform SiNGIE Car tEST .......ccuiiiiiiii et 5,000 7,500
(f) Improper movement of car for teSHNG ..o 3,000 4,500
(g) Failure to test after repair or replacement of COMPONENT .........ooiuiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
238.313 Class | brake test:
(a) Failure to perform on commuter or short distance intercity passenger train ..........cccccveerveeneeneeneeenen. 18,500 11,000
(b) Failure to perform on long-distance intercity passenger train ...........ccocooveiiiiiiiiiecee e 18,500 11,000
(c) Failure to perform on cars added to PaSSENGET TrAIN ......cccueiiiiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
(d) Failure to utilized properly qualified Personnel ...........cccooiiiiiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
(f) Passenger train used from Class | brake test with less than 100% operative brakes ..........cccccoovvrnnennen. 6,500 9,000
(9) Partial failure to perform inspection on a passenger train ...........ccccoiiieiieiiieiiieee e 6,500 9,000
(3) Failure to adjust piSton travel (PEI CAI) .......oociiiiiiiieiii ettt 5,000 7,500
() Failure 10 MaiNtaIN FECOIA ......co ittt et e et e e et e e e e ab e e e e ne e e e bt e e enbeeesanneeeaneen 3,000 4,500
(j) Failure to perform additional Class | brake teSt ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiii e 8,500 11,000
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(1)(B) Failure 1o Maintain FECOIT ........couiiiiiietietee ettt e et e e s eenn e e e r e e 3,000 4,500
238.315 Class IA brake test:
(a) Failure to perform INSPECHION .......c..iiiiiiiii ittt e r e sar et sbeeeaneas 16,500 9,000
(d) Failure to utilize properly qualified PErSONNEI .........cccieoiiiiiiiiieieceeee e 5,000 7,500
(e) Passenger train used from Class |A brake test with improper percentage of operative brakes ............... 6,500 9,000
(f) Partial failure to perform inspection on PasSENGEr train ...........cccceiiiiiieiieeiie e 5,000 7,500
238.317 Class Il brake test:
(a) Failure to perform INSPECHION .......cc. i ittt st sae e st e nbe e e e e naeeenneas 15,000 7,500
(b) Failure to utilize properly qualified personnel ...........cccccceveeeneene 5,000 7,500
(c) Improper use of defective equipment from Class Il brake test 5,000 7,500
238.319 Running brake tests:

(a), (b) Failure to perform test .... 3,000 4,500
238.321  OUL-Of-SEIVICE CIEAIL .....cueiieiiiie et e e et e e e e e e et b e e eeab e e e esseeesaseeesanneeeeseeaeanseeeas 3,000 4,500
Subpart E—Specific Requirements for Tier Il Passenger Equipment
238.403 Crash energy management 5,000 7,500
238.405 Longitudinal static compressive strength . 5,000 7,500
238.407 Anti-climbing MECNANISIM ... st este e e st e e s aane e e e nn e e e enneee s 5,000 7,500

238.409 Forward end structures of power car cabs:
(2) Center COllISION POST .....ooiiiiiiiiie ettt sttt st b e e s b e e b e sr e e nbe e s e e bneeane s 5,000 7,500
() IS [e [N ote] [ =1 o g I oo F= £SO STOPRRI 5,000 7,500
(c) Corner posts 5,000 7,500
(o) RS TP P R UP PP 5,000 7,500
238.411 Rear end structures of power car cabs:
[C ) I O] 0 1= g oo ] T PP PSP PRUSPTOPPRO 5,000 7,500
(D) COllISION POSES ...ttt ettt ettt b e e bt a ettt e s b e b e e e hb e e b e nn et r e ern e e ne s 5,000 7,500
238.413 ENd StruCtUres Of trail@r CAIS .......cceeiiiiiiitieiieeieee ettt st e e e enne e e 5,000 7,500
238.415  ROIIOVEr SITENGEN ..o e e 5,000 7,500
238.417  SIAE I0AAS .....eeiuiitieiee ittt et a et ea et ae bbb R b E e et b e et nh e e bt e e e ne e e neeane e 5,000 7,500
238.419 Truck-to-car-body and truck component attaChment .............ccoooiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
238.421 Glazing:
(b) End-facing exterior QIazing ..........coceiicieiieiiie et e et 5,000 7,500
(c) Alternate glazing reQUITEMENTS ........cocuiiiiiiiieiee ettt ettt esae e e beessbe e saeesaeeenseeenbeesneeenneas 5,000 7,500
(d) GIAZING SECUIEMENT ... .eeiiiiitiiite ettt et b e et e a e et e ete e e bt e eae e et e e sas e e bt e ess e e bt e saeeenbeeenneennneenneen 1,500 2,500
(YIRS L0 o1 T TP R PP UPUROPRPROPIN 3,000 4,500
238.423 Fuel tanks:
L I T (g T= U (01T R - U OSSR 5,000 7,500
(D) INtErNAl fUBI TANKS ...ttt et e et e e e e st e e e e ae e e e s ne e e s nbeeesnbeeesnneeesnnen 5,000 7,500
238.425 Electrical system:
[C Y @ (eT ) o] (o] (=T o] I PP TSP O PR URPTOPPRO 5,000 7,500
(D) MaIN DAIEIY SYSIEM ...ttt ettt et b e et neen 5,000 7,500
(C) Power diSSIPAtiON FESISIOIS .....c..uiiiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt sttt e an e sae et e et e eennneenean 5,000 7,500
(d) Electromagnetic interference and compatibility ..........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiii 5,000 7,500
238.427  SUSPENSION SYSTEIM ....eiiiiiiiiiiii ettt sttt et e h e bt e sae e e bt e s b e e e bt e saeeeabeeea bt e bt e eaeeenbeeeabeeabeeanneesanesaneenans 5,000 7,500
238.429 Safety Appliances:
[E= Y IO 1N o] [T = PSP SOTSORRR 6,500 9,000
(D) HaNA/PArking DraKES .........cceieeiiiiieieiieesiee ettt sttt n e e e e s e e e e nre e e nne e e e nneennene 6,500 9,000
(d) Handrail and handhold MISSING ......cc.coeeiiririerii ettt sr e e r e e 5,000 7,500
(d)(1)—(8) Handrail or handhold improper AeSIGN ........c.cciecieiiiiiiiiieeeee et 5,000 7,500
(©) Sill SLEP MUSSING ...ttt ettt ea et ettt h e bt b e e bt s b e bt e e e e e bt et e sheeanenne e e e nbeene e bennrene 6,500 9,000
(€)(1)—(11) Sill Step IMProPEr AESIGN ....cocuieiiieiie ittt ettt b e e e e sb e st e sbe e e b e srneenees 5,000 7,500
(g) Optional safety APPIANCES ......cc..iiiuiiiiiii ettt sttt et e bt sare et nar e nneeeanees 5,000 7,500
238.431 Brake system 5,000 7,500
238.433 Draft System 5,000 7,500
238.435 Interior fithiNgS @Nd SUMACES ......cocuiiiiiiiii ittt b e sbe e e saeestee e 5,000 7,500
238.437 Emergency COMMUNICALION .......cocuiiiiiiieeiiiie et e e s s e e s sne e e e smn e e e e snn e e e aneeeeanneeeas 5,000 7,500
238.439 Doors:
[ I = T o T =]To [N [o o] - PSP SSTSOPRR 5,000 7,500
(D) Manual OVErTide fEALUME .......c.eiiiiieiiecee ettt e e sre e e sr e e e reenne e 5,000 7,500
(c) Notification t0 Crew Of OOK STALUS .......coiuiiiiiiiiiieie ettt e et st e et e e e saeeenneas 5,000 7,500
(d) EMErgency DACK-UDP POWET ......c.ciiiuiiiiiiiie ittt sttt sttt e e et e e s et e e e e e e sbe e sare e sbe e s b e e sbnesaneas 5,000 7,500
(f) End door kick-out panel or pOP-0Ut WINAOW .........cceriiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt st st s 5,000 7,500
() Marking and INSTIUCHIONS ........ciiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt ettt e e b e e s be e se e e nbe e e bt e snneeanees [Reserved] | ....coovvvriviennenne
238.441 Emergency roof hatch entrance 10Cation ... 5,000 7,500
PSR B 1= o | o (SRS SRRt 5,000 7,500
238.445 AUtoMAtEd MONITOTING .euviiiiiiiiiii ettt et sttt e e st e bt e ea et e nbe e eaneenbeeeaneesanesneenans 5,000 7,500
238.447 Train operator’s controls and power car €ab 1ay0OUt ..........occeiiiiiiiiiei i 5,000 7,500

Subpart F—Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Requirements for Tier Il Passenger Equipment

238.503 Inspection, testing, and maintenance requirements:
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APPENDIX A TO PART 238.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

Section? Violation ViVC\)llinuOIn
(a) Failure to develop inspection, testing, and maintenance program or obtain FRA approval ..........c..c........ 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure to comply with provisions of the Program ..........ccccceoiiiiiiiiiiii s 6,500 9,000
(c) Failure to ensure equipment free of conditions which endanger safety of crew, passengers, or equip-

L0 T=Y 0 PSS 5,000 7,500
(d) Specific safety inspections:

(1)(i) Failure to perform Class | brake test or equIivalent ............cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 8,500 11,000

(1)(ii) Partial failure to perform Class | brake test or equivalent ...........ccccocoiiiiiiiiiininiieeen 6,500 9,000

(2)(i) Failure to perform exterior mechanical inspection 15,000 7,500

(2)(ii) Failure to perform interior mechanical inspection 13,000 4,500
(g) Failure to perform scheduled maintenance as required iN Program ..........cccccecieneeeiieeneenneesre e 5,000 7,500
(h) Failure to comply with training, qualification and designation program ............cccoceeriieienieene e, 6,500 9,000
(i) Failure to develop or comply with standard procedures for performing inspection, tests, and mainte-

LA E= TSP P PR OPTN 5,000 7,500
(j) Failure to cONAUCTE aNNUAI FEVIEW ..........iiiiiiiiieieie ettt ettt r e et nbeeenees 6,500 9,000
(k) Failure to establish or utilize quality CONrol Program ...........c.coeiieiiiiiieiie e e 6,500 9,000

Subpart G—Specific Safety Planning Requirements for Tier Il Passenger Equipment
238.603 Safety plan:
(a) Failure to develop safety Operating PIAN .......c.cucoiiiiiieiie e 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to develop procurement plan ........... 6,500 9,000
(1)—(7) Failure to develop portion of plan .. 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to maintain dOCUMENTALION ........cc.iiiiiiiiieiie ettt sttt b e sae e e e et e e beesneeeneeas 5,000 7,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. Generally when two or more violations of these regulations are
discovered with respect to a single unit of passenger equipment that is placed or continued in service by a railroad, the appropriate penalties set
forth above are aggregated up to a maximum of $11,000 per day. However, failure to perform, with respect to a particular unit of passenger
equipment, any of the inspections and tests required under subparts D and F of this part will be treated as a violation separate and distinct from,
and in addition to, any substantive violative conditions found on that unit of passenger equipment. Moreover, the Administrator reserves the right
to assess a penalty of up to $27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. Failure to observe any
condition for movement of defective equipment set forth in §238.17 will deprive the railroad of the benefit of the movement-for-repair provision
and make the railroad and any responsible individuals liable for penalty under the particular regulatory section(s) concerning the substantive de-
fect(s) present on the unit of passenger equipment at the time of movement. Failure to observe any condition for the movement of passenger
equipment containing defective safety appliances, other than power brakes, set forth in §238.17(e) will deprive the railroad of the movement-for-
repair provision and make the railroad and any responsible individuals liable for penalty under the particular regulatory section(s) contained in
part 231 of this chapter or § 238.429 concerning the substantive defective condition. The penalties listed for failure to perform the exterior and in-
terior mechanical inspections and tests required under §238.303 and §238.305 may be assessed for each unit of passenger equipment con-
tained in a train that is not properly inspected. Whereas, the penalties listed for failure to perform the brake inspections and tests under
§238.313 through §238.319 may be assessed for each train that is not properly inspected.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 238. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

PART 239—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20102-20103, 20105— 46. Appendix A to part 239 is revised
20114, 20133, 21301, 21304, and 21311; 28 tg read as follows:
45. The authority citation for part 239  U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49(c), (g),
continues to read as follows: (m).

APPENDIX A TO PART 239.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

: I Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
Subpart B—Specific Requirements
239.101 (a) Failure of a railroad to adopt a written emergency preparedness plan ..........cccoeeeereeienieieneninenns $8,500 $11,000
(a)(1) Failure of the plan to provide for:
(i) Initial or on-board notifications by an on-board crewmember ...........cccoiiiriiiiiiiniene e 5,000 7,500
(i) Notification of outside emergency responders by control center ............ccccooveveiiiieniiieneceseeeee, 5,000 7,500
(a)(2) Failure of the plan to provide for:
(i) Initial or periodic training of on-board PersonnEl ............cccoociiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(ii) Initial or periodic training of control center PErsonNNEl ...........ccceevirieiiniire e 5,000 7,500
(iii) Completion of initial training of all on-board and control center personnel by the specified date ..... 5,000 7,500
(iv) Completion of initial training of all newly hired on-board and control center personnel by the spec-
1Yol E= Y (T PO S U U ST PRRPR PR 5,000 7,500
(v) Adequate procedures to evaluate and test on-board and control center personnel for qualification
under the emergency preparedness PIAN .........oociiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(vi) Adequate oNn-board STAffiNG .......cceoiiiiii s 5,000 7,500
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APPENDIX A TO PART 239.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

: I Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
(a)(3) Failure of a host railroad involved in joint operations to coordinate applicable portions of the emer-
gency preparedness plan with the railroad or railroads providing or operating a passenger train service
[o] o 1T -1 o) o OSSPSR 5,000 7,500
(a)(4) Failure of the plan to address:
(i) Readiness procedures for emergencies in tUNNEIS ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(ii) Readiness procedures for emergencies on an elevated structure or in electrified territory ............... 5,000 7,500
(iii) Coordination efforts involving adjacent rail modes of transportation ...........cccccooeiniiiienienneeneceen, 5,000 7,500
(a)(5) Failure of the plan to address relationships with on-line emergency responders by providing for:
(i) The development and availability of training Programs ...........ccceeeireeiireeceneceee s 5,000 7,500
(i) Invitations to emergency responders to participate in emergency simulations .... 5,000 7,500
(iii) Distribution of applicable portions of the current emergency preparedness plan ... 5,000 7,500
(a)(6) Failure of the plan to provide for, or the railroad to include on board each train and maintain and re-
place:
(O e L=l e =Y oy VA =Yo (U] o 4 T=T o | TSR PPPP 5,000 7,500
() RS o=Vl I £SO P USSR 5,000 7,500
(ii)) EMErgenCy NGITING ..cc.eeoieeiiiie ettt r e e r e e nne e nes 5,000 7,500
(a)(7) Failure of the plan to provide for emergency instructions inside each passenger car or to include
additional safety awareness iNfOrmMation ...........ocoiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
239.103 Failure to conduct a required full-scale simulation in accordance with the frequency schedule ........... 5,000 7,500
239.105 Debriefing and critique:
(a) Failure to conduct a debriefing and critique session after an emergency or full-scale simulation 5,000 7,500
(d)(1) Failure to maintain @ reCOMd ..........cooiiiiiiiiiii e e 3,000 4,500
(i) Failure to include date or location of the emergency or simulation ............cccccviiiiniiiinicineeecee, 1,500 2,500
(ii) Failure to include date or location of the debriefing and critique session ...........c.ccoceoeiiiiiiiinicen, 1,500 2,500
(iii) Failure to include names of participants in the debriefing and critique session . 1,500 2,500
(d)(2) Failure to make record available ..o 1,500 2,500
239.107 Emergency exits:
(a)(1), (a)(2):
(i) Door not marked or iNStructions NOt POSIEA .......c.eeviiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(ii) Door improperly marked or instructions 1,000—2,000 improperly posted ..........cccoocvrviiniiiniiennieeeenn. 5,000 7,500
(b)(1) Failure to provide for scheduled inspection, maintenance, and repair of emergency windows and
o (oo T £ PRSPPI 5,000 7,500
(b)(2):
(i) Failure to test a representative sample of emergency WindOWS ...........ccccoociiiiiiiiniic e 5,000 7,500
(ii) Emergency windows tested t00 iNfreqUENTIY ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
(b)(3) Failure to repair an inoperative emergency window or dOOr eXit .........cccccerviriiiiiiiiiiiie i 5,000 7,500
(c):
(i) Failure t0 Maintain @ FECOIM ........ooiiiiiiiiii ettt e et e e et e e e e sabe e e e eate e e eneeeeenneeean 5,000 7,500
(i) Failure to make record available ..........cccooiiie it e e e e naee s 1,500 2,500
(d)(1) Insufficient limits or controls on accessibility 10 reCords ...........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(d)(2) MiISSING TEIMINGL ...ttt sttt esa et et e e sae e et e e sae e e bt e saeeeteeeaneenbeeeaneas 1,500 2,500
(d)(3) Inability of railroad to produce information in a usable format for immediate review ..............ccccceeee. 1,500 2,500
(d)(4) Failure by railroad to designate an authorized representative ..........ccccccceeriiiiieiiiinee i 1,500 2,500
(d)(5) Failure to make record available ..o 1,500 2,500
Subpart C—Review, Approval, and Retention of Emergency Preparedness Plans
239.201 Filing and approval:
(a):
(i) Failure of a railroad to file a written emergency preparedness plan ..........cccccceeviiniiiiieniieieeneceen 6,500 9,000
(i) Failure to designate a primary person to contact for plan review 1,500 2,500
(iii) Failure of a railroad to file an amendment to itS Plan .........ccccociiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(b)(1), (b)(2):
(i) Failure of a railroad to correct a plan defiCieNCY ..........ccoiviiiiiiiiiii e 1,500 2,500
(i) Failure to provide FRA with a corrected copy of the plan ..........cccciiiiiiiiinee 1,500 2,500
(b)(3):
(i) Failure of a railroad to correct an amendment defiCiENCY .........coiiieiiiiiiiiiie e 1,500 2,500
(i) Failure to file a corrected plan amendment with FRA ..o 1,500 2,500
239.203 Retention of emergency preparedness plan:
(1) Failure to retain a copy of the plan or an amendment to the plan ..........cccccoiiiiiiiiiicce, 5,000 7,500
(2) Failure to make record available ..............ooiiiiiii e e 1,500 2,500
Subpart D—Operational (Efficiency) Tests; Inspection of Records and Recordkeeping
239.301 Operational (efficiency) tests:
[ =T aTo (T =T o o T PP USSP PR R URPOPPRO 5,000 7,500
(b)(1) Failure to MaINAIN @ FECOIT ......eiiiiieieieee ettt esre e e renene e 5,000 7,500
(b)(2) Record improperly COMPIEEA .........ooiiiiiieiii et 1,500 2,500
(c)(1) Failure to retain @ copy Of the FECOIT .......ccuiiiiiiiiieee e e 1,500 2,500
(c)(2) Failure to make record available ..............cooiiiiiiiiie s 1,500 2,500
239.303 Electronic recordkeeping:
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. o Willful
Section2 Violation violation
(a) Insufficient limits or controls on accessibility t0 reCOrds ..........cocoiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
(D) MiISSING TEIMINGI ...ttt ettt et b e e et e sae e et e e s an e e bt e saneenbeeeaneennneeanees 1,500 2,500
(c) Inability of railroad to produce information in a usable format for immediate review ...........cccccoeveenieenen. 1,500 2,500
(d) Failure by railroad to designate an authorized representative 1,500 2,500
(e) Failure to make record available ..............ooioiiii e e 1,500 2,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 U.S.C. 21301, 21304, and 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.
2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 239. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.

PART 240—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20135, 48. Appendix A to part 240 is revised

21301, 21304, 21311; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; to read as follows:

47. The authority citation for part 240  and 49 GFR 149.
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 240.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

Section 2 Violation vivc\>lllrll|IiUC>In
Subpart B—Component Elements
240.101 Program Failures:
(2) Failure t0 hAVe PrOGIam ........coiiiiiiiiieei ettt ettt ettt et st e bt e e b e e eae e st e e st e e e b e e anneennees $8,500 $11,000
(b) Program that fails t0 address @ SUDJECT ........coiiiiiiiiiieeee e e 5,000 7,500
240.108 Failure to:
[CE Y IR (o Lo o] o=Y g o 1 = PSSP RTOPPR 1,500 2,500
(d) resubmit, when directed by FRA ... ettt st ettt st e nb e e b saeeenneas 1,500 2,500
240.104 Allowing uncertified person to operate non-traditional locomotives .................. 6,500 9,000
240.105 Failure to have or execute adequate procedure for selection of supervisors 5,000 7,500
240.107 Classes of Service:
(a) Failure to designate Classes Of SEIVICE .........cociiiiiiiiiiiic e e 5,000 7,500
240.109 Limitations on considering prior conduct records:
(a) Failure to have procedure for determining eligibility ...........cocoriiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(e) Considering excluded data .........cccceveevvienenniecennnn. 5,000 7,500
(f), (g) Failure to provide timely review opportunity ... 5,000 7,500
240.111  Furnishing Motor Vehicle Records:
(a) Failure to action required to make information available .............ccociiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,500 2,500
(b) Failure to request:
[ I Lo Tor= U (=Yoo 4o IR PR SPUPPR 1,500 2,500
(2) NDR FBCOIA ...ttt ettt b s b st b e e st e bt e et bt et e nb e e e e e r e e e e sreese e neebe e neneeennenseenns 1,500 2,500
(f) Failure to request additional record ....... 1,500 2,500
(9) Failure to notify of absence of license 1,500 2,500
(h) Failure to submit request in tiIMEly MAaNNET .........coiiiiiiiii s 1,500 2,500
(i) Failure to report within 48 hours or railroad taking certification action for not reporting earlier than 48
T 10 £ PPN 1,500 2,500
240.113 Furnishing prior employment information:
(a) Failure to take action required to make information available 1,500 2,500
(D) Failure t0 reQUESE FECOIT .....oiuiiiiieieeeeie ettt ettt nae e r e nre e e e nre e e sreenne e 1,500 2,500
240.115 Criteria for considering prior motor vehicle conduct:
(b) Considering eXClUAEA Aata ..........coeiiiiiiiiiiii e e 5,000 7,500
(c) Failure to:
(1) consider data ........cccoceeeeciiiiiniieniene 8,500 11,000
(3)—(4) properly act in response to data 3,000 4,500
240.117 Consideration of Operational Rules Compliance Records:
(a) Failure to have program and PrOCEAUIES .........coieiiiirriieiieeriee et e e et e st eb e sttt esae e e st e seeenteeebeesseeenneas 8,500 11,000
(b)—(j) Failure to have adequate program or procedure 5,000 7,500
240.119 Consideration of substance abuse/rules compliance Records:
(a) Failure to have program and ProCEAUIES ..........ccceiiiiiiiiieiiiieiie ettt nes 8,500 11,000
(b)—(e) Failure to have adequate program OF PrOCEAUIE ..........cooeiriieerieiiieeiieeeeesreerree s e e sseesee st e b e saeeeneas 5,000 7,500
240.121 Failure to have adequate procedure for determining acuity ..........ccocvriiiiiiiiiiiic s 5,000 7,500
(f) Failure of engiNEer t0 NOLITY .....c.uiiiiiiieie ettt b e b e sae e st e et e e b e e sneeenneas 5,000 7,500
240.123 Failure to have—
(b) adequate procedures for continUINg EAUCALION ..........ooiiiiiiiiii it 5,000 7,500
(c) adequate procedures for training new engineers 5,000 7,500
240.125 Failure to have—
(a) adequate procedures for testing KNOWIEAGE .......c.coocviiiiiiiiiiiiieee s 5,000 7,500
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: I Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
(d) adequate procedures for documenting tESTING ......ccocviiiiiiiiiiii i 5,000 7,500
240.127 Failure to have—
(a) adequate procedures for evaluating skill performance .. 5,000 7,500
(c) adequate procedures for documenting SKills t€SHNG ......coocviiiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
240.129 Failure to have—
(a)—(b) adequate procedures for monitoring PEerforMAaNCE ...........coiiiiiiieiiieiie e e 5,000 7,500
Subpart C—Implementation of the Process
240.201 Schedule for implementation:
(a) Failure to select supervisors by specified date ..........cocoviiiiiiiiiiiii 1,500 2,500
(b) Failure to identify grandfathered ENGINEEIS ..........c.cociiiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to issue certificate t0 ENGINEET .......c.c.ii ittt 1,500 2,500
(d) Allowing uncertified PErson t0 OPEIAE .........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee et et 5,000 7,500
(e)—(g) Certifying without complying with SUDPart C ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
(h)—(i) Failure to issue certificate t0 ENGINEET .........ooiiiiiiiie e e 1,500 2,500
240.203 (a) Designating a person as a supervisor without determining that—
(1) person knows and understands this Part ...........ccoociiiiiiiiiie e 5,000 7,500
(2) person can test and evaluate engineers 8,500 11,000
(3) person has experience to prescribe reMEdIES ..........ccooireriiiririiiniee e 5,000 7,500
(b) Certifying a person without determining that—
(1) person meets the eligibility CHEria ..........cocuiiiiiiiiiii e e 8,500 11,000
(2) person meets the medical criteria 5,000 7,500
(3) person has demonstrated KNOWIEAGE .........cocuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee et et 5,000 7,500
(4) person has demonstrated SKillS ..........c.eoiiiiiiiiiiiii s 5,000 7,500
(c) Certifying a person without determining that—
(1) person has completed traiNiNg PrOgraM ...........oceiiieiiiirie ettt b e sae e e 5,000 7,500
(2) person meets the eligibility criteria 5,000 7,500
(8) time has elapsed 5,000 7,500
240.205 Procedures for determining eligibility based on prior safety conduct:
(a) Selecting person lacking €ligibility ............ooioiiiiie e 8,500 11,000
(d) Failure to have basis for taking @aCtion ............coiiiiiiiiii s 5,000 7,500
240.207 Ineligibility based on medical condition:
(a) Selecting person 1acking PrOPEr ACUILY .........coiueiiuieriiiitieeie ettt ettt e nee e r e sbeeeneas 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure to have basis for finding Of Proper ACUILY ..........ccocuiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,500 2,500
(c) Acuity examinations performed by unauthorized Person ...........ccccceiiiiiiiiiienii e 1,500 2,500
(d) Failure to note need for device to achieve aCUItY .........ccoociiiiiiiiiii e 1,500 2,500
(e) Failure to use device needed fOr Proper ACUILY ..........ccceeiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt 1,500 2,500
240.209 Demonstrating knowledge:
(b) Failure to properly determing KNOWIEAGE ..........coouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 6,500 9,000
(o) I L] o] (o] =T g (oY1) o] (o TeT=Yo [F PSP SP U STOPRR 5,000 7,500
(d) Failure to dOCUMENT tEST FESUILS ....c.eeiiiieiie ettt ettt e e e s e e s nbe e e sneeeeannees 1,500 2,500
(e) Allowing person to operate despite test failUre ..........cooeeiiiiiiiiiii e 5,000 7,500
240.211 Demonstrating skills:
(b) Failure to properly determine knowledge ... 5,000 7,500
(c) Improper test procedure ..........ccccceeueenenn. 3,000 4,500
(d) Failure to document test results ..........ccccceeveennee. 1,500 2,500
(e) Allowing person to operate despite test failure ..o 5,000 7,500
240.213 Completion of approved training program:
(a) Failure to properly determing ...........oociiiiiiiiii ettt 5,000 7,500
(b) Failure to document successful program COMPIETION ..........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
240.215 Supporting information:
(a), (f)—(h) Failure to have a record . 1,500 2,500
(b) Failure to have complete record . 1,500 2,500
(1) FalSification Of FECOIA ......c.eiiiiie ettt et sttt e e b e e bt e st e e nbe e e beesaneenneas (—) 11,000
240.217 Time limits for making determinations:
(@), (C) Exceeding tIMe lIMIt .....oc.ei ettt et st b e e ab e she e et e b e e naneenean 3,000 4,500
240.219 Denial of certification:
(a) Failure to notify or provide opportunity for COMMENT ........c.coiiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
(c) Failure to notify, provide data, or untimely Notification .............ocooiiiiiiiiii e 3,000 4,500
240.221 Identification of persons:
(a)—(c) Failure t0 hAVe @ FECOI ........coiiiiiiiiieie ettt sttt sb e e et e sbeeenees 3,000 4,500
(d) Failure to update a record 3,000 4,500
(e)—(f) Failure to make a record available .............ccoociiiiiiiiii s 1,500 2,500
240.223 Certificate criteria:
(2) IMProper CEMICALE .......ooiiiiiiiiie et s b e e b e e eb e e et nre e nees 1,500 2,500
(b) Failure to designate those with signatory authority .. 1,500 2,500
(d) Falsification Of CErtifiCate ..........ciiiiiiii e e (—) 11,000
240.225 Railroad Relying on Determination of Another:
(a) Failure to address in program or failure to require newly hired engineer to take entire training program 8,500 11,000
(2) Reliance on Wrong Class Of SEIVICE ......cc.uiiiiiiiiiiii ettt sttt st saeeenneas 3,000 4,500
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APPENDIX A TO PART 240.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

: — Willful
Section? Violation violation
(3) Failure to familiarize person with new operational territory ..........ccccoeiiiiieiiiiiie e 3,000 4,500
(4) Failure to determing KNOWIEAGE .......ocuiiiiiiiiiiii ettt et sttt nees 3,000 4,500
(5) Failure to determine performance SKIllS ............coiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 3,000 4,500
240.227 Railroad Relying on Requirements of a Different Country:
(a) Joint operator reliance:
(1) ON PErsoN NOt EMPIOYEA .......oociiiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt et sr e e st e e sbe e er e e nneeenees 1,500 2,500
(2) on person who fails to meet Canadian requUIremMENES ..........cccocuiiiiiiiieniiiiee e 1,500 2,500
(b) Canadian railroad reliance:
(1) ON PErSON NOt EMPIOYEA ......oiiuiiiiiiiiee ettt et ettt st e e be e e st e e saeesateesseesnbeenaeeenneas 1,500 2,500
(2) on person who fails to meet Canadian reqUIreMENES ..........ccociiiiiiiiiiniiniieree e 1,500 2,500
240.229 Requirements for Joint Operations Territory:
(a) Allowing uncertified PErson t0 OPEraAE .........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee et 3,000 4,500
(b) Certifying without making determinations or relying on another railroad ............ccccceeiiiniiiieenieeieneeee, 6,500 9,000
(c) Failure of:
(1) controlling railroad certifying without determining certification status, knowledge, skills, or famili-
arity with physical CharacCteriStiCS .........cooiiiiiiiiiiie e 8,500 11,000
(2) employing railroad to determine person’s certified and qualified status for controlling railroad . 8,500 11,000
(3) person to notify employing railroad of lack of qualifications ...........cccceiiriiiiiiiiine e 8,500 11,000
(d) Failure to provide qUAlIfIEd PEISON .......cceiiiiiiiiiiee ettt sttt sae e s te et e e beesneeenneas 3,000 4,500
240.231 Persons Qualified on Physical Characteristics in Other Than Joint Operations:
(a) Person unqualified, no exception applies or railroad does not adequately address in program ............... 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure to have a pilot:
(1) for engineer who has never been qUalified ..........cccooiiiiiiiie s 8,500 11,000
(2) for engineer previously QUANTIEA .........c.ciiiiiiiii e s 5,000 7,500
Subpart D—Program Administration
240.301 Failure to have system for certificate replacement ... 3,000 4,500
240.303 Monitoring operations:
(2) Failure t0 hAVe PrOGIam ......c.ciiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt et e et e bt e esb e e eae e st e e nee e e b e e snneenneas 8,500 11,000
(b) Failure to observe each person anNUAIIY ..........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,500 2,500
(c) Failure to test each person annUAIlY ............cooiiiiiiiiiie e et 1,500 2,500
(d) Failure to tESt PrOPEITY .....eeeiieeeiietee ettt ettt b e e he e e nr e e e n e e r e 1,500 2,500
240.305 Prohibited Conduct:
(a) Unlawful:
(1) PaSSING Of STOP SIGNAI ..ottt e et sa et st e et eb e naeeenees 6,500 9,000
(2) control of speed 6,500 9,000
(3) brake tests .......ccceeveennes 6,500 9,000
(4) 0ccuUPANCY Of MAIN TFACK .....eivieiiitiiietc ettt r e e n e e nne e e 6,500 9,000
(5) tampering or operation with disabled safety deViCe ..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 6,500 9,000
(6) supervisor, pilot, or instructor fails to take appropriate action ...........cccceecvrieieninieneeereee e 6,500 9,000
(b) Failure of engineer to:
(1) CAITY COMITICAIE .. .eiteeiitie ettt et r et e e r e n e e e nns 1,500 2,500
(2) display certificate When reqUESTEA ..........oc.oiiiiiiiiiii et 1,500 2,500
(c) Failure of engineer to notify railroad of limitations or railroad requiring engineer to exceed limitations ... 8,500 11,000
(d) Failure of engineer to notify railroad of denial or revoCation ............cocoiiiiiiiiiiiiirec e 8,500 11,000
240.307 Revocation of Certification:
(a) Failure to withdraw person fromM SEIVICE .........ceiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt 3,000 4,500
(b) Failure to notify, provide hearing opportunity, or untimely procedures ...........cccvveeeereeieneeieneeeeseneens 3,000 4,500
(c)—(h) Failure of railroad to comply with hearing or waiver procedures ............cccocirreiriiiniiiieene e 3,000 4,500
(j) Failure of railroad t0 Make FECOIA ........cooiiiiiiiiii ittt sr e e r e e 3,000 4,500
(k) Failure of railroad to conduct reasonable inquiry or make good faith determination ............ccccoceevieenen. 6,500 9,000
240.309 Oversight Responsibility Report:
(a) Failure to report or 10 rePOrt ON tIME ....o.iiiiiiii ettt 1,500 2,500
(b)—(h) Incomplete Or INACCUIALE TEPOIT ......c.iiiieiiitiei ittt r e sre e e nne e e 3,000 4,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 240. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.

PART 241—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 21301, 50. Appendix B to part 241 is revised
21304, 21311; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; 49 CFR to read as follows;

49. The authority citation for part 241 149,
continues to read as follows:
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APPENDIX B TO PART 241.—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES 1
Section 2 Violation it
241.9 (a) Requiring or permitting extraterritorial dispatching of a railroad operation .............cccocoeeviiiiiiniinieenns $6,500 $9,000
(b) Failing to notify FRA about extraterritorial dispatching of a railroad operation in an emergency situation 6,500 9,000
241.11 Conducting a railroad operation that is extraterritorially dispatched:

(B)(1) GENEIAIY ..ttt ettt et b et e e a e bt b e bt b e btk e et bt et he e e nh e e e nne e e ne e 6,500 9,000
(a)(2) In an emergency situation—where dispatching railroad fails to notify FRA of the extraterritorial dis-

o2z LCe] 111 [o J U PSSR UURPTI 1,500 2,500
241.13 Requiring or permitting track to be used for the conduct of a railroad operation that is extraterritorially

dispatched:

[ TG D I T a1 T =1L PSP P PRSPPI 6,500 9,000
(a)(2) In an emergency situation—where dispatching railroad fails to notify FRA of the extraterritorial dis-

2= L (o] 1 o o PSPPSRI 1,500 2,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$27,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 U.S.C. 21301, 21304 and 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.
2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 241. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.

Issued in Washington, DC on November 16,
2006.

Joseph H. Boardman,

Administrator.

[FR Doc. E6-20031 Filed 12—4—06; 8:45 am)]
BILLING CODE 4910-06-P
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